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CITY OF COCKBURN

MINUTES OFAUDIT & STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE 

HELD ON THURSDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2018 AT 6:00 PM

PRESENT: 

ELECTED MEMBERS

Mr KAllen 

Mr L Howlett 

Mrs C Reeve-Fowkes 

Mr M Separovich

Councillor (Presiding Member) 
Mayor 
Councillor 

Councillor (Arr. 6.05 pm)

IN ATTENDANCE

Mr D Green 

Mr S Downing 
Mr Andrew Trosic

Acting Chief Executive Officer 
Director Finance & Corporate Services 

Acting Director Planning & Development 
Services 

Executive Manager, Strategy & Civic Support 
Manager, Community Development, 
Governance & Community Services 

Manager Financial Services 
Governance & Risk Advisor 

Executive Assistant, Fin & Corp Services and 
Gov & Comm Services

Mrs M Tobin 

Mrs G Bowman

Mr N Mauricio 

Mr J Ngoroyemoto 
Mrs V Frankson

1. DECLARATION OF MEETING

The Presiding Member declared the meeting open at 6.00pm. 

"Kaya, Wanju Wadjuk Budjar" which means "Hello, Welcome to Wadjuk Land"

The Presiding Member acknowledged the Nyungar People who are the 
traditional custodians of the land on which the meeting is being held and pay 
respect to the Elders of the Nyungar Nation, both past and present and extend 
that respect to Indigenous Australians who are with us tonight.

The Presiding Member made the following announcements:

The Presiding Member welcomed Mr Anthony Macri and Mr Suren 

Herathmudalige of Macri Partners and Mr Jordan Langford-Smith, Office of 
the Auditor General, to the meeting.
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2. APPOINTMENT OF PRESIDING MEMBER (If required)

Nil

3. DISCLAIMER (To be read aloud by Presiding Member)

Members of the public, who attend Council Meetings, should not act 

immediately on anything they hear at the Meetings, without first seeking 
clarification of Council’s position. Persons are advised to wait for written 
advice from the Council prior to taking action on any matter that they may 
have before Council.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF WRITTEN 

DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS AND CONFLICT 

OF INTEREST (by Presiding Member)

Nil

5. APOLOGIES & LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Deputy Mayor, Ms L Smith 
Mr S Cain, CEO 

Mr C Sullivan, Director Engineering & Works - 

Mr D Arndt, Director Planning & Development -

Apology 
Apology 

Apology 
Apology

6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Nil

7. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

7.1 (2018/MINUTE NO 0013) MINUTES OF THE AUDIT & 
STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING -19/07/2018

RECOMMENDATION 

That Committee confirms the Minutes of the Audit & Strategic Finance 
Committee Meeting held on Thursday, 19 July 2018 as a true and 
accurate record.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Mayor L Howlett SECONDED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes

1 ,~~ ’I
5 of 202

Version: 2, Version Date: 09/05/2019
Document Set ID: 7943624



ASFC 15/11/2018

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 3/0

8. DEPUTATIONS

Nil

9. BUSINESS LEFT OVER FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (IF 
ADJOURNED)

Nil

10. DECLARATION BY MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT GIVEN DUE 

CONSIDERATION TO MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE 

BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING

Nil

AT THIS POINT IN THE MEETING, THE TIME BEING 6.03PM THE 

FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE CARRIED BY AN ’EN BLOC’ RESOLUTION OF 

THE COMMITIEE

11.2 13.1 

13.3

CR MICHAEL SEPAROVICH JOINED THE MEETING AT 6.05PM.

6 of 202 ’~ 

.,~ 
. 

...}-......;. ~

Version: 2, Version Date: 09/05/2019
Document Set ID: 7943624



Item 11.1 ASFC 15/11/2018

11. COUNCIL MATTERS

11.1 (2018/MINUTE NO 0014) RISK INFORMATION REPORT

Author(s) 

Attachments

J Ngoroyemoto 

1. Risk Management Framework Review Report 
2. 2017 Compliance Audit Return Review Report 
3. High/Extreme Risks Update Report 
4. Risk Management Framework ’Road Map’ Action 

Plan 2019 - 2021 for Continuous Improvement

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Committee receives:

(1) the Risk Information Update report on High/Extreme Risks, as per 
attachment to the report; and 

(2) the Chief Executive Officer’s Biennial Review of the 

appropriateness and effectiveness of the City’s systems and 

procedures in relation to risk management, internal controls and 

legislative compliance as detailed in the Risk Management 
Framework Review Report and the 2017 Compliance Audit Return 
Review Report, as attached to the report; and

(3) adopt the Risk Management Framework ’Road Map’ Action Plan 
for Continuous Improvement 2019-2021, as attached to the report.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Mayor L Howlett

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

Background

The City’s Risk Program is committed to a culture of risk management 
to ensure that sound risk management practices and procedures are 

fully integrated into its strategic and operational processes and day to 

day business practices. The City is progressing in implementing the 
Risk Program and this report provides an update on the key milestones 
achieved over the past 4 months, since the last information report was 
submitted to the Audit Committee.

The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the current and 

planned risk management activities by the City of Cockburn,

1 ,~~ ’I
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incorporating the updated Status of the City’s Business Continuity 
Management Program.

Submission

N/A

Report 

This Risk Report covers the months of July 2018 to November 2018 
and outlines the risk and business continuity management activities 
undertaken during these months.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

Update on High and Extreme Risks 

As at 5th of November, 25 Strategic Risks and 252 Operational risks 

currently sit on the City’s Risk Registers.

Risk No of Risks

Extreme Nil

High 3

Substantial 18

Moderate 146

Low 120

These risks are monitored and reviewed in priority of the risk rating 
level as per the City of Cockburn risk treatment levels. Updates on all of 
the identified ’High/Extreme’ are attached to the report. 

Interim Risk Profile
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Item 11.1 ASFC 15/11/2018

All of the City’s risk information is continuously reviewed by the risk 

owners in the Risk Management & Safety System (RMSS). The 
distribution of risk ratings for both strategic and operational risks 

throughout the organisation is shown in the following risk matrix and 
chart. The chart demonstrates the overall image of the City’s risk 

categorised into Low, Moderate, Substantial, High and Extreme risks. 
The City is proactively managing its risks with no Extreme risks 
identified and only 1.03% rated as High. The distribution of the risk 

ratings is likely to change as the City transitions through the risk 

maturity levels and continues to review all operational and strategic 
risks.

Figure 1: Distribution of risk ratings as at 6 November 2018.
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3 Risk(s) lRidc(s)

Significant impact making it unlikely forthe organisation to achieve 
its objectives. Capability of the organisationRisk Treatment: 
Eliminated. Requires treatment to eliminate risk. Formal 
assessment and action plan prepared. 

Significant impact making it difficult for organisation to achieve 
objectives. Will diminish capability of organisation. Risk Treatment: 
mitigate. Risk requires treatment to mitigate impact. Formal 
assessment and action plan prepared. 
Wi II Impact on the ability of organisation to achieve objectives orwill 
diminish capability.Risk Treatment: Accepted with detailed review 
and assessment. Action Plan prepared. 

May Impact on the ability of organisation to achieve objectives or 

may diminish capability. Risk Treatment: Acceptedwith review. 

Little ornoimpact on the achievement of objectives or 

capabilityRisk Treatment: Accepted without detailed revietol
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Figure 3: Controls Effectiveness - Existing controls ratings

c:::J Effective 

_MeqlP-!f. 

_ Inadequate

Where controls have been rated as Inadequate, controls are not 

operating as intended and therefore improvement is needed. An action 

plan has been prepared to introduce new treatment options and to align 
with relevant and current standards, codes of practice, guidelines and 

industry benchmarks expected of the City of Cockburn.

CEO BIENNIAL REVIEW ON RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL 

CONTROLS AND LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE

In accordance with Regulation 17(1) (a), (b) and (c), of the Local 
Government (Audit) Regulations 1996, the CEO is required to review 
the appropriateness and effectiveness of the City’s systems and 

procedures in relation to risk management, internal controls and 

legislative compliance at least once every 2 calendar years. In 
accordance with Regulation 16(c), the Audit Committee is required to 
review this report and then subsequently report to Council the results of 
the review, as shown in the attached copy of this report.

In order to address these requirements, the City of Cockburn engaged 
Risk west consultants to undertake an organisational risk maturity 
assessment, focusing on the following areas:

1. Review of current risk management practices against AS/NZ ISO 
31000: 2009 (The Risk Management Standard):

To benchmark the City’s Risk Management Framework 

against the AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management 
with reference to the changes in the recently released ISO
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ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 11.1

31000:2018 and to evaluate performance and progress in 

improving risk management capability and its impact on 

improved risk mitigation and performance outcomes.

2. Review of the 2017 Compliance Audit Return (2017 CAR):

To carry out a review of the controls that are in place 
which support the responses provided by key staff 
members in the Compliance Audit Return

This review was delivered between July and October 2018. The CEO’s 
review is now complete and the findings are presented for the 
Committee’s consideration. Based on this review, the systems and 

procedures the City has are efficient and effective and regularly 
reviewed for continuous improvement.

The Compliance Audit Return review demonstrates that the City.has 
provided a sufficient amount of reasonable evidence to support the 

responses made in the 2017 Compliance Audit Return. There are no 
identified matters of materiality which have arisen from this review that 
would indicate the responses are invalid.

The findings of the Risk Management Framework review indicate that 
there is a general alignment of the City’s risk management governing 
documents, risk information and supporting systems with ISO 31000 

principles, framework and process. Gaps in the City’s risk management 
practices have been identified, and a 3 (three) year Road Map has 
been developed to address these gaps.

Attached to this report is the agreed "Road Map" to "address the key 
findings and recommendations from this report to position the City’s risk 

management practices".

THE CITY’S BUSINESS CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

Risk west was engaged by the City of Cockburn to assist in the 

development and implementation of location-based Business Continuity 
Plans (BCPs) in accordance with the following program. 

Tranche 1

. Facilitate Business Impact Analysis with key managers - 

completed

. Conduct follow-up workshops / interviews with Business / Service 
units located in the Administration Building and Cockburn ARC to 

identify recovery strategies and resource requirements for 

recovery - completed
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. Prepare BCP documentation for the Administration Building and 
Cockburn ARC - completed

. Submit initial draft of the BCPs for review and sign-off - in 

progress

Tranche 1 of the project is nearly complete and the Business Continuity 
Plans for the Administration Building and Cockburn Aquatic & 
Recreational Centre (ARC) will be presented for endorsement at the 
December Executive meeting and presented to the Committee.

Insights and moving forward:

As the City continues to implement and embed risk management 
through its Risk Program, it will continue to focus on the following key 
areas and current initiatives:

I. Risk Management Framework and Policy Review

To address recommendations of the ’Road Map’ from the risk 

maturity assessment review report

II. Location Based Business Continuity Plans Project:

Tranche 2 

Conduct follow-up workshops I interviews with Business I Services 
Units located in the Operations Centre and Henderson Waste 

Facility to identify recovery strategies and resource requirements 
for recovery - January 2019

Prepare BCP documentation for the Operations Centre and 
Henderson Waste Facility - March 2019

Submit initial draft of the BCPs for review and sign-off - March 
2019

Tranche 3 

Conduct training and exercises to validate the completeness and 

accuracy of the plans - May 2019

III. Fraud, Misconduct Control & Resilience Framework

The Fraud and Misconduct Framework is being reviewed to 
enhance resilience through the identification and implementation 
of strategies to prevent, detect and respond to Fraud and 
Misconduct. The Fraud and Misconduct Control and Resilience 

Framework will provide an environment for implementation to: 

minimise opportunities for fraud, misconduct, bribery and 

corruption (whether committed by internal or external 

parties);
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. protect public monies, property, information, organisational 
and individual rights; and

. maintain the effectiveness of the City’s operations

Implementation of this Framework will ensure that the City’s workforce 
acts legally, ethically and in the public interest. 

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes.

Budget/Financial Implications

Location Based Business Continuity Plan project has been budgeted 
for in 2018-2019 financial year 

Legal Implications 

Regulations 16 and 17 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 
2013 refer.

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

Failure to complete this review and present it to the Audit and Strategic 
Finance Committee, will result in a compliance breach of the Local 
Government (Audit) Regulations 1996. Completion of this review also 

provides assurance to the Chief Executive Officer and Council of the 

appropriateness and effectiveness of the City’s systems and 

procedures for mitigating risks, internal controls and legislative 
requirements.

Failure to adopt the recommendations will result in the inability to 

support an integrated and effective approach to risk management and 
lack of guidance on the arrangements for designing, implementing, 
monitoring and continually improving risk management process.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995 

Nil
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Disclaimer: 

This report hos been compiled based on informorion provided by the client and is intended solely for the information and 

internal use of the client. II has been prepared by RisKwest (ABN: 30 573 849 449). In the cirwmstances, neither Rlskwesl 

nor any of its agents or employees give any warranty in relation to the acwrocy or reliability of any informatIon contained in 
this reparl. Riskwest disclaims 01/ liability to any party (Including any indirect’ or consequential loss or damage or lass of 

profit.s) in respect of or in consequence of anything done or omitted to be done by any party in relionce, whether in whole or 

partial, upon any information.
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Item 11.1 Attachment 1 ASFC 15/11/2018

1. Background

In September 2018, Riskwest were engaged to carry out a high-level review of the City of Cockburn’s 

Risk Management Framework (RMF) and make recommendations to assist with the continuing 

improvement of the framework and the maturity of risk management practices across the organisation.

The engagement comprised of a review of the following documents: 

Enterprise Risk Management Policy SC51 (14/9/18) 

Audit and Strategic Finance Committee Terms of Reference Version 1 (25/10/18) 

City of Cockburn Risk Management Framework Version 6 (8/8/18) 

2016 CEO Review of Risk Management, Legislative Compliance and Internal Controls 

High/Extreme Risks Quarterly Report (sample) 

The Risk Management Information Update (sample) ASFC 19/7/2018 

Risk Register Extract - Assessment Record 83 (sample) 

Sample Event Risk Management Plan 

Sample Control Review Report - Engineering & Works Division 

Sample Risk Review Group Agenda & Minutes 

Council report template

It should be noted that the engagement did not constitute an audit.

The review was undertaken by Sandra Hackett (Partner, Riskwest). See Appendix 1 for a summary 

biography of the reviewer.

4
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ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 11.1 Attachment 1

2. Approach

The approach to the review was to consider the current Risk Management Policy, Framework and risk 

register in the context of contemporary practice within local government and across other sectors, and 

to provide a set of recommendations for improvement.

The review focused on four key elements of any Risk Management Framework (RMF):

. Risk Governance & Leadership - Policy, Strategy & Culture

. Embedding Risk Management -Integration and Hierarchy of Risks

. Risk Management Process

. Capability, Support & Continuous Improvement

These elements align with the guidelines set out in ASjNZS ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management! as shown 

in the table below:

Framework Element Reference to AS/NZ5 ISO 31000:2009

1. Risk Governance & Mandate and commitment (4.2)

Leadership. Policy, Strategy & Understanding the organisation and its context (4.3.1)
Culture Establishing risk management policy (4.3.2)

Accountability (4.3.3)

2. Embedding Risk Integration into organisational processes (4.3.4)

Management. Integration Establishing internal communication and reporting
and Hierarchy of Risks mechanisms (4.3.6)

Establishing external communication and reporting mechanisms (4.3.7)

Implementing the framework for managing risk (4.4.1)

3. Risk Management Process Implementing the risk management process (4.4.2)

4. Capability, Support & Resources (4.3.5)

Continuous Improvement Monitoring and review of the framework (4.5)

Continual improvement of the framework (4.6)

. A5/NZ5 ISO 31000:2009 Is an internationally retognised standard which is used across all sectors and provides a set of 

principles and guidelines for the development and implementation of a risk management framework.

5
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Item 11.1 Attachment 1 ASFC 15/11/2018

3. Assessment of Risk Management Maturity

The findings of the review indicate that there is a general alignment of the City’s risk management 

governing documents, committees, risk information and supporting systems with ISO 31000 principles, 

framework and process. Gaps in the City’s risk management practices have been identified, and at a 

high level these include: 

. The organisational context in relation to the management and acceptance of risk should be 

further developed, including a review of the risk assessment criteria and the further 

development and implementation of a set of risk appetite statements, indicators and limits. 

. Further progress can be made towards the consistent application and integration of risk 

management and risk reporting practices across the City. In particular, the integration of the risk 

management approach into the city’s project and contract management practices is a critical 

component of an effective organisational-wide framework. 

. Reporting on organisational risk themes, the effectiveness of critical controls and the 

progression of risk actions plans can significantly enhance assurance regarding the 

appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management, as well as providing confidence that the 

City is operating within its defined risk appetite.

The maturity of an organisation with regard to their risk management practices is assessed using a set of 

qualitative measures ranging from "Intuitive" through to "Optimised" as defined in Table 1: Risk 

Management Maturity Assessment Criteria.

2018 Maturity Assessment 

Based on the information provided for the review, the City of Cockburn is assessed at the level of 

STRUCTURED, with some areas (e.g. project and contract risk management) rating slightly below this 

and others (e.g. operational risk) progressing towards INTEGRATED.
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Table 1: Risk Management Maturity Assessment Criteria.

Intuitive:

Aware:

Structurod:

Integrated:

Optimised:

There is minimal awareness and no formal risk management processes in place across the 

organisation. Risk management is performed on an adhoc and largely reactive basis. There is an 

absence of a common risk language.

There is some awareness of the importance of risk management, however there is a lack of 

consistent, formal processes in place. Some definition of risk language are in place, however 

inconsistent across the organisation. There is limited formal communication of training. Risk 

management is more reactive than proactive.

An organisation risk management policy and framework exist and has been endorsed by the 

accountable authority. Standardised risk management processes are defined and documented, and 

basic training conducted. Integration with the operations and broader governance processes is 

limited. Any risk appetite statements are high-level and qualitative.

Organisation-wide risk management is fully implemented across the business and consistently 

applied and used in decision making and day to day management. Risk management processes are 

measured, evaluated and fed back into continuous improvement. Principles and policies are 

implemented, and aggregated reports are prepared and reported to those charged with 

governance. Risk management facilitates the proactive identification 01 current, future, emerging 
and systemic risks. Key Risk Indicators are developed and monitored. Risk appetite statement 

contains both quantitative and qualitative elements which are linked to strategy and communicated 

to all staff.

Risk management is fully defined, implemented and integrated across all levels of the organisation 
and embedded into day to day management. Risk management is used as a key value driver 

supporting decision making and pursuit of opportunities. Risks, including emerging risks are 

proactively identified and monitored through key leading indicators. Formal communication 

processes are in place. Risk appetite statements, including tolerances and limits for risk categories 
are used consistently to inform decision making.

j
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4. Review Findings

The following table represents the Observations and opportunities for improvement derived from the 

document review. Each of the observations are tied to a Framework Element and for reference 

purposes the table also provides the broad Criteria associated with each element against which the RMF 

documentation has been reviewed.

Each section has been colour coded as follows:

Framework Element rlterl~ Observations and opportunities for Improvement

1. Risk Governance & leadership - Policy, Strategy & Culture

1.1 Risk Menecement (RM) Policy. Crlterle

AI Commitment

An organisation’s risk management policy is a formal acknowledgement of its commitment to taking an 

enterprise-wide approach to managing risk. The policy should outline the purpose of risk management and its 

high-level objectives. The policy should also reference the standard(s) against which the RMF has been 

developed.

BI Communication

Effective communication of the policy to all staff and key parties (e.g. contractors) is critical.

C) Roles and Responsibilities

A RM Policy should identify risk-related roles and responsibilities.

Typically, there are two distinct functions in relation to RM:

Responsibilities regarding the development, approval, implementation and continuous improvement of 

the RMF:

Responsibilities regarding the proactive identification and management of risks at the strategic, 

operational and project levels.

01 Risk Milnagement Culture

Risk Management is fully embedded when it is accepted and integrated with all "day to day" management 

activities. Risk management is considered by all as "regular practice", is discussed openly and objectively 

and there is an established culture of risk-based decision making.

8
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1.1 Risk Management (RM) Policy. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

A) Commitment

The Background section of the Enterprise Risk Management Policy SC51 (RM Policy) documents the City’s 

commitment to "organisation-wide risk management principles, systems and processes that ensure consistent, 

efficient and effective assessment of risk in all planning, decision making and operational processes while 

delivering a wide and diverse range of services to its residents and visitors."

This is also supported by the Introduction section of the Risk Management Framework document (RMF) which 

incorporates a signed statement of commitment from the City’s CEO.

The rationale for managing risk is outlined in Section (3) 1, Risk Management Outcomes.

(011) Consider expanding the rationale for managing risk in the context of the internal and external 

operating environment of the City and different types of risk (both positive and negative) it faces. This could 

include:

greater visibility of risks In the context of opportunities (and what they may be);

preparation for adverse events to improve organisational resilience (and prOVide examples);

greater confidence to address uncertainty in the external operating environment (and provide 

examples) and

ability to demonstrate its approach to management of risk to external stakeholders (including who that 

may be).

Reference to ’AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009’ as the relevant Standard has been made both in the Policy and the RMF. 

In addition, the 11 Principles of the Standard are listed. The RMF should consider each of these Principles and 

make reference to how these principles are practically applied at the City.

The RMF states that the RM Policy has been adopted by Council. Whilst there are revision dates in both 

documents, there is no specific date in either document as to when these current versions were adopted by 

council.

(012) The RMF and Policy should specifically note the date upon which each of these documents were 

adopted by Council.

B) Communication of the Policy

Neither the RM Policy nor RMF documents the process by which each of these documents are communicated to 

staff and other key parties.

(01 3) The RMF should provide brief details of how the communication of the City’s RM Policy and Framework 

occurs and how updates are provided to staff other key parties across the whole of the organisation.

C) Risk Governance, Role and Responsibilities

The City has documented roles and responsibilities throughout the RMF as well as being consolidated in 

Appendix B: Risk Management Action Plan table.

(014) There is an opportunity to include further reference to the specifiC risk governance role of the Council, 

particularly in relation to the oversight of "material risks" facing the City,

9
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This should include the identification of strategic/external risks, the development of documented risk 

appetite and the identification, assessment and management of risks which sit outside the risk appetite of 

the Council.

(015) It is also recommended that risk responsibilities are included in job descriptions so that all staff are fully 

aware of their part in the risk process and staff have sufficient delegated authority to exercise their level of 

responsibility.

0) Risk Management Culture

The RMF review is predominantly based on a review of relevant risk management documentation and as such, 

the ability to assess an organisation’s risk management culture is limited. However, the following activities 

provide some indication of a culture where risk management is embedded within the City’s risk thinking and 

decision making:

. All Business Cases appear to contain a risk assessment component

. The risk implications of decisions are a standing item of every report to Council.

. There is a Risk Review Group which comprises of a senior manager representative from each 

directorate and the Governance team and meets every two months

(016) It is recommended that the following aspects of embedding risk management are considered:

. Ensure options and decision papers across all levels of management within the City are supported by 

relevant risk information.

. Move to embedding risk management as a standing agenda item on regular senior manager and exec 

meeting agendas.

. Review the extent to which the CEO, Directors and Managers are proactive in the driving of risk 

assessments within each of their areas. Include risk management responsibilities in Job Descriptions 

and ensure an assessment of risk management performance is included as part of the performance 

management .nd review process.

1.2 Risk Assessment Criteria

The Framework should define the Organisation’s Risk Assessment Criteria, which outlines the criteria for the 

assessment of likelihood, consequence and overall level of risk.

Consequence categories should . reflect organisational measures of success (e.g. financial, operations, people 

safety, environment, reputation etc.) and should be mutually exclusive.

1.2 Risk Assessment Criteria - Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

Appendix A of the RMF document provides the City’s Risk Assessment and Acceptance Criteria Tables. The 

criteria is well structured and includes the required components of Control Effectiveness, Consequence 

Measures, Likelihood Measures, Level of Risk and Risk Acceptance Criteria.

10
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The Risk Assessment Criteria is based on a 5 x 5 matrix of consequence and likelihood. Although there is no 

requirement to use this, in practice it provides the optimum level of granularity across many different industries 

and sectors, without generating undue complexity.

The Measure of Consequence table provides criteria for a range of Impact areas across a range of Insignificant 

to Catastrophic.

(017) Recommendations to improve the clarity within the tables are summarised below:

MEASURES OF CONSEQUENCE

Review the Financial Impact Criteria to ensure that the three types of assessment are equivalent in 

terms of magnitude of impact. For example, under the Major impact level, Is a $250-$ 1M financial loss 

equivalent to 25% of OP and/or major damage to an asset? This may result in the need to further 

define what is an "asset" in the context of this criteria. 

Review the OSH/Health/lnjury and Wellbeing category to expand on the criteria to include 

consideration of psychological impact and wellbeing and provide greater clarity over the terms for 

physical injury. 

Review the Brand/Reputation Impact Criteria to ensure that the types of assessment are equivalent 
in terms of magnitude of impact. For example, under the Major (3) impact level, currently what 

constitutes a "moderate impact" is a single public complaint. Should this be assessed as a "Major (3)" 

impact? 

Review the Operations/Service Disruption Impact Criteria to ensure that the three types of 

assessment are equivalent in terms of magnitude of impact. Also, when assessing the variation 

against Pis, this can be problematic unless all Pis are of an equivalent importance. 

Review the Environmental Health Impact Criteria to assess how this relates to the criteria defined in 

the Environmental Management Act. 

Review the Compliance Impact criteria and consider removing reference to reputation damage (as 

this is captured in the Reputation/Brand category) 

Review the Project Impact criteria to ensure that the three types of assessment are equivalent in 

terms of magnitude of impact. Consider how individual project risk assessments are tied back to risks 

at an organisationallevel. 

All categories- ensure that a specific level of impact (e.g. levelS Catastrophic) is "equivalent" across 

all the different impact categories. 

Consider using the term "Impact Categor
’ rather than "Risk Category" to avoid any confusion.

MEASURES OF LIKELIHOOD

Consider reviewing the likelihood criteria to provide more clarity over the assessment criteria. For example:

define what is considered an "operation". 

explain how the criteria relates to strategic/external risks. 

consider using "% of chance occurring" as a probability measure and timeframes to further define a 

frequency.

RISK ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA

Clarify the use of the term "responsibility" and define how that relate to the role and responsib ty 

of the specific risk owner and the required escalation. 

Ensure all risk levels include timeframe for required reporting and consistency in guidance for 

monitoring and escalation.

11
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EXISTING CONTROLS RATINGS

Clarify item 3. associated with "Effective" controls - does this meant that all control improvements 

that can be done have been done?

NOTE: The Risk Management Information Update (sample) ASFC 19/7/2018 refers to a risk matrix (Figure 2: 

Risk Matrix) which defines the criteria for the management/acceptance of each level of risk. The advice and 

language in this report is inconsistent with the Risk Acceptance Criteria hence is it recommended that the two 

references are rationalised to ensure consistency.

Where the term "inherent risk" is used, such as in relation to Project Risks, ensure that this is reflected in the 

RMF.

1.3 Risk Appetite . Crlterl.

ISO 31000 provides guidance on the concept of ’risk criteria’, but no specific guidance to the commonly used 

concept of ’risk appetite’, even though the term is defined in the ISO Guide 73:2009 Risk management- 

Vocabulary as meaning "the amount and type of risk that an organisation is willing tc) pursue or retain". Despite 

this, it is Widely recognised that an important element of a Risk Management Framework is an understanding of 

the organisation’s risk appetite which also includes consideration of risk capacity and risk tolerance. This is 

often reflected in a series of Risk Appetite Statements and supporting indicators and limits which are 

underpinned by the risk assessment criteria and provides guidance to all staff on the amount of risk the 

organisaton is willing to accept in pursuit of its objectives.

1.3 Risk Appetite. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

The City’s RM Policy contains a high-level Risk Appetite Statement which provides some guidance as to the 

philosophy relating to risk taking. However, statements such as these are difficult to implement as they do not 

contain sufficient substance or granularity to enable Executive to systematically assess whether the risks that 

the City is exposed to are within the defined risk appetite.

(018) It is recommended that the City;

bu ds on the high-level statement to develop a series of risk acceptance principles, tolerances and 

limits to further enhance the definition of the risk appetite; 

communicates the risk appetite to all internal and external stakeholders; 

implements mechanisms to ensure that risk-taking is within the defined appetite (note - this would 

include the development, aggregation and reporting of key risk and control indicators to provide an 

organisational-wide view of the risk exposure); 

ensure there is a mechanism in place whereby risks which sit outside the defined risk appetite are 

escalated to the Council for review and decision-making.
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2. Embedding Risk Management - Integration & Hierarchy of Risks

2.1 Inteer.tion - Criteria

Contemporary practice integrates risk thinking with management and reporting activities across all aspects of 

an organisation’s operations, including Strategic Management, Operational Management and Project Delivery.

2.1 Integration - Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

Section 2.2 of the RMF defines the City’s risk management accountability framework is aligned with existing 

accountab ity requirements. Appendix 0 also provided comprehensive details as to the risk management and 

governance responsibilites for the key stakeholders and staff.

Section 2.4.1 provides the context for which risks are defined. identified and managed and is supported by 

Appendix B Risk Management Action Plan which describes the specific actions that need to take place to 

ensure risk management is fully integrated, along with tlmelinesjfrequencles and responsibilities.

Along with section 1.5 Risk Management Approach and the Three Lines of Defence Assurance Model. these 

sections comprehensively illustrate the links between risk, planning and operations.

(019) There is an opportunity to remove duplication and simplify the RMF document by separating out the 

responsibilities associated with developing and implementing the Framework from the responsibilities of 

identifying, managing, monitoring and reporting risks. As part of this the following questions should also be 

considered:

What is the mechanism by which new risks are identified and managed on an ongoing basis (e.g. any 
new risks since the development of strategic/operational plans)? 

What is the level of direct involvement of front-line managers at all levels and the degree to which 

risk assessments are effectively conducted by all business areas? 

What assurance activities are conducted to measure the extent to which corporate goals and risk 

management issues are clearly understood at all levels? 

In the case of contracts, partnership, joint ventures or alliances, to what extent is risk allocation 

carefully considered and clearly allocated such that all parties occept responsibilities for the 

allocation and have a clear understand of how the risk sharing arrangement will work? 

How are low probability/ high consequence risks events ("black swan events") identified and 

managed and what scenario testing is carried out to ensure that the City can recover quickly from 

major disruptions/outages/setbacks?

In addition to the RMF document, the 2016 CEO REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT, LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE & 

INTERNAL CONTROLS provides valuable information to demonstrate the implementation of the processes 

documented in the RMF.

(01 10) It is recommended that the content of this report is cross-referenced against the RMF to add further 

clarity to the framework documentation, particularly in relation to the integration and embedding of risk 

management across the business.
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2.2 Hierarchy of Risks. Criteria

Risk registers are summaries of the key strategic. operational and project risks across the organisation. AS/NZS 

ISO 31000:2009 emphas ses a proactive. top-down approach which can be easily integrated with existing 

management systems.

An RMF should indicate interfaces with other systems and processes for managing specific types of risks (e.g. 

Occupational Health and Safety. Environmental Risk Management and Fraud ControL)

2.3 Hierarchy of Risks. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

Section 2.4.1 Establishing the Risk Management Context defines the three levels of context (i.e. strategic, 

operational and project) for wh h risks are defined. identified and managed.

Strategic and operational risk registers contained within the RMSS system (i.e. the database repository for risk 

information) were considered as part of the RMF review. Project and event risk registers are currently managed 

outside this system.

(0111) Review the Strategic Risk Register in the context ofthe Strategic Planning documentation to ensure 

that risks associated with the specific and agreed strategies are identified and appropriately managed.

(0112) Project and Event Risk Management should be integrated within the overall RMF and risk registers 

incorporated into a single risk information repository.

(0113) Consider how strategic, operational and project risk registers interface and align with each other (e.g. 

how the City reports on projects which may have an impact on strategic or operational activities)

With regards to interfaces with other risk-based management systems, the RMF makes reference to the Fraud 

and Corruption Risk Function. the Crisis and Business Continuity Management Framework and the Local 

Emergency Plans.

(01 14) The RMF should include reference to how the specific risk function relates to the overall approach to 

risk management (i.e. are the specific risk functions listed in the RMF actually "controls" for high-level risks 

which are documented in the organisational risk register?).

Also. apart for the risk impact category of OSH/lnjuryjHealthjWellbeing there is no reference to the City’s 

Occupational Health and Safety Management System and how this integrates with the RMF.
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3. Risk Management Process

3.1 Risk Assessment (Identification, Analysis and Evaluation) . Criteria

The mechanism by which risks are identified, at each level in the risk hierarchy, is driven by the type of approach 

(i.e. top down or bottom up). A top-down risk identification process ensures that risks associated with the ability 

of the organisation to achieve its objectves are captured. These can then cascade down to the business unit 

level where more detailed risks are captured.

3.1 Risk Assessment (Identification, Anaiysls and Evaluation) . Observations and Opportunities for 

Improvements

RMF Section 2.4 Risk Management Process provides an explanation of the risk identification, analysis and 

evaluation process.

(0115) The City may wish to consider inciuding in the procedure guidance the use of alternative means of 

identifying and anaiysing risks for specific situations. This could include the use of multiple mechanisms for 

risk identification including brainstorming, checklists, incdent registers and audit reports, and the use of 

Bow-Tie analysis for complE!)(, high consequence scenarios where causal relationships need more detailed 

analysis, and where both controlling (preventative) and mitigation (reactive) strategies need to be 

considered.

3.2 Controls Assessment and Assurance - Criteria

Controls assessment and assurance is an integral part of an effective RMF. AS/NZS 31000:2009 describes that 

risks are analysed taking into account "existing controls and their effectiveness and efficiency".

All controls should be evaluated for their effectiveness and assurance mechanisms put in place. These typically 

Include self-assessment processes and Internal/external assessment (e.g. audits and reviews).

Inherent risk Is not featured in A5/NZ5 ISO 31000:2009, however It is used In many organlsatlons to estimate the 

level of risk assuming a breakdown in controls. The controlled or residual risk level of risk is commonly used as 

the communicated risk rating (i.e. the level of risk with the controls in place).

An additional risk rating based on the predicted level of risk (after treatment action plans are implemented) is 

also used by some organisatlons to Inform the analysis of the action.

3.2 Controls Assessment and Assurance. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

The RMF differentiates between ’Controls’ (material items in place to affect the lkelihood or consequence of a 

risk eventuating) and ’Treatment Actions’ (proposed items to be put in place to improve a control environment 

and/or risk rating) and guides the risk owner to assess the risks based on the "level of exposure with controls in 

effect".

(0116) There is an opportunity to:

Provide further information relating to the actual mechanisms by which critical controls are 

monitored and tested inciuding controls self-assessment (how often and by whom), line 

management oversight (how does this happen?) and internal/external audit (focus/links to the risk 

profile?) as part of the Three lines of Defence Model. In addition, include reference to the Control 

Review Reports in the RMF, including the mechanism by which teams/risks are selected for rev ew.
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. Provide definitions of the terms ’Controls’ and ’Treatment Actions’ in section 1.3 of the RMF 

Common Risk Definitions and Explanations

. Include a mechanism to highlight those risks with a potential catastrophic impact to ensure that the 

appropriate level of assurance is in place (such as scenario testing and routine internal/external 

audits). 

. Include in the Glossary of Terms a definition of the term ’residual risk’ (referred to on Page 12 of the 

RMF).

. Consider the use of inherent risk in the assessment of any high-risk operating environments which 

can be exposed to a variety of external environmental conditions.

3.3 Risk Treatment I Actions. Criteria

The management of risk involves both the monitoring of existing controls to ensure continued effectiveness and 

the implementation of actions to improve existing controls, create new controls or mitigate the risk in some 

other way.

Information regarding risks. controls and actions should be clearly documented to provide the required visibility 

to both Internal and external stakeholders, as required.

3.3 Risk Treatment I Actions. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

The RMF provides a section on Risk Treatment (section 2.4.2) which clearly outlines the process for the 

selection and implementation of risk mitigation actions.

Whilst the RMF states that "a comprehensive risk treatment plan should be prepared for all "High and Extreme 

risks", this requirement does not take into account those risks which have already been "treated" and remain 

High or Extreme.

(0117) To avoid confusion, include in this section the requirements for the ’treatment’ of High or Extreme 

risks which remain so after all feasible actions /controls have been implemented, as defined in the Risk 

Acceptance Criteria Table.

The recording of risk information in the form of a risk register is a critical part of the risk management process. It 

is imperative that organisations are able to demonstrate the decision. making with regard to the acceptance of 

risk and can provide a reliable audit trail for risk information, particularly In the event of a critical incident. As 

noted in RMF Section 2.5.1 Risk Tools "Information from the risk management process is to be recorded, 

reported and monitored using the City’s various risk register templates. The City has two ways to record risks:

. RMSS risk register - An online risk management tool, to assist the City in recording, monitoring and 

reporting operational and strategic risk information.

. Offline risk registers - These are various risk register templates used for projects, programs, events and 

hazard assessments. This information is not kept within the RMSS system."

A sample Risk Register Extract . Assessment Record 83 was reviewed for completeness and clarity. The record 

contained much of the important information relating to a particular risk.

(0118) However, there were some areas where additional clarity could be provided:
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The residual risk rating does not indicate the individual measure of consequence and likelihood that 

are combined to generate the rating. This information is important as risks with potentially high 

consequences are generally treated different from those with the same overall rating but a lower 

consequence (but higher likelihood).

There is only one "impact" category which can be selected for a risk. This limits the value of the 

assessment information as there is a need to understand the full impacts of a potential risk across 

the range of impact areas defined in the risk assessment criteria. 

There appears to be a control effectiveness assigned to each of the Actions. This is contradictory to 

the way control effectiveness is defined in the RMF and confusing to the observer. Control 

effectiveness should be related to the existing controls, not further actions which are still to be 

completed.

There is no opportunity to capture the ’owners’ of controls, which may be different from the risk 

owners.

There is no indication on the sample of whether the risk is acceptable, or if the risk has been 

accepted, when and by whom. 

Risk review dates are combined into an action, which leads to further confusion.

(0119) It is recommended that the City ensures that the offline risk templates and tools are consistent with 

the principles and processes outlined in the RMF with any accepted divergences noted clearly in the RMF. All 

information regarding risks, controls and actions should be documented such that, at any point in time, it is 

clear how risks .re identified, what is currently in place to manage the risk, how effective it is, what is the 

current level of risk, who owns the risks and the controls, what more is going to be done (if anything), when 

and bywhom.

3.4 Risk Monitoring, Reporting and Review. Criteria

Risk review and reporting processes should be a planned part of the risk management process. Risk 

Management Frameworks should clearly identify what information needs to be reported and how often, who 

will provide the information, and how Is the information to be used by the ’receiver’.

3.4 Risk Monitoring, Reporting and Review. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

RMF Appendix B - Risk Management Action Plan provides informaton relating to the activities and reporting 

requirements across the organisation.

Requirements for risk management reports have been identified along with risk reporting escalation procedures. 

The annual CEO REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT, LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE & INTERNAL CONTROLS is a key 

management/governance report which provides a valuable status update to Council.

(0120) The RMF states that strategic risks are reviewed every 4 years in conjunction with Community 

Strategic Plan. Consider developing a Strategic Plan which outlines the specific strategies and associated risks, 

and review these as a minimum annually to ensure the City remains on track to achieve the 4.year goals 

defined in the Community Strategic Plan.

1/
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The High/Extreme Risk Quarterly Reports provide a summary of those risk with a residual HIGH or EXTREME risk

rating. The report provides an overview of the risk. causes. impacts, existing controls, control effectiveness and

risk rating.

(01 21) Consideration should be given to including the following information on the High/Extreme Risk

Quarterly Reports:

. Whether the risk is acceptable as determined by the risk acceptance criteria and risk appetite;

. Clarity over whether the updates represent additional controls that are now in place (n which case

they should be listed in the table under existing controls) or they indicate treatment actions that are

in progress. If they are actions, they should include status and a clear date for completion.

(0122) Whilst there are many references to risk reporting and escalation within the RMF, an opportunity for

improvement would be to provide a simple table showing what report is generated for what audience,

including the timeframes and format/type of report (e.g. summaries, deep dives, dashboards etc.). This will

clearly demonstrate whether risk is incorporated into all management and Council reporting.

3.5 Lead and lag Indicators and validation mechanisms - Criteria

The RMF should indicate how lead and lag Indicators are used to add value to the risk management process.

Reference to the processes for incident/loss analysis to identify trends, the root cause of potential risks and

validation of risk assessment ratings should also be included.

3.S Lead and lag indicators and validation mechanisms - Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

(0123) Consider how the City’s incident management process (including the type of incidents/losses/near

misses recorded, any investigation processes, root cause analysis etc.) links back to the risk profile to provide

valuable insight into the assessment of the perceived risks. It is recommended that indicators are established

and monitored to give early warning of control failure and emerging risk issues.

4. Capability, Support & Continuous Improvement

4.1 Capability and Support - Criteria

A Risk Management Framework should contain information on staff capab ty across the organisation and how

the organisation understands, manages and report.s on key risks.

For example, a training strategy to build the required level of capability within the organisation is incorporated

into the existing staff professional development processes.

4.1 Capability and Support. Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

RMF Section 3. Training and Education provides an overview of the approach to the training of staff.

(01 24) The City may wish to expand on how this happens in practice and who has the responsibility for

ensurinc that staff across all levels of the orcanisation, includinc Council members, are adequately trained

and experienced in relation to risk management in the context of their specific responsibilities.

In addition, the City may wish to consider the following:
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. Are sufficient resources provided to support the business to fully embed risk management in day-to-

day organisational practices?

. Are risk experts or ’champions’ available to provide support and advice to staff on request?

. Is a risk management competency a prerequisite for promotion to leadership positions?

4.2 Continuous Improvement - Criteria

Section 4.5 of the Standard describes how organisations should monitor and review the risk management

framework to ensure its effectiveness and its ability to support organisational performance.

4.2 Continuous Improvement - Observations and Opportunities for Improvements

RMF Section 2.5 Assurance describes the validation and assurance program to monitor and improve the

implementation of the RMF. For clarity, it is recommended that this information is combined with the relevant

information in the Risk Actions Table to link each of these assurance activities with specific responsibilities,

timeframes and importantly, status updates.

(0125) The City is to satisfy itself that the Internal audit plan focusses on the "material" risks of the

organisation (from an inherent risk perspective), that the plan is being adhered to and that any findings from

the audits are addressed in a timely manner.

In addition to the use of audit, the Cry has developed a set of risk management performance indicators

(Appendix 3) to act as "lead" indicators as to the effectiveness of the RMF.

(01 26) It is important that these indicators are assessed, and the status reported on an annual basis, at a

minimum, in order for the intended value to be derived.
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5. 2019-2021 Road Map for Continuous Improvement

The table below outlines the actions required to implement the key recommendations arising from this 

review to support the further development and maturity of the City’s Risk Management Practices:

Element Actions Responsibility

1. Risk . Review and agree the specific risk governance role of the Council. Executive

Governance particularly in relation to the oversight of "material risks" facing Management Team

the City, risks which sit outside the risk appetite of the Council,

the identification of strategic/external risks and the development

of risk appetite. (Ref 014)

2. Risk . Ensure options and decision papers across all levels of Executive

Management management within the City are supported by relevant risk Management Team,

Culture information. Senior Managers

. Embed risk management as a standing agenda item for regular

senior management and executive meetings.

. Review the extent to which the CEO, Directors and Managers are

proactive in the driving of risk assessments within each of their

areas. Include risk management responsibilities in Job

Descriptions and ensure an assessment of risk management

performance is included as part of the performance management

review. (Ref 016)

3. Risk . Review the effectiveness of the criteria and implement the Governance and Risk

Assessment and recommendations to improve the clarity within the tables. (Ref Advisor

Acceptance 017)

Criteria Tables

4. Risk Appetite . Build on the high-level statements to develop a series of risk Council and

acceptance principles, tolerances and limits to further enhance Executive

the definition of the risk appetite. Management Team

. Communicate the risk appetite to all internal and external

stakeholders.

. Implement mechanisms to ensure that risk-taking is within the

defined appetite. This would include the development,

aggregation and reporting of key risk indicators to provide an

organisational-wide view of the risk exposure.

. Ensure there is a mechanism in place whereby any risks which sit

outside the defined risk appetite are escalated to the Council for

review and decision-making. (Ref 01 8)
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Element Actions Responsibility

5. Risk . Define the mechanism by which new risks are identified and Risk Review Group

Mana[\ement managed on an ongoing basis (e.g. any new risks since the

Integration development of strategic/operational plansl.

. Review the processes for managing contracts, partnership, joint

ventures or alliances, to ensure risk allocation is carefully

considered and clearly allocated such that all parties accept

responsibilities for the allocation and have a clear understand of

how the risk sharing arrangement will work.

. Review the process by which low probability/ high consequence

risks events ("black swan events"l are identified and managed

and implement scenario testing to ensure that the City can

recover qu kly from major disruptions /outages and setbacks.

(Ref 0191

6. Risk . Review the Strategic Risk Register in the context of the Strategic Executive

Management Planning documentation 1.0 ensure that risks associated with the Management Team

Hierarchy specific and agreed strategies are identified and appropriately

managed. (Ref 01 111

. Project and Event Risk Management should be integrated within

the overall RMF and risk registers incorporated into a single risk

information repository. (Ref 01121

. Clarfy how the strategic, operational and project risk registers

interface and align with each other (e.g. how the City reports on

projects which may have an impact on strateg or operational

activities. (Ref 01131

7. Controls . Implement a mechanism to highlight those risks with a potential Governance and Risk

Assessment and catastrophic impact to ensure that the appropriate level of Advisor

Assurance assurance is in place (such as scenario testing and routine

internal/external auditsl. (01 161

8. Risk Treatment . As part of the implementation of a new Risk Management Governance and Risk

Information System, Incorporate the recommendations noted in Advisor

01 18 and 01 19.

9. Risk . Develop a Strategic Plan for the City which is aligned with the Executive

Monitoring, high-level Community Strategic Plan and outlines the specific Management Team

Reporting and strategies and associated risks.

Review
Review these strategies and risks annually to ensure the City.

remains on track to achieve the 4-year goals defined in the

Community Strategic Plan. (Ref 01 20)
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Element Actions Responsibility

. Ensure that the City’s incident management process (including

the type of incidents/losses/near misses recorded, any

investigation processes, root cause analysis etc.) links back to the

risk profile to provide valuable insight into the assessment of the

perceived risks. Key risk indicators should be established and

monitored to give early warning of control failure and emerging

risk issues. (Ref 01 23)

10. Capability and . Develop and implement a structured training program to ensure Human Resources

Support that all accountable officers have the skills to be able to identify, Manager and

assess and manage risks within their own areas of responsibility Governance, and

and are held to account for monitoring and reporting risk Risk Advisor

information in accordance with the RMF. (Ref 0124)

11. Continuous . The City has developed a set of risk management performance Governance and Risk

Improvement indicators to act as "lead" indicators as to the effectiveness of the Advisor

RMF. It is important that these indicators are assessed, and the

status reported on an annual basis in order for the Intended

value to be derived. It is recommended that the RMF is reviewed

by exception once per year - with a formal review taking place

once every 2/3 years. (Ref 01 26)

Thank you for submitting your RMF and associated documentation for review. Please be aware that 

changes in legislation, community expectations and tolerances, lessons learned etc. mean that the bar 

for the application of risk management is never static.

As an example, the ISO Risk Management Standard, which the Australian Standard reflects, has recently 

been updated to 15031000:2018 (see https://www.iso.org/standard/43170.html).This has yet to be 

reflected in the Australian Standard but will do so over the coming months and needs to be considered. 

Our observations in Appendix 2 have attempted to reflect what this may mean for The City in the 

context of your current Risk Management Framework.

If you have any queries, or require clarification, please contact me on 08 9321 9292 or 

sandra.hackett@riskwest.com.au.

Sandra Hackett 

Partner. Riskwest 

22nd October 2018
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Appendix 1

SANDRA HACKEn M.Eng (Hans), MAICD

Sandra has over twenty-five years’ experience in providing a range of strategy, risk, project 

management and governance services to industry and government, including the provision of strategic 

risk advisory and facilitation services to major state infrastructure and service delivery projects. She has 

considerable experience working with Boards, both as an advisor as well as a Board member for 12 

years. She is currently a Non-Executive Director of St Bartholomew’s House and Chair of the 

Nominations, Governance and Risk Committee. With a background in engineering, Sandra brings to the 

team experience in project management and engineering across a range of industries including 

Chemicals, Petrochemicals, and Oil and Gas. She has a Master of Engineering Degree in Chemical 

Engineering and is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
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Appendix 2

ISO 31000: 2018

February 2018 saw the release of the new ’ISO 31000: 2018 - Risk Management - Guidelines’. This 

document was prepared by ’Technical Committee IsoITC 262, Risk Management’, and this second, 

technically revised edition cancels and replaces the first edition (ISO 31000:2009).

Historically, the challenge for many organisations and individuals has been their inability to recognise 

the International Risk Management Standard as non-prescriptive, principles-based and leadership- 

focused rather than compliance and certification orientated.

The main changes in the updated International Standard are:

Whilst remaining structured along the previous ’Principles, Framework & Process’ model, it has 

been reduced in length, had some of the content re-written in simpler language and been 

streamlined with a view to it fitting with multiple contexts. 

The ’Principles’ section has been reduced from 11 to 8. 3 principles have not disappeared but 

have been articulated within the 8 remaining principles and ’value creation and protection’ now 

sits at the core. The City’s RM Policy and RMF would need to be updated to reflect this change. 

The ’Frome work’ commentary highlights the need to establish an organisational framework 

which is suitable, adequate and effective. This means placing an even greater emphasis on the 

need for governance, leadership and commitment, particularly to ensuring risk management is 

integrated. Leadership and integration are leant heavily upon in the new Standard. Integration 

of risk management into the structure, operations and processes of organisations is highlighted, 

including in strategic planning, business activities, organisation-wide decision making and 

performance management. Given the ever evolving external and internal context for many of 

us, the need for greater flexibility and iteration throughout is emphasised. 

The ’Process’ itself remains significantly unchanged, although ’Establishing the context’ has now 

been refined to ’Scope, Context, Criteria’ and ’Recording and Reporting’ is required throughout 

the circular process (in addition to the existing ’Monitor and Review’ requirement). The 

language within the RMF would need to be updated to reflect this change and align with the 

new Standard.

The new standard can be downloaded through the ISO website (https://www.iso.orgfstandard/ 
65694.html) and will no doubt soon be adopted by Standards Australia as the updated AS/NZS 31000.

71)
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Disc/almer 

This report IJas been compiled based all illformation provided by the client and is illtended solely for the information and 
internal use of the c/ienL It has beef! prepared by Rlskwest (ABN: 30 573 849449). III tile C;rCLII71scances, IJe/thel Riskwest 

nor any of its agents or employees give any warranty in relatIOn to the accuracy or relability of ally information cOlltalned 
in this report. Riskwest disclaims allliabihty to OIlJ’ party (including any indirect or consequential loss or damage or loss 

of profits) ill respect of or in consequellce of anything done or omitted to be dOlle by any parry In reliallce, whethu In whole 
or partial, UpOIl a’ty IlIformat/oll,
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1. Background

Local Government (Audit Regulations) 2009 regulation 14 requires Local governments to complete a 

statutory compliance return (Compliance Audit Return or CAR) annually and have the return adopted 

by Council. In order to address these requirements, in September 2018, Riskwest were engaged to 

undertake a review of the 2017 Compliance Audit Return (2017 CAR) to carry out a review of the 

evidence to support the responses provided by key staff members in the Compliance Audit Return.

The documents reviewed as part of this exercise are listed below:

AN (1-3-15) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Authority to Advertise Form 

AN (1-4-6-7-9-11-16-19-21) - Tenders for Prov of Goods & Serv - Procurement - Tender 

Register 

AN (1-11) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Contract Procurement & Project Plan 

AN (5) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Addenda Report (RFT27-2018) 
AN (6-17) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Tender Download Instructions 

AN (8-20) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Tender Evaluation 

Recommendation 

AN (1O) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Proc- Letter of Acc (C100457) 
AN (18) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Addenda Report (RFSOl-2017) 

AN (22) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Letter of Acceptance (Cl00446) 
AN (22) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - Unsuccessful letter (RFS01-2017) 

AN (23-25) - Tenders for Prov Goods & Serv - Procurement - SC38 Procurement Policy 

DA 53.58 (4) 2nd Adv New lease Zenitas HNA Trusco Pty lid Lifecare Physio (WA) 

DA 53.58(3) 120517 West Australian- Cockburn ARC - Physio Section 3.58 Advertisement 

SO (1) - Finance - Ordinary Council Meeting - 20 April 1999 

SD (1) - Finance - s7.1A - Ordinary Council Meeting - 10 April Dee 2015 

SO (3) - Audit & Strategic Finance Committee Meeting - 17 November 2016 

SD (4) - Finance - Reference 57.3, 7.6(3) 

SO (5) - Finance - Reference Audit Reg 10 

SO (10-11-12-13-14) - Finance - Reference Audit Reg 7 

DG (1) - Delegation of Power - Special Council Meeting - Minutes - 23 October 2017 

DG (1) - Disclosure of Interest - Mayor Howlett - Ord Council Meeting - 9 Feb 2017 

DG (1) - Disclosure of Interest - Mayor Howlett - Ord Council Meeting - 12 October 2017 

DG (1) - Elections - Register-of-Electoral Gift - Cr Portelli -1-Jan-2017-to-31-Dec-2017 (Page 2) 

DG (3) - Delegation of Power - Ordinary Council Meeting - Minutes - 13 April 2017 

DG (3) - Delegation of Power - Ordinary Council Meeting - Minutes - 13 July 2017 

DG (3) - Delegation of Power - Ordinary Council Meeting - Minutes - 14 December 2017 

DG (4) - Delegation of Power - Ordinary Council Meeting - 20 April 1999 

DG (4) - Disclosure of Interest - CoC-primary Returns-EM 

DG (5-7-1O-12) - Delegation of Power - Ordinary Council Meeting - Minutes - 8 June 2017 

DG (6) - Disclosure of Interest - CoC-Annual Returns-EM 

DG (6-8-9-11) - Delegation of Power - CoC - Register of Delegations 
DG (7) - Disclosure of Interest - CoC-Annual Returns-Staff 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Allen - OCM 13 July 2017 - Item 17.1 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Allen - OCM 14 December 2017 -Item 17.2 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Eva - OCM 13 April 2017 -Item 22.1 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Eva - OCM 13 July 2017 - Item 15.6 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Houwen - OCM 13 July 2017 - Item 15.6 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Portelli - OCM 13 April 2017 -Item 22.1
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DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Portelli - OCM 14 September 2017 -Item 15.7 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Pratt - OCM 13 April 2017 -Item 22.1 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Sands OCM - 14 December 2017 - Item 18.2. 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Sweetman - OCM 13 April 2017 - Item 22.1 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Cr Sweetman - OCM 13 April 2017 - Item 22.1 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Mayor Howlett - OCM 9 February 2017 -Item 1S.6 

DG (13) - Disclosure of Interest - Mayor Howlett, OCM 14 December 2017, Item 12.1. 

DG (16) - Disclosure of Interest - Notifiable-Gift-Register-1-Jan-2017-to-31-Dec-2017 

Standing Orders Local Law 2016 - As Amended 9 November 2017 

Delegated Authorities Policies and Position Statements Committee - Minutes -18 May 2017 

Signed Agreement - Audit Contract - Provision of External Audit Services - Ending 30/6/2017 
Macris & Partners

It should be noted that the engagement did not constitute an audit.

The review was undertaken by Sandra Hackett (Partner, Riskwest). See Attachment 2 for a summary 

biography of the reviewer.
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2. Methodology

The methodology adopted for this review was based on a desktop validation of each of the responses 
made by the following accountable officers of the City:

Daniel Arndt 

Don Green 

Stuart Downing 

Cliff Mc Kinley 

Antonio Natale

An evaluation tool was prepared which contained the following information:

Item of Information

Compliance Audit 

Return Document

Compliance Area 

Item Number 

Reference to the Local Government Act or Regulation 

CAR Questions 

Response 

Reference to document or source of information which evidences the 

response to the questions 

Name of Respondent 

Validated (Yes/No) 

Validation Comments

CAR Response and 

supporting 

information provided 

by City Personnel

Validation by Riskwest

Each of the respondents were asked to submit relevant supporting documentation. The information 

provided was reviewed by Riskwest and a meeting was held with the Governance and Risk 

Advisor (16th October 2018) to observe the documentation captured in the TechOne ECM and 

ATIAIN systems, and to clarify any remaining questions.

The findings from the review are summarised in Section 3 and the details shown in Attachment 1.
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3. Key Findings

Based on the documentation provided (listed in Section 1) and observing random samples of records 

within the TechOne EeM and AITAIN information management system, the review demonstrates 

that the City has provided a sufficient amount of reasonable evidence to support the responses 
made in the 2017 Compliance Audit Return. There are no identified matters of materiality which 

have arisen from this review that would indicate the responses are invalid.
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Attachment 1 

Compliance Audit Return Validation Report

22nd October 2018
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City of Cockburn - Compliance Audit Return 2017 

Review and Validation of Responses 

October 2018
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:~:~~I)(!~. 18G WerC’l ,II delef,illtlOn\ to the CEO In ’M’rUnl ’1’6 HtllStfl 01 tk!If&atJOII’, Don Glrn

A le&Jster of dtlqiJllOM relevant to the Ch+ef (:HCUU\Ie Offlcer.nd hH employees fS to b(! kepI 

;"end ’l’Vt@w(>datJunooce l!f’y(manel"lyear(sS.46(11,Il)OIIn.Act) If ill per~ IS e.o’trClSInI II 

IJOWe’ ()I dulv thit’ they h..\I"Ix.~ le841led. the Ac.lll!QUllfll th;lillltCOr’d~ be kepi W~r’I(j1 the 

de’tgiu:ed ilUlhoflly Is used (\.5.46(1) of lhe Act). 
TM tKord IS (0 contam Ihe following informilbon; 

. HoW 1M. p!trlon e).erns;ed the powe, Of dl’5cttMa.ct the dOty. 

. Whfon Ih~ P,~on I! l?fcIH"d the powtr Of dt$Chllf,~ the dillY; and 

. Thf: ptt~ 0’ M.\oe\ 01 penon~. olh~ Ih#n Coum:J! 01 CommrHtt’ ~m~’" Of cmPQYC!t’~ 01 the 

loc.I IOVftnmeflU, du<<t~y .IIKteby lh. CI.’elt!Seol the power 01’ UM d~iJlie of 1M dvt., (ree 19 

LocllJ Goverrm’lnt (AdmlOlSt’4rlionl ReluJiitJOns 1996).

..

yes

The Cilyof Cockburn IH~II’S1e.r 01 OeJ4tIl.IIOIl~ contains a Itst of the InurumenlS to be UU!O 10 

d.l~mlf\. Ine delegatf’d aulhotny. The rec:o<<h of how the delrgJlllorlS.vt!! "’dr(;l~ I’ tont..Jned 

with In Ihe lKhOne EeM S~terll. amples of iK’1111e<:Ofds 01 t’..lIer’Cised delegations wert 

demonstrated

.s5.44{21
ell!.1I dcleloiltron... byth1!’ C(O 10 ~y employee in

Yo> Reil~ter of ~eg..tlom Don Gt"een
wrl1ll’\i,

10 S~.45(l)(bl
Were all deas.lons by the c~nc:illo a~ 01 rt’YOl. a

,., dlnl’ry COUrIol MHbllg" 8/6/ 17 COn Gr<<n
e1clatton made bv llb~M. majol’ll’(.

"~.46(11
HilS the CEO ~ept iI fell,ster’ olll’ dtt1egilluoos m..~

Y.. Re<<,,"lel of Deleeauolls Don Gr~n
u~ Ihlr Act to hlm..nd to OUlfof emptOV"$.

ere all dtielallOI’lt ~e unde. DlVtJtOn "01 P.,t 5

1l 5S.46{21 of the An rev\ewed by the dt!leSollM .1 lust once y., Ord:n.uyCounal MeE:tmg + 8/6/17 Don Green

Uflns the 2016/2017 flnanc131 ve.,..

~~.46(31 AdINt
Old .ll Pt"f!lOn’ e"-ercf$lnl iI del~led pow!,:r or dUly

EIK1.,onlc Contenl Manltmenl System. c:.~fl bolt
11 unde, t~e Ac.t lep. on all DC(a,ron... a wrllten rH.Ofd V*., Don G,e..n

Reg 19
I.Isreq\llrttd.

prOVIded rf.. spot check Is required.

OI!i(~(o,"’1’ of InltrM’!

M r.’.f.rKe Uw docwmMt 01 WUICP whkh

..., MdI’II."IKt’ Que,tion M pom,e ~ the respOIlK’ 10 the quel ptU)I! itbo Mt.’SJlontieot

AIIKhIMdcK;urllf’lIt.

rf a member drj;(krsed ~n ’nt~e’l. dId ~/w. ~"_e

that they d,d not ,emaln pl~1 to p~rtldpale tn any

1 5).67
’’<<:USYOn Of’ decilllon-maklnl Pfocedu~ I~ltnl to the

,.. orc:IJI’I.IIrv CDUnC11 MHtlni’ 11/10/17 Don Green
ntatlel In whICh the rntereSI wu dlKlosed (not

triCludttl& Plltt!(lpatlOtI apO’r{31s l,antllCl unct~ .681

S"iltlf18 St4t 11ema abOW

Yo<

D.cu..on) 10 lI,th., !evok. Of ~ll’I4!nd 11 1~ ~bon Wt’re r..n.wed/recomm.nded by the Oel4!giJtlld 

AuthooUH. Potla~ and PojrUon StoiIlf’!l’Ieflts COfTImrtlH (refereou Dele.a~led Authonues PoIK.let 

and PosII’on Sl:iti"menl~ CommHlet Mlmlle) 18 May 1017) and welfl adopted ""Council at ml! al 

the OfdJn .ry CounCIl ,.1<<tl"8 JUM 8 2017 (b’( 3b~kn. In.lJOrrl’(l.

,.. See lI’!m 8 above

~11.mIO~e

,.,

See rtfln 8 above

,..

V,II.i,l, I 

\,1,1.1 ,,( mil""" 
y, -/N )

OrdM!~ryCouncrl MMllOl- 14/l2/17 noted 11 wnparualAVIMlerest unoet wtuch therlll’ no 

fl!fllJlr.OlCn! IOf thpMemWr IOluvt!ttle,oomlftelel tOSUI~naOn~~fS lOcal ta’tJ 2016 M 

Amended 9 tlovembtof 2017 Page SO) 

Yes Ofd,n.a:yCounat Meetrni - 11/1/17 noled.. prOlOmny1ntflfest .and aI)O,,*,ut~d the ~Ime the 

~\~ jefllM room and the I!me lhe Mitmbotf’ ft!1\1fne-d.

S@lsbOllit

2 ~,68(2)

Were alt dl!crsIOOS made und.<< s.et:llon ~.68(11. and the 

e,;;tent of poi!I"tM;’P.allon ~tIowed. rec()f"~ In the 

mtnul~ of COOodl and CoromrltH m~tlm..\.

Nt. Don Gr-een Yo,

3 55.1"3

Were (llSdo\UJH undCf \’Ktlon 5 6S or ~ ’0 rl!COI’ ln 

the minutes 01 the meetilll.al wtuctr 1M disclosure W~J 

made.

Yes Ofdinitfy Councl Mt>etltll’ 14/12/17 Don Green Yes

rhe Ordinary Council MettJ1ll,mIlU1M prcMded t~s ~r the document It ’11 on P’tge (II show 

exlmples of where dlsc~re5 were minuted.
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’911’ 11 (J’ 2J..

’5.1$(1) Admm W.n a Pf1mMY r Hurn lodacd by 311 "f;\V~ ~eC1ed
V.. Primary Return. CN; sa,Mi) & Sepal oVKh

R~ n~rnl1 mr:om~f’ w.thtn three mol’\ths 01 th~r UNt d’r.

N/A
~ 7)(1) Admin u a pnmary return kxt&ed by all newty deg&n H~d

N/^
Hea n fOfm’] mptoyeet. within Ihl", months of lhetr $un day

55.76(1) Admin IS an .nnuallt!t\.1rn looged by all contmumg elected
V.. StAtUI "eporl .!lect-.d Member 2017

Reg "3 Fotm 3 mtmben by II AU8US1 7017

~S 76(1) Admin Wil~ an aunu.lret\lrn Iodaed by all designated
V., 51.alu\ fl pol"l . StitH 2011

Feta2J FOfm) e~~ byJI AUlusI2017

DonG"’!!!n

T~ Mtm~, ’1Utl d.11l! and Colle of Prim.tv RelUfll’Of lh. I~Wly elteCletI ~"lbIlf"W.\ ov’dll’d 

<Illd lilt: (OIIfinll(!’d thallhe ertv ha" Comphld with Ih., IC!<IulferTlenlV..

N’,,,

Don Creen Nt.\

Don Grl’ l

Annual Relums for 10 Members Wtit’ noted on the SUluS II/port as bewtC submItted WIthin the 

reqUiled hrne"~.
Yo,

Confirmed by Go\r4t’NlllCe:and R’>k Atfvl~1

OonGrHIl y",

8 sS.n

Onleutpt of it pnma.yo’ MlllU<lI ,,"urn, did the CEO, 

(Of the MllVOfI Pfl!Sident tn lhe ellw 01 tne C(O’\ 

return) on aD OCU\KlonJ. &lYe: wfitten aeknowlet 

of hll~ni nttflV~ tne ret.urn.

v"

Stal1.1\ report prOlltded conflrmed KMOW1edCeffif’111 GiU..

51all Repof’l showinc oK~nowlt’dl.ment date OoI’lGteen

~5.13(IH’) 
Admin

V.,

DId the ([0 kHp II ’e&i,,11i!f of Ini’fMlal Rei 21 rrotere~ts 

wllll:h (oot ne<! the rlltUfn..lodiled under W<lJOO S 7~ 

and S.lo

Dt-mofl)u-ated In AnAIN

Ve\ Contained Within AnAlN 001’ Glf’ell

Did the CEO Ir.eep a rtlll-tel of fmanelal intertSu. wtrrCh 

.5 88( 1.)(2) cont411ncd ~ "Kord 01 d"dowlos m.lde under M~CIIOIU 

10 Adm,n I Reg 28 5.65, 

.s.10 and 5.71, in Ihco 101111 pfHCfibed 11\ AdlnlnlSI~llon 

RtgulabOn 11.

De,nollsttated WI A.n AIN

Ve\ C:ontamed ~thl" AnA/ill Don"’"", V..

II 55.88(3)

Ha.~ th~ CEO le~’l!d all,etutns trOtn the rl.";"’f!’ 

wltflll . ttlSOf! <<.s.d to M . fM:uon II:quu ed to kxlt 

("t\lfn undtr stoltlon 5.75 oc- 5.76.

Yo,

Colltall~ wlltr.n ATTNN. Roo Award, n.m HO\Iw." 

Yei rtmoved 1r0,n ATTAIN ,u ustrSlhl1 rtqu...tt<I to IOdtl!: 

"’lu,n~

~mon}U..led In ATTI\IN

OOnGltefl

I] s5.88(41)

Havtl all r"tUlflli Iodj:ttd und.., ’1iC11S.1~ or S.’6 and 

removed from the ~ISler, ~ kept lor II period of al 

lei"" flve ’tears, IIlIff the ptlS who lodged the I GlIJt" 

a’Ad to b4’ II cw,w:iI f~’ 01 d’Sllnalcd 

._.

sS.101 Admin 

1.1 
RoglAC& Rul6 

01 Cooduc:t Rei 

II

Yo,
or~ln..ls k~pt by Records Ot:pirlme01 and archived 

lKCOfdtnltv

Ot-monstr..’lI&(t In AnAIN. Also demQn~tral.&d RKord$ M~.ioemtnl flroc:tl-es which def~ ttw! 

1~ltm~nt IOf lhe "uthl\’lrt& of ,.cord,.

DonGI"n V".

WhuI an ,!Htld mlmber Of an emplo~~. dl~dos.d an 

Ifll.,-@ilin a milltet" dlscuued al a COuncil Of committee 

m.<<’1nf! \vhe,e tMI, WU II~a\Onal)leo hf!lf In..! the 

ImpAl’t~lorv olrhe ptl~ haYlna tOff Inu~rflSl wou’d bt- 

adYt1’Sttv afletttd, W,U It ItcOfcMd In the tn!ou’tt’$.

Mfl:f l 10 O.sdO~Ut.j olln\.,-.."l, l1em I comments.

’e. o..dmary Counal M~l!’\I’ 1I;lrk:M.r( (lronC",@f’I Yo,

14 s5.70(21 Don GInn

15 s.s 70(11

eft. an trnp!ov(."ft hau an Ifl!(:,esl In iny matt0f" in 

respoect of whkl\ tht employe. prOVlded.cv.c. Of" 

,epoll dir-et"tly to (hi’ Council Of a ComrnrttM, did mal 

person dlsdose the nature 01 thallnlerHC wncn a"’lni 

Iht adVItc! Ot ,"pori. 

Wtltfe ..1’1 tmploy... dlS(\OSe<I ,n IIII"’’-SI und., s~ 

70(21, did that JHllson also dfKlos’i the e.:tent 01 that 

InI8~’ when requud to do sa bV the Cound or a 

omml1lH

N/A ’fA

N/^ Don"’~ NfA

16 
~!I 103(3) Admm Hu the CCO kept iI rClDter 01 all noUI.ablc glll~ 

Ref, lAB rec..",ed by Council "lfll’Ibe,s and ~p~s.
V.,

ContaJned ’" "-ITAIN & W~lte. NOllhabte Gills 101 

th/17 31/l2J17
Ve.

NOllfJablt Gifts R~’\tef COf’l!.aJm ,ec:Dld~ of flits. CompleteMlu of the lei’’’;!{!\’ tan not be ~~s~ued

DonGI""

{)kpo>>lol P’IOPUII’f’

\..lId.1od 
V,I oj,I .",e (""".."" 

V,,’!N,

.’

.6W ,eIMf’IWfl the docuflW:ftt Of WHPC.wl\kh 

evlde",,-~ the r"pot~ to 11-. qut’;5:11un. pk!:aM"boO 

.altac:hthtodoc.umwt.

R~\ponchml
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Ijage Ji. 01 u..

I $3.51(1j
rw-) local pubt!c ftlCe 11:’’’’’ prior 10 dI~ for ’IItr’f 

~ty not dH>p~ oi by pub6Ic ila.:lion tendf:r 

tJ;Cfpt Whert. GlU!Ied by SectJon Of! 3.58{51l .

"""fs.e"*,t pt~d.

,.,
Wtif AuWMian Adftrl Cud;burn ARC- Phy\io wetJorl 

..51
OiWIi<<;1 Arnett ,,,

2 Sl.5at~)

~e the IM covt’fnment dlspoMd of pr~1y 
undftf .sectlOtll.58(ll, did it prOVldil cktail"..$ 

iP’eK:fib4!d by .Wllhon a.SI(41.ln ,"" required Ioc:.t 
fpubic notice fOf nd’l di~ of prop.

~~rMnt ptovtdl’d.

,.,
Adwr1~’ ~’ l.51l.Ol ]3 Dor~ 

, 

"_.""
o.nI~ Atf’dl ,..
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P gP. B Of l.L

No Re’er~fl(~ (lu..,I n R61~1

[IKllom

P$t!..,... ,efen-Me t~ docuntWII 01 SOUIt:e w+tk:h 

N.,JlOO~ fNkienc~ the r!!lpo,,,,,, to 1M qoest~ P1e.llM. MSO 

all;tthlhforkw:umt’ol.

V,!id,!,’,1 
v.1 ’I" 0’" ""’",,’’ 

.,’,/ll"

0i<I the CEO .SI:tbIlSh and "1II’"’iillf’I an eltclor-aol .,f! 

H!..SI"’, .md .nsure thaI a" ’dr:;do1ouH! 01 i,lt’’lorllu 

1 (Ieet Mtg lOG (I) p:=e:: I~ c::~~~~~~_:::~ I~Ye t::~~ wert 
rl!(.f:lpt by .hl!- no ",’1(1 In oil manMf that dearly 

1di!n1iI~ and dlsUn.u’shts 1M (~ldR’.!o .

~Under SKtlau 5.82 and SolU of the loca’ GovemrMnl ct 1!)95. the City mu’il provide ~ publIC 

I ear~let’ 01 tll" and lriIvtI tomnbutlDnS made LO stall ..nd [lKted Membef"s. Thlt e".....r~ that the 

actlonl 01 uolIff ilnd I:IKled Mernben are Iran~p.it!’efll. accountable ill!(l et uut.-

v’"
RtIISI4!t-of.EI4K1otal Go’t Cr POft(!ll1 -l.J~n J:Ol7 10-1 I 

1)e(:.20 17 {Pilse 2)
S2DI7 Glf~ & Tr.llvel’l’gl\Ii!’ on ’he Clly 01 Cockburn Websale Iref 

hnpJJ /’Www.cockbu,n.wi1.BOY au/Coun(11{ About coufICIl/Gov~n~nc:e/Glh\.and- fmvet. 

Contllbuuon!il

OonGr"’l v"

rln~l’ICfl

Pt.~se ’t!ltf.1Kt! the ",n~1 Of SO\Jf(t whICh 

R.e~poMt! llV\ds the , pCIR)e 10 th.e questlOf!. Pie.SiIt adO 

attKh Ih~ docurnMI.

V,I"t.Io.1 
v.’ 01,1 "’" "II"’"’’ 

V..,/N’
He Refen’nce QuestIOn Respondent

1 ~7.1A

Has tht;: 10001Iovt:,n~nl enabbhflt an /lUdrt 

comm,tlH aod ippolnltd membotu by ab\oIutf~ 

~tflattOfd.:tnU W’lthH!Cl’on 7.1 11,0’ the’ Act,

NOZ s7 18

\\’he,.. aloc:alloye,nment dfltenmn<td to de",ate to 

.1.1 au<M ton\n’lIUH an..,. peu Of cklUIit!. undt. POlU 7 of 

the Act, di.d It do 100 by .b-.olulf!’ m.jont..,.

v""l 51 1
WIIU the perionl’l appointed bV Ihe toQlsowmment 

to be II’~ auditor, a 1l!’&lilered compaflv..!.ldltOl.

v., Ordmarv Council M~ttng . 8 Oec.embe, 201.6

Item }4,) Deputy Mavor( Reeve-fowkes SECONDfD Clr 5 POl1~h that the ’Komrni!ndloOon b

adopted 

CARIfI(0’3/0
4 ~1. 3. 76(l)

Wu the pen-on Of pet"son~ appo,;nted by th4llOC:.lI 

Government 10 beluaudnOf. polflteobYMI ~ 

malOtlty dKi$k)n 01 ~ouncll.

y"S Aud.t Ih:t: 10

as tho AtldltOt’S rePOl1’Of the flmmcl<l.l ~.II. ended 30 

June "’01’1 IIKf!’iVed by thtl kM:a18OVefnn~1\1 vnthUllO 

days of completion 01 tht IU(iJl.

v., Otdlllary Counc.1 MeetJni. 8 OIi!cemb l0166 s7.9tll

Wu the A,lor’!, rl!pott ’Of" the Ilnanc:/.II yea. *"Iaed 30 

UM 2017 IKelwd v the loul governme:nt byl! 

Oecembtf 201/.

v’"7 57.11A(lj

’vVhftrt tilt I~ aoytmment ditUlfllllN’d thu maltel"S 

...~li"dl" the :wdiIOf’, ’~llJf"1>~r~unde, s7-’ II} of 

the A,n required actlOO to be takt1l by thf! loul 

goyernfTl4mt, WI) thilt Uon unde(takl"fl

It@m 18.5 nOIHf motion moved by Como"I4sSlonl!r Jori<!Men, Seconded Smltnson.In(! Cuned.

’tM Ordin,lIY Counol MMMl’ 20 jl 1999 St~rt Oowna"& Ves

The,e W.li no ,-@rCf@.ncelo the IIgf~nt betl’J Ufl~nlnlOUs.

vO< su.mtl DownJnl

Yo,
^-udll & Slra1f!&1C fmanu Commit lee MeebnS. 11 

NOY~lbea 7016

lI~m 14. t Macri Paf1n~r) appointed in the aty’) ht~mat Auditor

Stuart DoWnlne

SlOan Downing Vo<

v..
TI,* Audil ~pOI1 was :kRn~ at the Auellt & StraU~I’c 

FlrUnc~ Comlmll" on 16 NOYrntbe1lO17

A.LIdlt COmplehon Rl.’pott to the’ ;! COmn\llt ror the ’tUf Comp~ted 

$ubnvtted 8 Hovwnbi!f 20U ~d stln.d on 17th Nov.

S1t~l/t 00.....1\11"1.<<

v.,
nle Audit Report WiI) ft’cl!ived by the (./1’( on 

111/12/2017
Stuart Dowmni

NO Ulat! rS were raMd In thl! INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO: RATEPAYERS OF CITY Of: 

COCKBURN (I’!!f Audit & SI"’tl:r;1C (1I\Inl;. Commltl’!!e MmUleJ I or Thu~d.V, 16 l’f<Nembt!r 10171

NfA NO m:m~n ";lI"~ Uy !hl! AudttOf In Ihe Audn Ril’p(H1 Stu...,’ OOwrll"l

!Ii S1.1M ("I

Wh*,l:lhe loc:aJ IO\ltfllmilit tenTllI\t’d that rnafttl’S 

ra ed In the auditor’s r~ (prI!P~I-e<I uncle’ s7.9 (I) 

of tht! Act) requIred acuon 10 be tltken by the Ioc:.ll 

1!00001lment. was _ r potl pi"f’p;J,ed on any acnon!. 

und<<taken.

NO 1~Itf:r!, W9Ce ’aI$oI:O ~ Ihe INOCPENDENT j\uorrQR’S R[PORT TO; RArEPAY(RS or CII-Y or 

COCKBURN (’ f AudIt &. SlrnlellC Finance COm/Mite Mlnule1 For Thunday, 16 NOIft-mbtl 20171

N/A
No ~tten r~tS~ by Ihll AudltCll" in Ow Au ,t 

R.port
Sl\Qn Downing V~
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1’14(:122

’) i7.11o\ (41

re Iht Ioc~ IfO\’t’trlm~liI d.le"’lI~ Ihat maneu 

r’~d In Ul(’ aIoldIIOf’S report (Pfep;,red ulld s7..9 (i) 

01 the Act) req\lll.~ oKbon 10 be t.ken by Ihe lonl 

pemmenl. w.~. copy of the rll’f)Of1 rorwiitOOd 10 the 

Mmllotet by Iht! f.’nd of 1M fln4nCla’ yUt 01’ 6,nontn\ 

allet thO ’I’m rtpo<< prtpared vndtl’ $1,9 was I~,,"’ed 

by tht loGa1lOYtH’Irnfnl whtchever waJ: the lal~l in 

lime

No matlCl\ faKed by the Audrtol In the A.udlt 

..-
Nt^ Stuart Downl". Yo,

U(lINnfl’S W4!fe fa/sed In lilt: INOt:PfNI)(NI AuOtroft’S R(PORr TO: RAf(PAY[RS Of eHY OF’ 

co8URN (rotf A.udrt & Slta1tt" nNn(:C COmrn.tUt Mlf1uttS rOt’ TlIul~y. 16 Novembt’1 20111

10 Aodtt Rea 7
Old the .aareellM!flt bi’twftn thtlocal ROv.mment.rld

,.,
Refiu to Audit & Su aUillc rt"anct Comrnllt_ MHllna .

SlWr1 Down/I’ll
lIS audltCll’ Include 1t\4l: Ob)ec1I’1H of Ihe audit 17 November 2016

"Aud" Rei 7
Old lhe acrHmlnt betWftn the local lowmrmnt M’td

V..
Refet to Audit & Stritelk: Flnanu Comtnftlu ~il"lInlli-

Stuan 00wnJn.a
ils ituclltor Induck! the KOpe of lhe ~udll. 17 Novembf!f 2016

"Audit Rei 1
(M the ~lrf!eme"1 bf!tw@4!n ll\e loa! 100000mment and

V..
Ref’ll to AUdit 8 Slr~le&1c Fin~na Committ"f!f!. Met’tlnc -

Stuart Oowninl
.n auchtOt Irttlude ~ plan for the _loIdft t 7 November 20]6

Old tn. itllf!fi’fMfl1 ~h"’ff" the! loeM lovemmef\t and
Rt!i~ 10 Audl1 8. 51rat’flllC: fin:wxe SIl’aIl~i;C rlnane<<!

"Audit R~17 .I’S: auchtOf’ indulH det3lh of tne femo"ef-atlon a.id v..
Comm lte. MMtU’t.. 17 HoWmbe, 2016

5IU"I/IOO\\"..1"1

..~ \0 be paid to t.M _utlltor,

Ojd I~ afet!ment betwft’n lto.1ocaI governmem and

"Audit Rei 1
It! ~udnor mdude the method 10 be used by I.he kKal

,..
Refel to AUdit & 5lra~CIt Finance 5tral@fK Flnanu

Stuan OowninC
8ovemn"lf!:nt ’0 communtute WIth, and wpply ommltt~ Meelllll- 11 Novem~ 2016
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s5.56 Admit! 
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UoiI!i tilt locallQl.’etnm4!f’l1 .ated a COf’poule 
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lO/6hol7 Mw’’i & Partners
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mmUle No. SIlO, MOVEO Of’! HoU\ven SeCOuOED Clf ’.i Portelli that the recommendallon be 

oldopt~. 
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Marltol Tobin
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,..
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’’’’

7 5S.~6

Hu the I()(;a! gowlnment ;adopted.. WotkfOfGe 111.n n- 

If Yts..n Cornmenu piau_ Pf"ovkle dale ollhe ment 
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NlA The CEO IS the complants officer, however no

nmlOf bleaches loml a COtInol!l1ember resulted Ifl

H<ts the complaints Clfficer lor the I~ iO\’emment slllndards pa~ ordellng the complatnl to be made

2 \S 111(1)
m..nrillned .. r~slef of CQmpl.aiflt’l whkh recOfdl ail

y..
publlCfy censored as speofled l th Otdef 01

DorI Glee"
compIMnu th.U ’HUIt In Ktkln UI~f ~.lIO(6)(bl or complaml was made apoaog!5e pubhcty as speafied

~,) in the orOOI 01 Ute petson agalfl5l whom te

comp~’"t was made undCftake tralfl’"9 as spcc;lhed

’" the Ofdel’

NtA The CEO IS the c.c.:all1ts otlcol ~Yevel no

minor tit-caches tOfr’n a council rnembef resulted III

Dotos lhe complMnu r~8Istf!f rNint.a,n.ed by the standards panel 04’denng the cornptalf’lllO be made
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000 (ilHlIl
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Do., the complainti ’flllt",... maintained by thr
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panel tmdsh;u occurred. III the Ol"del or die person agamst ...Vhom the
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I’l the order

NIA The CEO,~ the comptatnlS officer, howevC:f no
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iltlokh 11M! doculMnt.

)) S7 F&G Rei 
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,.,

Old the kx~ ,ov~nment lI’I....te teoden on ... ocas,OfU 

(~I<<. t’flterlna Into contr.l(ti IOf Ih<< wpl>iv of loods 

~rYit~1 where tile ron~dtf raUon un<k!f Ihe 

Of’ltrK.t wa).Of WJ)Opec\edtobt, wOfI.hmOfet~ 
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Loul Go.....rnment (FUnctJOflS & Glmerlll. R"lul.auom 

(subjKt 10 funcllonS and GeMi-al Rqulallon 11(2)).

Pubhc noue. tenoon. cornk.lCled as p:~’ tN ~lKted 

),OO":lI\ll on~,.1tel striit~IY.1Jo,e: Con,nl(l PrO(u,el~1 & 

PrOJect Plan....o thrt autMonty to aQvtrhSt! ’Ofm and In. 

tender le&:~tl!f a’f~tabl41 if! hard copy fil $.

Amolllo N~tale

"on4

NlA

.....,

.,.
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",.
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NI.

V..h.J..t..d 
V,lrl.!"’’!fn,,,,,,..,,’’ 

V.../N,’

hndeH MWIled pubhdy..s JKtr advtI’tJH!m9U’ in tnil! We~ttf" Auw;tll. ’Ter’ n "iI! mVrt!!d tor 

the loocb;.,nd Ml’VICti- POSITION IN PAPeR: loeitl Govtfnmelll Tender" CON1AC1; [Procurernenl 

OlltC fl. [PM/tlonl DATE LODGEO: McndJly n Month 2011), ACCOUNT NO: Gl 7’9O&6206,.a.s recOfded 
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2 F&G ReitZ

Old t,,.loc-’ IOVWt’J’In\t’:f11 (omply with F&G Rtj 1.2 

wtlfll dedd",g to enler Inlomuttrple contracts Jlher 

thin lnVl1l1\i tendus faf. Strli1e contne!.

’’’’

Mu1tlpllll.’ !.a(b alt faUt ana t:!Vid~lCcd by Iht! 
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.tViillilble \’lItn Proc:wemti!:l1t)
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C’HARlE SUlUVAN, DIRECTOR, ENGIN(ERING & WORKS, JOe June 2017, 

STVAR’f DOWNING, DIRCCTOR. t:’IN,l\NCl & CORPORA It SERVICES. lOI June 2011. 
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STEPttF-N CAIN, CHIEf rX[CUnv( OFflCfR, XX JutI" 2011
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ilddendum "re f@lereocvdtyll!l’e.;1fldh..\le b@en upl~ded 10 the ’Wppoltlflg Document,’ ’HKlIon. 
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Attachment 2 Biography of Reviewer

SANDRA HACKETT, M.Eng (Hons), MAICD 

Partner, Riskwest

Qualifications:

Master’s Degree in Chemical Engineering (M.Eng), University of Nottingham, U.K.

Accreditations & Certifications:

Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors

Professional knowledge and experience

Sandra has over twenty-five years of experience in providing a range of strategy, risk, project 

and governance services to government and industry. She has considerable experience 

working with Boards, both as an advisor and Board member for over 13 years and is currently 

a Non-Executive Director of St Bartholomew’s House and Chair of the Governance and Risk 

Committee. With a background in engineering, she brings also a broad range of industrial and 

project management expertise to the Riskwest team.

From January 2013, Sandra has been a Partner in Riskwest, a specialist management 

consulting firm providing risk-based consulting services to a broad range of corporate, 

government and community service organisations. Prior to 2013, Sandra spent 14 years as an 

independent risk management consultant and 12 years in a variety of project management 
and engineering roles across a range of industries including Power, Chemicals, Petrochemicals, 

and Oil and Gas.

Sandra has extensive experience in the development and implementation of risk management 
frameworks and programs across all levels of an organisation, with a specific focus on "smart" 

risk-taking and effective controls assurance. This assists organisations and stakeholders to 

understand and use critical risk information as an integral part of their oversight or 

management roles.

Sandra specialises in working with Boards and Executive teams to develop a greater 

understanding and awareness of the potential opportunities and threats facing organisations 

in the current climate of significant uncertainty and disruption. This includes the facilitation of 

workshops and planning sessions to provide the Board and Executive Team with an 

understanding of
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o the mechanisms that should be in place to deliver an appropriate level of visibility over 
the "material" risks facing the organisation, including those relating to major projects and 

initiatives; 

o the confidence that risks are being managed to a level which sits within the range of 

"acceptable risk taking" and; 

o the nature and magnitude of emerging strategic opportunities and threats and how these 

are identified, measured and acted upon

Over the past 18 months, she has assisted and continues to support Boards and Executive 

Teams to understand, develop and implement the principles, limits and measures which 

underpin optimal risk taking in the context of organisational risk appetite and tolerance. The 

organisations involved cover a range of different sectors including large privately-owned 

enterprises, government trading enterprises and significant not-for profit entities.

Sandra is also the nominated Riskwest Partner acting as State Advisor to several major 
infrastructure projects, providing strategic risk advisory and facilitation services to the Project 

Directors and Joint Venture teams. These include the $1.2B Perth Stadium project and the 

$680M New Museum project.

Specific relevant expertise and experience includes: 

o Development and implementation of enterprise risk management frameworks with focus 

on alignment and integration with existing governance, accountability and decision- 

making structures and mechanisms 

o Development and implementation of risk appetite statements and risk tolerance 

measures and indicators (lead and lag) for a broad range of industries and sectors 

o Project risk governance, risk appetite and the integration of risk management into the 

project context 

o Risk-based .evaluation of proposals, government acts, licences and contractual 

arrangements 

o Facilitation of workshops and planning sessions for Boards, committees, executive groups 
and project teams focussing on a range of different risk issues and outcomes. 

o Analysis of business processes across a wide range of different organisations to develop 

tailored strategies and processes for the effective management and reporting of risk, 
whilst at the same time ensuring that the processes are fully integrated with the required 

compliance frameworks. 

o Facilitation of over 1500 workshops and planning sessions for government and industry 

boards, committees, executive groups and project teams focussing on a range of different 

issues and outcomes, including opportunity and risk analysis, options analysis, SWOT and 

strategic planning. 

o Development and delivery of over 100 training seminars covering different aspects of 

strategic, operational and project risk management. 

o Development and delivery of incident investigation and root cause analysis methodology 
and training. 

o Project management and engineering roles on a range of industrial chemicals, power 

generation and petrochemical projects.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT (JULY - NOVEMBER 2018)

Risk Owner: Director Governance and Community Services 
Risk Name: Community Services Major Projects

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating
Failure to coordinate Community Lack of due diligence
Services major projects on behalf of the Lack of detailed project scope
City of Cockburn Lack of resourcing

Poor contractors performance
Variations of expenditure
Inaccurate project cost estimate

Adequate High

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Delays in projects Contract independent specialist consultant

Financial Loss Project control group & project working group
Committees & Council reference group

Consulting teams/meetings
Financial monitoring, extensive project program, monthly

progress reports
Risk management Plans.

..,-

Update: 
The Project Portfolio Management team are at a 65% completion and on track to deliver on time.

62 of 202

h~’
Version: 2, Version Date: 09/05/2019
Document Set ID: 7943624



ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 11.1 Attachment 3

HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT (JULY - NOVEMBER 2018)

Risk Owner: Director Finance & Corporate I Executive Manager Strategy & Civic Support 
Risk Name: Project Management

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

ID Effectiveness Rating
Fail to consistently apply project Resistance to cultural change

management methodology and Inconsistent and duplication of processes
implementation to City projects Lack of skills training

Inconsistent project management frameworks

Selecting the wrong project management software solution
for the City
Fundamental lack of governance from an IS perspective

Adequate High

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Capital works carry over Project management tools
Silo approach to projects Staff training
Budget impacts Cross functional meetings
Parachuted project Long term financial plan

Update: The Project Portfolio Management team are at a 65% completion and on track to deliver on time.
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HIGH/EXTEME RISKS QUARTERLY REPORT (JULY - NOVEMBER 2018)

Risk Owner: Director Engineering and Works 

Risk Name: Water Availability

Risk Risk Description Causes Control Risk

10 Effectiveness Rating
Reducing water availability to irrigate Drying climate

City and maintain service delivery and Lower allocation of groundwater, by Department of water

amenity

Adequate High

Risk Impacts Existing Controls

Poor appearance of street scapes and Water management plan
parks Adapt landscaping plans

Water recharge options

Community education

Update: water operating plans Implemented, water recharge options stili be assessed, and new landscaped areas hydrozoned to 
reduce water demand. The Department of Water and Environmental Regulation released a paper on seeking a cost recovery 
mechanism for Groundwater licences. In addition DoWER has readjusted the ground water allocation limits for each ground water 

area the City extracts, resulting in the following: 
. POS upgrades by the City which require ground water will need to take allocations from existing licences, thereby reducing 

water to other POS. This will impact plant and turf growth and thus amenity for the community 
. Potential for the City to enter agreements with water licence holders to utilise their groundwater for a fee, to irrigate new POS 

developments 
. Developers requesting agreements to share the City’s water allocations to avoid dry POS in new subdivisions. 

. Receiving POS through the subdivision process whereby the developer has obtained water from a third party and the City 
will need to continue the agreement to maintain the landscape. This is still being ascertained.
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CITY OF COCKBURN RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK ’ROAD MAP’ ACTION PLAN (2019-2021)

Element Actions Responsibility Timeline

1. Risk Governance . Review and agree the specific risk governance role of the Council, particularly in relation to . Council and . 2019

the oversight of "material risks" facing the City, risks which sit outside the risk appetite of the Executive

Council, the identification of strategic/external risks and the development of risk appetite. Management

(Ref 014) Team

2. Risk Assessment . Review the effectiveness of the criteria and implement the recommendations to improve the . Governance and . 2019

and Acceptance clarity within the tables. (Ref 01 7) Risk Advisor

Criteria Tables

3. Risk Appetite . Build on the high-level statements to develop a series of risk acceptance principles, . Council and . 2019

tolerances and limits to further enhance the definition of the risk appetite. Executive

Management
. Communicate the risk appetite to all internal and external stakeholders.

Team

. Implement mechanisms to ensure that risk-taking is within the defined appetite. This would

include the development, aggregation and reporting of key risk indicators to provide an

organisational-wide view of the risk exposure.

. Ensure there is a mechanism in place whereby any risks which sit outside the defined risk

appetite are escalated to the Council for review and decision-making.

(Ref 018)

4. Risk Management . Review the Strategic Risk Register in the context of the Strategic Planning documentation to . Executive . 2019

Hierarchy ensure that risks associated with the specific and agreed strategies are identified and Management

appropriately managed. (Ref 0111) Team

. Project and Event Risk Management should be integrated within the overall RMF and risk
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CITY OF COCKBURN RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK ’ROAD MAP’ ACTION PLAN (2019-2021)

registers incorporated into a single risk information repository. (Ref 0112)

. Clarify how the strategic, operational and project risk registers interface and align with each

other (e.g. how the City reports on projects which may have an impact on strategic or

operational activities. (Ref 0113)

5. Risk Monitoring, . Develop a Strategic Plan for the City which is aligned with the high-level Strategic Community . Executive . 2020

Reporting and Plan and outlines the specific strategies and associated risks. Management

Review Team
. Review these strategies and risks annually to ensure the City remains on track to achieve the

4-year goals defined in the Strategic Community Plan. (Ref 0120)

. Ensure that the City’s incident management process (including the type of

incidents/losses/near misses recorded, ony investigation processes, root cause analysis etc.)

links back to the risk profile to provide valuable insight into the assessment of the perceived

risks. Key risk indicators should be established and monitored to give early warning of control

failure and emerging risk issues. (Ref 01 23)

6. Risk Management . Ensure options and decision papers across all levels of management within the City are . Executive . 2020

Culture supported by relevant risk information. Management

Team, Senior
. Embed risk management as a standing agenda item for regular senior management and

Managers
executive meetings.

. Review the extent to which the CEO, Directors and Managers are proactive in the driving of

risk assessments within each of their areas. Include risk management responsibilities in Job

Descriptions and ensure an assessment of risk management performance is included as part

of the performance management review. (Ref 016)

7. Capability and . Develop and implement a structured training program to ensure that all accountable officers . Human . 2020

Support have the skills to be able to identify, assess and manage risks within their own areas of Resources
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CITY OF COCKBURN RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK ’ROAD MAP’ ACTION PLAN (2019-2021)

responsibility and are held to account for monitoring and reporting risk information in Manager and

accordance with the RMF. (Ref 0124) Governance, and

Risk Advisor

8. Risk Management . Define the mechanism by which new risks are identified and managed on an ongoing basis . Risk Review . 2020

Integration (e.g. any new risks since the development of strategic/operational plans). Group

. Review the processes for managing contracts, partnership, joint ventures or alliances, to

ensure risk allocation is carefully considered and clearly allocated such that all parties accept

responsibilities for the allocation and have a clear understand of how the risk sharing

arrangement will work.

. Review the process by which low probability/ high consequence risks events ("black swan

events") are identified and managed and implement scenario testing to ensure that the City

can recover quickly from major disruptions /outages and setbacks. (Ref 019)

9. Controls . Implement a mechanism to highlight those risks with a potential catastrophic impact to . Governance and . 2021

Assessment and ensure that the appropriate level of assurance is in place (such as scenario testing and Risk Advisor

Assurance routine internal/external audits). (01 16)

10. Risk Treatment . As part of the implementation of a new Risk Management Information System, incorporate . Governance and . 2021

the recommendations noted in 01 18 and 01 19. Risk Advisor

11. Continuous . The City has developed a set of risk management performance indicators to act as "lead" . Governance and . 2021

Improvement indicators as to the effectiveness of the RMF. It is important that these indicators are Risk Advisor

assessed, and the status reported on an annual basis in order for the intended value to be

derived. It is recommended that the RMF is reviewed by exception once per year - with a

formal review taking place once every 2/3 years. (Ref 01 26)
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11.2 (2018/MINUTE NO 0015) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS BETWEEN 
COUNCIL AND OTHER PARTIES

Author(s) 

Attachments

J Ngoroyemoto 

1. Annual Legal Proceedings Report 2017-2018 

(CON FIDENTIAL)

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee receives the report on legal proceedings
commenced or responded to by the City during 2017- 2018 financial

year.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Mayor L Howlett

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

Background 

At its meeting held on 12 October 2006, Council adopted a new 
Position Statement PSES13 "Legal Proceedings between Council and 
Other Parties". At the May 2016 DAPPS Committee Meeting, Policy 
SES1 ’Obtaining Legal or Other Expert Advice’ and associated 

delegated authority was presented for clarification on the methodology 
by which legal or other expert advice is provided to Elected Members to 
enable them to perform their civic function. As a result the "Legal Advice 

Register" provided annually to the Audit and Strategic Finance 
Committee is now limited to the notification of those issues which are in 

relation to, or a result of a Council resolution, or where the amount 

related to administrative advice is of such an amount to warrant 

Council’s attention only.

Submission

N/A

Report 

Clause 2 of Position Statement PSES13, sub-clause (7) and (8) states:

(7) The Chief Executive Officer shall establish and maintain a 

procedure which enables those matters which are subject to the terms 
of this Position Statement to be centrally recorded and updated, as 

appropriate.
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(8) A record of the procedure mentioned in (7) above shall be 

presented to the Audit and Strategic Finance Committee at least 

annually, or as often as considered appropriate by the Chief Executive 
Officer or as requested by any member of the Audit and Strategic 
Finance Committee.

The Audit Calendar - Part 6 in the month of November states:

(6) Monitor the progress of any major law suits facing the Council. 

(Internal Audit).

A Summary of the Legal Proceedings commenced or responded to by 
the City during the 2017- 2018 financial year, as a result of a Council 

resolution, or of significant amount that warrants Council’s attention has 
been circulated under separate confidential cover.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Budget/Financial Implications

The table below highlights the legal fees expensed during 2017-2018 
with commensurate, where relevant, fines and penalties arising from 
the incurring of the legal expenditure. The City, further incurs expenses 
for rates recovery, but in 95.8% of the cases, the amounts expended 
are recovered. The break-up of where the funds are spent is detailed in 
the table below as well.

LEGAL SERVICES 2017- 2018

Legal Firms Actual Budget

....................................................................................................................t..................................t.................................. 
General - McLeods ~ $206,830 ~ 

....................................................................................................................t..................................t.................................. 
General-KottGunning ~ $14,142 ~ 

....................................................................................................................t..................................t.................................. 

CCW - Jackson McDonald ~ $93,629 ~ 
...................................................................................................................+................................+................................. 
Miscellaneous ~ $16,564 ~ 

....................................................................................................................t..................................t.................................. 
Total General ~ $331,165 ~ $398,425 

..~~~~~..~~~~.~.~.~............................................................................r...............................r................................ 
....................................................................................................................t.................................+................................. 
Debt Collection i $223,963 ~ $140,000 

...................................................................................................................+................................+................................. 
Recoveries ~ ($214,555) ~ ($140,000) 

.....................................................................................................................i...................................i...................................
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Net $9,408l Nil

....................................................................................................................t..................................t.................................. 
Fines and Penalties Income l ($113,145) l ($113,145) 

....................................................................................................................t.................................+................................. 
Net Legal Fees (after fines and penalties) l $227,428 l $285,280

The above excludes parking, litter and firebreak infringements.

Legal Implications

N/A

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

There are no risks associated with this recommendation, However 

failure to present this report to the Council annually presents a 

compliance risk in accordance with Position Statement PSES13 ’Legal 
Proceedings Between Council and Other Parties’, and Policy SES1 

’Obtaining Legal or Other Expert Advice’ & Associated delegated 
authority. 

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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12. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION ISSUES

Nil
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13. FINANCE & CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION ISSUES

13.1 (2018/MINUTE NO 0016) PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF 
MONETARY & NON-MONETARY INVESTMENTS FOR THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-2018

Author(s) 

Attachments

S Downing 

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee receives the information.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Mayor L Howlett

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

Background 

Council Policy SFCS1 ’Investments’ Clause 5.2 requires:

An annual report on the performance of the investment portfolio will be 
submitted to Council outlining the performance of the portfolio for the 
financial year."

Submission

N/A

Report

As per the Investments Policy SFCS1, the following report is divided 
into two parts. The first part is a report on cash investments held by the 

City and the second part is for non-cash investments.

Cash Investments

The City earned the following interest income during 2017-2018: 

Municipal/Reserve funds (MFR) $4.393m 
Rates - Administration Interest $0.422m 

Rates - Penalty Interest $0.213m 
Deferred Pension rates $0.020m 

. ESL Interest $0.018m
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. Total Interest income $5.066m

Interest income from the surplus cash in the municipal fund and 
reserves (MFR) totalled $4.393m. The interest rates earned by the MFR 

over the twelve months varied from 2.73% in July 2017 to 2.68% in 
June 2018.

The interest income earned from the other four sources, Rates - 

Penalty Interest, Rates - Administration Interest, Deferred Pension 
Rates and ESL Interest, was not earned on the management of surplus 
cash but on outstanding debts due to the Council. The Local 
Government Act provides the heads of power for a council to impose 
interest on outstanding rates. Rates - Administration Interest and ESL 

Interest are charged at 3.5%, whilst Rates - Penalty Interest is charged 
at 7%. The Local Government Act has a maximum interest rate of 11 %.

The Council has always elected to impose a lower interest rate. The 

rate for Deferred Pension Rates was 2.72% as at 30 June 2018. All 

surplus funds are invested in accordance with the Local Government 

Act, associated regulations and Council’s Investment Policy. All cash 
investments/term deposits were and are compliant with Council’s 

Investment Policy.

The funds are invested in term deposits with APRA regulated financial 

institutions apart from two investments. The amendment to the 

regulations requiring Council’s only invest in term deposits with a 

maturity less than twelve months was gazetted with an over-rider 

allowing existing investments with a maturity greater than twelve 

months and in non-term deposits to go to maturity ("Grandfathering").

The first "grandfathered" investment was for $2m in a CSA zero coupon 
senior bond paying 7.18%. The maturity date for the return of the $4m 
is January 2018. This investment was returned to Council in January 
2018.

The last remaining "grandfathered" investment is the reverse mortgage 
backed security, Emerald. The original investment was $3m in three 

$1 m tranches. The City is currently receiving interest at the rates of 

2.38%, 2.68% and 3.01 % on the respective tranches. Additional ’step- 

up’ interest is also accruing on these three tranches at 0.9%, 1.5% and 
1.9% respectively, which will be paid to the City upon maturity. The 
current balance of ’step-up’ interest owing to the City is $309,680. The 

City received capital repayments of $60k in the past year, reducing the 

outstanding balance due for the investment to $2.59m.

Non-Cash Investments
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The City has substantial freehold land on its balance sheet. As at the 30 
June 2018 that total was $84.11 m (L Y $83.4m). The makeup of the land 

comprises sumps, reserves, land available for sale, freehold parks and 
land on which council buildings and facilities occupy. The Council’s 
Land Management Strategy 2017 had identified a range of land assets 
that are surplus to requirement or land that could be made saleable with 
investment from Council. The concept is to monetise freehold land 

(where possible) so as to re-invest in income producing property to 
receive a stream of rental income. The Land Management Strategy 
provides for a reconciliation of the freehold land and that which is 

surplus to requirements.

Rental Income

The rental income earned for 2017-2018 on commercial properties and 
lands including GP Super Clinic totals $3.27m excluding GST and 
Variable outgoings.

The net rental revenue from the Cockburn Health and Community 
Facility is quarantined within a financial reserve for the purpose of future 
maintenance requirements for the facility. This is to ensure that there is 
no future demand for the Municipal Fund to meet capital or operating 
maintenance costs. The City also quarantines funds received from the 
Naval Base Shacks to meet the future capital maintenance needs of 
this unique asset.

Land Sales 

Land development sales for 2017/18 were $2.15m being the sale of lot 
241 Imlah Court, Jandakot for $0.9m (ex-GST) and Lot 33 Davilak Ave 
Hamilton Hill for $1.25m (ex GST). The former has now settled with the 
latter due for settlement before Christmas 2018. 

Funds received from the sale of surplus land are placed into the 
Council’s Land Development and Investment Fund Reserve.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Economic, Social & Environmental Responsibility

Create opportunities for community, business and industry to establish 
and thrive.

Leading & Listening

Ensure sound long term financial management and deliver value for 

money.

Budget/Financial Implications
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N/A

Legal Implications

N/A

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

This is an information only report on the investments undertaken by the 

City on behalf of the Council. 

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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13.2 2018 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT & EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

Author(s) 

Attachments

N Mauricio 

1. Annual Financial Report 2017 -18 
2. Audit Plan 2018 - Audit Committee 

3. 2018 Fraud & Error Assessment Form

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Committee:

(1) adopt the annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2018, 
as attached to the Agenda;

(2) receive the External Audit Plan for the year ending 30 June 2018; 
as attached to the Agenda; 

(3) receive the completed Fraud and Error Assessment form for the 

year ended 30 June 2018, as attached to the Agenda.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Mayor L Howlett

That the Committee: 

(1) adopt the amended financial report for the year ended 30 June 
2018 as attached to the Agenda noting the Notes to the Financial 
Statements have received minor amendments: 

a. Note 9A - Property Plant and Equipment 

b. Note 17 - Investment in Joint Venture - SMRC 

c. Note 21 - Financial Ratios 

d. Note 29 Financial Risk Management 

e. Note 32 Events after the reporting date 

(2) receive the External Audit Plan for the year ending 30 June 2018, 
as attached to the Agenda;

(3) receive the completed Fraud and Error Assessment form for the 

year ended 30 June 2018, as attached to the Agenda. 

CARRIED 4/0

Reason for Decision

Due to last minute changes proposed by the Auditor General of WA the 

following minor changes were made to the notes to the financial 
statements on Iy:
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Note 9A - Property Plant and Equipment 

For the sub-section Plant and Machinery, the OAG required gross 
figures not net figures. This then entailed inserting a line for Disposal 
after Valuation. The total for the sub-section remains the same. 

Note 17 - Investment in Joint Venture - SMRC 

The SMRC supplied amended audited figures for 2017/18 and 
2016/17. The Note had to be amended to reflect these new figures. 

The City’s share of the joint venture’s asset did not change and 
because of the City withdrawing from the SMRC, the amount written 
down remains the same. 

A note has been added to the last paragraph to reflect that the 

population at withdraw date (30/6/17) is the figure used to calculate 
future loan repayments as provided for the City of Canning’s 
withdraw. 

Note 21 - Financial Ratios 

A number of the financial ratios have received minor changes: 

Asset Sustainability Ratio was 0.705 now improved to 0.737 

. The other ratios remain unchanged 

Note 29 Financial Risk Management 

. The OAG required the City to break out asset for sale (financial) 
$123k out of $148m worth of financial assets. 

. More detail has also been provided. 

Note 32 Events after the reporting date 

. Whilst there are no events after the reporting which have affected 
the Annual financial statements, we have included a comment about 

the City’s full withdraw from the SMRC, which is yet to be finalised.

Background 

Section 5.54 of the Local Government Act 1995 requires Council to 

accept the annual report for a financial year no later than 31 December 

after that financial year. Section 5.53 requires that the annual report 
contain the financial report for that financial year.

As set out in its terms of reference, the Audit and Strategic Finance 
Committee (ASFC) is required to review the City’s annual financial 

report and recommend its adoption to Council. The listed duties and 

responsibilities of the ASFC include reviewing Council’s annual financial 

report, focusing on:
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o accounting policies and practices; 

o changes to accounting policies and practices; 

o the process used in making significant accounting estimates; 

o any significant adjustments to the financial report arising from the 
audit process; 

o compliance with accounting standards and other reporting 
requirements; and 

o significant variances from prior years. 

Amendments to the Local Government Act 1995 in August 2017 paved 
the way for the transition of responsibility for oversight of local 

government audits to the Office of the Auditor General (OAG). Given 
the absence of an existing audit contract for the year, the City became 
one of the first few local governments transitioned to oversight by the 
OAG. However, the OAG chose to contract out the conduct of the audit 

to the City’s previous auditor, Macri Partners.

Regulation 9 (2) of The Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 
states that the principal objective of the external audit is for the auditor 
to carry out such work as is necessary to form an opinion as to whether: 
the accounts are properly kept; and that the annual financial report: 

o is prepared in accordance with financial records; and 

o represents fairly the results of the operations of the local government 
at 30 June in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Local Government Act 1995. 

The terms of reference also require the AFSC to discuss any issues 

arising from the audit of the annual financial report with the auditor and 
Section 7.12A (2) the Local Government Act 1995 requires local 

governments to meet with the auditor at least once in every year. The 

auditor will attend this meeting to present their audit report and discuss 

any issues raised.

The attached External Audit Plan for 2018 outlines the purpose and 

scope of the external audit and explains the audit methodology and 

approach taken in completing the 2017-18 audit. This was prepared by 
Macri Partners and approved by the OAG.

Submission

N/A
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Report

2018 Annual Financial Report 

The annual financial report being presented to the AFSC contains a 
detailed set of financial statements including all accounting and 

supporting notes. Unlike last year, there isn’t a separate set of summary 
financial statements being presented. This is due to the OAG not 

wishing to issue an additional audit report for a summary set of 
financials. The summary set of financials has previously been prepared 
specifically for inclusion in the City’s Annual Report, given the City’s 
belief that the full set is too lengthy and mostly irrelevant to the report’s 
wider audience. For 2017-18, the City’s Annual Report will need to 
contain a detailed full set of financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

1. Operating Result (before Non-Operating Activities)

The City’s operating result for 2018 came in at $6.5m, up $2.1 m 
on the previous year. Operating expenditure increased by 4.8% 
versus an increase of 6.1 % in operating revenue. This is a strong 
financial result, as it demonstrates the City generates more than 

enough revenue to cover its costs, inclusive of depreciation on 
assets.

Overall, operating revenues of $148.1 m were up $8.6m from last 

year. The main contributors were revenue from rates up $3.2m 

(3.4%) and fees and charges up $6.3m (28.4%). Fee income 

was up mainly due to the impact of the Cockburn ARC, which 
added an extra $7.7m to recreation income. Revenue from 

planning and building approvals was down a combined $0.5m 

year on year due to lower development and building activity. 
Operating grants were down year on year by $0.9m. However, 
this was due to the accounting treatment effect of the decision of 
the federal government to pay half of the 2017-18 allocation of 

Financial Assistance Grants in 2016-17 but only a quarter of the 
2018-19 allocation in the 2017-18 year.

Operating expenses for the year were up by $6.5m (4.8%) to 
$141.6m. Employee costs, the City’s biggest operational 

expense item, were up $2.4m (4.7%) to $54.5m with the first full 

year of operating the Cockburn ARC impacting the increase by 
$2.0m. There were also some reductions in the Roads and Civic 

Support teams salary costs due to restructures.

Spending on materials and contracts was up 2.8% to $38.7m 

(+$1.0m) with the biggest impact coming from the Cockburn 
ARC (+$1.6m) and to a lesser extent, Information 

Technology.(+$O.4m). Reductions in waste collection ($0.8m)
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and the absence of the triennial GRV revaluation from last year 

($0.5m) limited the overall increase in spending.

Insurance expenses came in at $1.1 m (45.9%) under last year’s 
at $1.3m. This included prior year performance related rebates of 

$0.6m (including $0.03m from the Insurance Commission) and a 
restructure of the workers compensation risk premium model 

reducing premiums by a further $0.5m. 

Interest expenses reduced from $0.96m to $0.73m as principal 
continues to be repaid against borrowings for the Cockburn ARC 

facility. 

Depreciation expense (non-cash) increased by 10.1 % to $30.2m 

(+$2.8m). This reflected increased depreciation on IT related 
assets of $0.7m from new website and growing CCTV network, 
extra building depreciation of $0.6m from additional building 
assets commissioned, an extra $0.3m in plant depreciation due 
to a growing plant pool and $0.6m higher roads infrastructure 

depreciation.

2. Net Result

Including non-operating activities, the City’s net result (before 
asset revaluations) was down $39.2m (54.5%) on the previous 
year to $32.7m, despite the operating result contributing an extra 
$2.1 m. The major reason for this fall in result was a reduction in 

gifted assets of $50.5m due to the once-off take up of marina 
assets totalling $54.3m in 2016-17. This was slightly offset by a 
$3.5m increase to $11.9m in developer gifted subdivision 
infrastructure assets for 2017-18. There was also a reduction in 

the City’s book equity in the SMRC of $5.7m, primarily due to the 

City’s withdrawal from the RRRC. 

Profit from the sale of assets was down $5.1 m, primarily due to 
lower realised land sales in 2017-18, whilst capital grants and 
contributions of $11.4M were little changed on last year.

On the plus side, developer contribution scheme revenue of 

$8.7m was up $3.1 m. Also, the absence of the previous year’s 
impairment of the SLLC contributed $3.2m to this year’s result, 
as did the absence of last year’s gifted asset to the Fremantle 
Football Club of $13.3m.

Statement of Financial Position

The City’s net assets and total equity increased year on year by $52.5m 
from $1,162.8m to $1,215m. This reflected an increase in total assets of 

$51.9m, comprising current assets (+$20.2m) and non-current assets 

(+$31.7m). There was also a small decrease in total liabilities of $0.6m,
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comprising current liabilities (+$1.3m) and non-current liabilities 

(-$1.9m).

1. Assets

The year on year increase in current assets of $20.2m to 

$147.2m included $24.8m more in cash and cash equivalents, 
reflecting the greater amount held in financial reserves. The 
current financial asset amount of $3.8m was extinguished, as the 
CBA Zero Coupon bond for $4.0m was fully repaid during the 

year.

The increase in non-current assets of $31 .7m to $1 ,124m 

comprised a net increase of $7.8m in the value of property, plant 
& equipment (PPE) and an increase of $29.8m in infrastructure 
assets. These were partially offset by the $5.7m fall in joint 
venture interests due to the RRRC withdrawal.

Infrastructure assets included gifted subdivision assets of 

$11.9m, annual revaluation increments totalling $19.8m and a 

capitalised spend of $18.8m. This was reduced by depreciation 
of $20.7m booked for the year. 

PPE assets included $19.5m of capitalised spend ($13.1m for 

buildings), less $1.3m in disposals (mainly plant items) and 

$10.5m of booked depreciation for the year. 

2. Liabilities

Current liabilities increased year on year by $1.3m to $19.7m, 
with trade & other payables increasing by $1.1 m. Current leave 

provisions had a modest increase of $0.1 m to $6.7m, 

demonstrating sufficient control over outstanding leave.

Non-current liabilities reduced by $1.9m from last year, with loan 

borrowings paid down by $2.5m to $17.5m and non-current 

provisions increasing by $0.6m to $19.5m, due to the landfill site 
rehabilitation provision increasing by $0.5m to $17.5m.

Changes in Equity

Cash backed reserves held by the City increased by a net $13.5 to 

$119.0m during the reporting year. A total of $37.8m was transferred 
into reserves during the year with $2.2m of this coming from investment 

earnings. Drawdowns from reserves were $24.3m, with another $12.1 m 
carried forward into 2018-19 for unfinished works.

The Asset Revaluation Surplus increased by $19.8m to $523.3m as a 
result of the annual management valuation of roads, drainage and 

footpath assets, with roads increasing by $14.9m, drainage by $4.3m
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and footpaths by $0.6m. Parks infrastructure was not revalued in 2017- 
18.

The City’s accumulated surplus increased by $19.2m to $572.9m. This 

represented the $32.7m net surplus result, less the $13.5m net transfer 
of funds into financial reserves.

Statement of Cash Flows

The City’s net incoming cash flows from operating activities increased 

by $13.7m to $40.7m for the reporting year. This indicates strong 
operating cash flows allowing the City to continue funding new assets 
and asset renewals and upgrades as planned.

Cash outlaid on capital spending was down $30.5m on last year, due to 
the completion of the Cockburn ARC project and several significant 
projects being carried forward into 2017-18.

Cash flows from grants and contributions received for the development 
of assets increased from $16.7m to $24.1 m, with an extra $3.1 m cash 

received from developer contribution schemes and $4.2m from capital 
grants. Cash received from the sale of assets was well down from 

$12.5m to $1.6m, as no land sales were transacted during 2017-18. 

The City repaid $2.5m of outstanding borrowings for the Cockburn 
ARC. This was down on the $3.2m paid the previous year that included 
the early repayment of the emergency services building self-funding 
loan at the request of DFES.

Cash and cash equivalents increased during the reporting year by 
$24.8m to $138.7m, representing the extra funds being held for 
financial reserves and for unfinished works carried forward.

Rate Setting Statement

This statement shows the most complete view of the City’s financial 

performance for 2018 and determines the municipal budget surplus.

The City’s closing funds at 30 June 2018 were $11.9m, up $5.3m 
against the previous year. $9.5m of the closing funds is unspent monies 

required to complete carried forward works and projects. The remaining 
balance of $2.4m represents uncommitted funds carried forward into 
the next year. In setting the 2018-19 budget, an estimated $2.0m in 
uncommitted funds was allowed for.

The total amount raised from general rates was up $3.3m (3.4%) from 
last year to $99.6m and includes development growth in the City’s 
rating base as well as the adopted increase of 1.75%. This result came 
in $0.38m under the adopted budget target.
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The rate setting statement also includes the spending on capital works 
and projects, with a total spend of $38.3m versus the adopted budget 
target of $48.7m (excludes carried forwards). This was also lower 

against the $68.8m spend in 2016-17, which included the final spending 
on the Cockburn ARC construction project.

Financial Ratios

The WA Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 

prescribe seven financial ratios that are to be included in the annual 
financial report. These ratios are also used by the Department of Local 
Government & Communities (DLGC) as a measurement of a local 

government’s overall financial health. They form the basis of 
calculations used for the Financial Health Indicator (FHI) displayed on 
the MyCouncil website.

RATIO 2018 2017 Benchmark High

Current Ratio 1.479 1.432 1.00 1.50

Asset Sustainability Ratio 0.705 1.442 0.90 1.20

Debt Service Ratio 10.370 9.533 2.00 5.00

Operating Surplus Ratio 0.008 0.078 0.01 0.15

Own Source Revenue Ratio 0.957 0.971 0.40 0.90

Asset Consumption Ratio 0.691 0.689 0.50 0.75

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio 0.707 0.729 0.75 1.10

Financial Health Indicator 78 93

Four of the ratios are well above the DLGC benchmark, with two 

exceeding the high ratio mark (those in bold). The Asset Renewal 

Funding Ratio (comparing L TFP planned renewal spend against 
requirements in AMP’s) is only slightly below benchmark as is the 

Operating Surplus Ratio.

The results from these seven ratios combine to produce an FHI score 
for the City of 78 (compared to 93 last year). This result has dipped on 
last year because of two main issues. The withdrawal from the RRRC 

waste management project required a net equity write-off, adversely 
impacting the Operating Surplus Ratio. Excluding this item, an FHI 

score of 83 would be achieved. Also, the Asset Sustainability Ratio has 
fallen below the benchmark this year, as it lost the positive impact 

previously delivered by the Cockburn ARC ’renewal’ capital spending. 
This ratio will fluctuate in line with the mix of new versus renewal capital 

projects delivered each year.
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Despite these impacts, the City’s result is still above the benchmark 
result of 70 that indicates sound financial health (as defined by the 

Department of Local Government, Sport & Cultural Industries).

Audit Report

The 2018 annual financial report was audited by Macri Partners under 
contract from the Office of Auditor General (OAG). The Local 
Government Act requires the City to meet with the auditor at least once 
in every year and representatives from the OAG and Macri Partners will 
be present at the meeting to discuss the audit report and any audit 

findings. The audit report will be signed off and issued following the 

meeting and is expected to be without qualification.

Fraud and Error Assessment

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both 
the Audit & Strategic Finance Committee and management. Under the 
Australian Auditing Standards, auditors have specific responsibilities to 
communicate with the audit committee and it is mandatory for auditors 
to make enquiries of management and th se charged with governance 
(audit committees) regarding fraud matters.

As part of the auditor’s annual risk assessment procedures, they are 

required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the 
Audit Committee’s oversight in addressing fraud risk. To that end, the 
fraud risk assessment questionnaire (as attached to the agenda) has 
been completed and signed off on behalf of management by the 
Director Finance & Corporate Services. The Presiding Member has also 

provided responses to a series of fraud related questions and signed 
this off on behalf of the audit committee.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Ensure sound long term financial management and deliver value for 

money

Budget/Financial Implications

The cost of the external audit is sufficiently covered within the City’s 
annual budget. 

Legal Implications

Local Government Act 1995 Sections 5.53, 5.54, 6.4, and Part 7 - Audit
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Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 Regulations 9, 9A and 10 
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 Part 4 - 

Financial reports

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

It is a requirement under the Local Government Act for Council to 

accept the City’s annual report (including the financial report and 
auditor’s report) by no later than 31 December each year. Failure to do 

so will lead to statutory non-compliance.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995 

Nil
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City of Cockburn 

Financi,,1 Report 

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Local Government Act 1995 

Local Government (Financial Mana/!ement) Re/!ulations 1996

Statement by Chief Executive Officer

The attached financial report of the City of Cockburn for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 is based on proper accounts and 

records to present fairly the financial position of the City of Cockburn at 30 June 2018 and the results of the opreations for the 

financial year then ended in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 and, to the extent that they are not inconsistent with 

the Act, the Australian Accounting Standards.

Signed on the 15th day of November 2018

SCain 

Chief Executive Officer
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Understanding the Financial Statements

Introduction

The Financial Statements show how the Council performed financially during the 2017/18 financial year 
and presents the financial position as at the 30lh June 2018.

Council is required to prepare its financial statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the 

Local Government Act 1995 and the associated Local Government Regulations. As Council is a "not-far-profit" 

organisation in the public sector, some of the generally recognised terms used in private sector reports are not 

ideally transferable to the Local Government environment.

Cockburn Council is mindful of its role of acting in the public interest and it is in this context that this guide is 

provided to assist readers in understanding and analysing the financial statements.

What is contained in the Financial Statements?

Council’s Financial Statements has two sections, namely:

(1) The principal Financial Statements 

(2) The Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements.

There are five (5) principal Financial Statements and thirty eight (38) Notes to the Accounts. These are prepared 

bV Council staff, audited by an independent Auditor, presented to Council’s Audit Committee and then 

accepted by full Council as part of the Annual Report.

The five Principal Financial Statements comprise the following:

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

. Cash Flow Statement 

. Rate Setting Statement

The Notes to the Accounts include the accounting policies that were applied in preparing the financial statements, 

as well as more detailed information relating to specific items and values disclosed within the statements.

Statement af Financial Pasition

This statement is a snap shot of the financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2018. It shows what Council 

owns as assets and what it owes as liabilities. The bottom line of this statement is the net assets and is equivalent 
to the net worth of the Council that has built up since inception.

The assets and liabilities are separated into those that are Current and Non Current. Current means those assets 

and liabilities, which are likely to be consumed or extinguished within the next 12 months. Non Current refers to 

assets and liabilities with an economic life extending beyond 12 months.

Statement of Changes In Equity

From one year to the next, the value of and composition of equity (as reported within the Statement of Financial 

Position) changes. Equity can be defined as being the net worth of Councilor its net assets (Assets less Liabilities).

Council’s equity is comprised of Cash Backed Reserves, Asset Revaluation Reserve (non cash) and the Accumulated 

Surplus. Net surpluses (or deficits) from Council’s operations (as disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income). will change the overall total of equity (via the accumulated surplus). Asset revaluations also impact
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Council’s net worth position. Transfers to and from cash backed reserves, whilst not impacting the overall total of 

equity, demonstrate the consumption of or accumulation of savings for future purposes.

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows:

. The sources of Council’s Revenue under various Program Headings 

. The expenses incurred in running the Council during the year under Program Headings

These expenses relate only to the operations and do not include the costs associated with the purchase or the 

building of assets. While asset purchase costs are not included in expenses, there is an item for depreCiation. This 

is the annual allocation of the cost of assets by reference to the remaining useful life of assets.

The key figure is the change in net assets resulting from operations and this year, it indicates that revenues 

exceeded expenses.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement summarises Council’s cash payments and cash receipts for the year. This statement is 

presented according to a very specific accounting standard and needs some care and analysis. The values in the 

Cash Flow Statement differ from those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, as it is prepared on a 

cash basis, whereas the Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared on an accruals basis.

Cash in this statement refers to bank deposits and other forms of highly liquid investments that can be readily 
converted to cash.

Council’s cash arises from and is used in three main areas:

Operating activities 

Investing activities - this term relates to assets such as infrastructure, plant, land and other long.term 
revenue producing assets. 

. Financing activities - this is used to record the receipt and repayment of external financing such as loans and 

leases.

The bottom line of the Cash Flow Statement shows the cash held at the end of the financial year.

Rate Setting Statement

The inclusion of a Rate Setting Statement in the annual statements is a requirement of the Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulations 1996. The format for this statement is prescribed within the regulations and 

is the same as that included in the annual budget.

As the name suggests, the Rate Setting Statement sets out the total amount of general rates proposed in the 

budget and the amount actually raised during the reporting year. To arrive at these, the statement reconciles all 

sources and application of funds and the closing surplus or deficit (less any opening balances). This includes all 

operational revenue and expenses (as included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income) together with all 

capital acquisitions made, transfers to and from cash-backed reserves and transactions associated with 

borrowings.

The Rate Setting Statement provides a more complete picture of the council’s financal activities during the 

reporting year compared to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (which reports only on the operational 

activities).
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Notes to the Accounts

The notes are a very important and informative section of the Report. They provide additional meaning to and 

information in support of the principal statements.

The Significant Accounting Policies at note 1 provide the reader with the policies and parameters used in 

preparing the Statements. In other words, these are the ground rules that form the basis for preparing the 

statements.

Apart from the Accounting Policies, the other notes provide the details behind many of the summarised figures 
contained within the statements. Where there is a direct correlation between amounts, the applicable note 

number is disclosed beside the relevant item in the statements.

The notes should be read in conjunction with the principal Financial Statements to get a clearer understanding of 

Council’s financial position.

Auditor’s Report & CEO’s Statement

The independent Audit Report provides an external and independent opinion on the Financial Statements. It 

proVides the reader with the scope of the audit work undertaken and expresses an audit opinion formed on this 

basis. The audit opinion relates to the fairness aspects and the statutory compliance of the Financial Statements.

The Statement by the Chief Executive Officer serves as a written undertaking by management to the correctness 

and fairness of the statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

by Nature or Type
for the Year Ended 30 June 2018

Actual Budget Actual

NottiS 2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ $ $

OPERATING REVENUE

Rates 23. 99.600,112 99.981,449 96,337,163

Specified Area Rates 23b 408,143 330,000 312,936

Fees and Charges 2. 28,700,746 26,710,305 22,353,295

Service Charges 440,700

Operating Grants and Subsidies 25 12.800,692 11,382,351 13,752,463

Contributions. Donations and Reimbursements 1,561,499 1.145,461 1,203,429

Interest Earnings 5,066,912 4.742,968 5,157,532

Tolal Operatin& Revenue 148,138,103 144,292,534 139,557,517

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Employee Cost (54,561,331) (53,776,279) (52,132,049)

Materials and Contracts (38.763,915) (38,835,827) (37,709,273)

Utilities (5,142,827) (5,227,818) (4,748,358)

Inlerest Expenses 2. (726,777) (816,699) (966,490)

Insurances (1,322,018) (2,228,200) (2,444,985)
other Expenses 2. (8,996,907) (9,006,798) (7,810,268)

Depreciation on Non Current Assets 2. (30,241,974) (28,299,179) (27,465,498)

Provision for Site Rehabilitation 13 (505,193) (490,620)

Amortisation on Landfill Infrastructure (1,390,921) (1,120,764) (1,391,018)
Total Operating Expenditure (141,651,872) (139.311,564) (135,158,559)

Increase/( Decrease) 6,486,231 4,980,970 4,398,958

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 25 11,455,693 11,336,931 11,063,443

Developers Contributions Plans: Cash 8,734,325 6,017,736 5,631,840

Gifted Subdivision Assets 9b, lob 12,168,364 62,676,020

Increase/(Decrease) in Equity - Joint Venture .7 (5,669,422) 499,833

Other (74) (2,718)

Assets Gifted to Other Parties ’b (741,058) (14,566,385)

Impairment Charge. Buildings ’0 (3,200,000)

Profit on Sale of Assets 20b 474,814 1.763,103 5.684,213

Loss on Sale of Assets 20b (190,288) (201,388) (271,825)

Total Non-Operating Activities 26,232,353 18,916,382 67,514,422

NET RESULT 32,718,585 23,897,352 71,913,380

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that willllot be redassified subsequently to profit or loss

Changes on revaluation of non-current assets .. 19,821,682 (71,904,359)

Total Other Comprehensive Income 19,821,682 (71,904,359)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 52,540,267 23,897,352 9,021

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

by program

For lhctYlII’ar ended JO Jun. 2018

REVENUES

Revanu. From Ordinary Ae:tlvllict.,. 

GIUiE!ra/ Purpou Fvnding 

Go\t&fnOlnCe 

Law Order & ?ublic S.lfet~’ 

Hulth 

EduciJtlon & W@JfiJrt! 

Ccmmunlty AmenIties 

Recre.1ion & Culture 

Transport 

:c:onomic St!rvicu 

Other Property & Services

T01Al OPERATING REVENUES

EXPENSES

Gen4!lfal PUfPCS. Fundlna: 

Go....rnanc. 

l~\Y Order & Public Satety 

Health 

(duc-atlon & W.U~r. 

Community Am.nilies 

Recr.lItlOrl & Culturtt 

Transport 

Etcnomlc Service.:. 

Other Proplrty & ServicI!

Tot.1 OperiJtinc Expenditure

lncrease/(Dec.:rusI)

NON-OPERATING GRANTS/CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARDS ASSETS: CASH 

GIr"-er,,1 PUI’po’!;e Fundi"! 

Go".rnancl! 

~VI Order & Public Safety 

EducOItion & W.ltilfe 

Communit’ol Am.nill~s 

Recrudon & Culture 

Tunsport 

Other ProperlY & ServIces

Gltt.d Subdl...b,lon Aeh 

Assets Gifted to Other Parties 

Increa:Je/(Oecruse) In Equh." . Jolnl Venl’yr. 

Other 

Impairment Char,. . 9uUdmcs

PROfrT/(LOSSJ ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 

~w Order & Public Safety 

EducatIOn to ’Nella.,. 

Recrudon & Culture 

rr~nspot1 

Other PropertY 8< Senolces

NET RESULT

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

lr~mJ rho! will not b~ ",Ioui/;I!d lubsequl!ntly fO p,o/ t 01’ Iou 

Ch.nlf!!> on re....Iu.tion cf non.curn!!n! assels

Tot.l Other Comprehensive Inc;om.

TOIAl COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

"

Actu~1 Budcet

2017/18 2017/16

5

109,115.819 109,231,923-

261,058 120,640

923,561 672,922

344,1’38 325,500

9,nl,219 8,584,S33

’,862,14a 10,932,671

12,568,12S 8,696,360

408.296 245,000

1,825,077 2,160,650

3,057,8.59 1,352,015

148,118,103 J44,292,514

11,524,697) 11,465,566)

(10,3792451 (10,913,15<)

(6,n6,4S7) 16,601,4")

12,293,065) 12,413,705)

(15,6471061 115.567,6531

(33,7IS "6) 132,461,0191

(38,635,086) (36,070,0961

(26,895,201) (27373,551)

12,732,097) 12881,8151

13,050,242) 13,483,5;31

(141,6S1,872) 1119,311,564)

6,’86.Ut 4,980.910

3,;00,000 3,385,.557

490,681

929,634 300,000

8,596,708 10,728,720

4,.271,772 5,345,374

2,601,223 (2,_,9&4)

20,190,01’ 17,JS4,"",

12,168,364

1741,05BI

15,669,422)

174)

..

201> 

200 

"’" 

"’" 

200

13,000

1190,288)

32.01,100 Im,892)

150,715 1.672,607

6,042.JJ5 1.561.71.5

U,71aS.S 21,191,J52

Actuill

2016/17 

S

108,6’31,411 

165,070 

999,756 

336,&H 

&,886,134 

9,931,578 

4,300.089 

219,10~ 

2,045,&97 

3,975,230

139,557,517

f 1,854,910) 

(9,950,052) 

16,B5,S3}) 

12,}40611) 

(15,231,102) 

(,33,210.050) 

(33,531,641) 

(26,399596) 

(2,618,W9) 

(3,686,454)

(135,158,559)

4,398.9S8

4,136,093 

2,0&2,115 

706,195 

20~,0!Xl 

15,433,6631 

930,356 

10,272,804 

3,501,362

16.’95.283

62,676,020 

(14,566,385) 

499 H 

12,718) 

(3,200,0001

10,625 

31,800 

(271,825) 

309,263 

5,312,525

5,412.J18

71,9lJ,l8O

" 19,821,682 (71,’lO4,359)

52.S40.2til 2l.r.J7,lS:Z 9.021

.9.82l.682 (71,_,359)
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Statement of Financial Position

Total Current Assets

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$ $

138,691,393 113,819,242

3,841,492

8,240,088 8,471,749

282,233 911,565

35,600 21,782

147,249,315 127,065,830

1,145,550 1,202,453

923,569 6,592,991

958,125 858,657

336,010,448 328,223,270

769,939,931 740,089,224

15,905,773 16,211,653

1,124,883,395 1,093,178,248

1,272,132,710 1,220,244,078

10,516,264 9,381,006

2,500,000 2,500,000

6,730,946 6,596,413

19,747,210 18,477,419

As at 30 June 2018

Notes

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Financial Assets 

Trade & Other Receivables 

Other Assets 

Inventories

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Financial Assets 

Interests in Joint Ventures 

Trade & Other Receivables 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Infrastructure 

Rehabilitation Assets

10

11

Total Non Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade & Other Payables 

Borrowings 

Provisions

12.

12b

13

Total Current Liabilities

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 

Provisions

12b 17,500,000 20,000,000

13 19,536,167 18,957,592

37,036,167 38,957,592

56,783,377 57,435,012

1,215,349,333 1,162,809,067

Total Non Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY 

Accumulated Surplus 

Reserves - Cash/lnvestment Backed 

Revaluation Surplus

572,943,223 553,757,996

14 119,056,427 105,523,070

15 523,349,683 503,528,001

1,215,349,333 1,162,809,067TOTAL EQUITY

The St’atement oj FinanCIal Position should be read in conjunction with rhe accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Accumulated 

Surplus 

$

Net Result 

other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Transfer (rrom)/to Reserves 

Balance as at 30 June 2017

71,91.3,380

Reserves Revaluation

(Note 14) Surplus (Note 15) Total EquitV

$ $ $

126,599,957 575,432,360 1,162,800,045

71,913,380

(71,904,359) (71,904,359)

(71,904,359) 9,021

(21,076,887)

105,523,070 503,528,001 1,162,809,067

32,718,585

19,821,682 19,821,682

19,821,682 52,540,267

13,533,357

119,056,427 523,349,683 1,215,349,333

Balance as at 1 July 2016 460,767,729

71,913,380 

21,076,887 

553,757,996

Net Result 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Transfer (from)/to Reserves 

Balance a. at 30 June 2018

32,718,585

32,718,585 

(13,533,357) 

572,943,223

The Stotemtnr 01 Changes in fQujry should be rtad in conjuncrion wirh rile accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Actual Budget Actual

For the year ended 30 June 2018 2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

Not~~ $ $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments

Employee Cost (54,353,417) (53,784,023) (50,886,542)

Materials and Contracts (38,615,499) (50,061,647) (51,794,610)

Utilllies (5,142,827) (5,227,818) (4,748,358)

Interest Paid (726,777) (816,699) (966.490)

Insurances (l.322,O18) (2,228,200) (2,444,985)

Other Expenses (8,996,907) (9,006,798) (7,810,268)

GST on Payments (6,989,766) (13,367,790)

(116,147,211) (121,125,184) (132,019,043)

Receipts

Rates & Specified Area Rates 99,948,077 100,311,449 96,076,683

Fees and Charges 28,876,540 29,544,244 27,947,790

Service Charges 440,700

Contributions, Donations and Reimbursements 1,561,499 1,145,461 1,203,429

Interest Received 4,796,061 4,742,968 4,882,964

Grants & Subsidies - Operating 12,800,692 11,882,351 13,752.463

Other Revenue/Income 422,812 597,526

GST on Receipts 967,807 3,648,584

GST Refunded by ATO 7,488,923 7,849,195 10,426,932

156,862,410 155,475,668 158,977 .070

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BV/(USED IN) OPERATING
Ie_ 40,715,198 34,350,483 26,958,027

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Sale on Non Current Assets 20. 1,651,090 3,578,000 12,503,975

Purchase Furniture and Equipment (414,049) (509,000) (1,758,457)

Purchase Computer Equipment (1,340,7/8) (2,197,915) (943,781 )

Purchase & Construction of Infrastructure Assets (18,839,953) (24,232,228) (23,927,732)

Purchase Plant and Machinery (3,967,809) (3,992,000) (7,925,137)

Purchase & Development of Land (674,483) (110,000) (836,966)

Purchase & Construction of Buildings (13,104,344) (17,664,000) (33,399,309)

Gifted SubdIVISion ASsets

Capital Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 11.455,693 17,354,667 11,110,713

Developer Contribution - Cash 8,734,325 5,631,840

Assets Gifted to Other Parties (741,058) (14,566,385)

Proceeds from Sale of Maturing Investments 3,898,320

NO CASH flOWS PROVIDED BV/(USED IN) INVESTING
(13,343,047) (27,172,476) (54,111,219)

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net recelpts/(refund) of bonds (5,761,532)

Loan Principal Repayment (2.500,000) (2,597,176) (3,243,174)

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BV/(USEO IN) FINANCING
(2,500,000) (2,597,176) (9,004,706)

ACTIVITIES

Net Increase/(Deerease) In Cash dUflng year 24,872,152 3,980,831 (36,157,918)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Reporting Period 113,819,242 110,016,310 149,977,159

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF REPORTING PERIOD S,l b 138,691,393 113,997,141 113,819,242

The: Starement of Cosh flows should be read fn conjunction \Vlth rhe accompanying notes
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Rate Setting Statement

Actual Budeet Actual

For th~ year ended 30 June 2018 2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

1I00n $ S S

Operatinc Revenue

Spf.>cilted Au:a Rllte~ 2’" 408.H3 330,000 312.936

Fees & Charges ~ 28.700,746 26,710,305 22.353.295

~ervice Charges 440,700

Qperatlne Grants & Subsidies 25 12,800,692 11.382,351 13,1S’l,463

Contributions. Donations. Reimbursements 1,561,499 1,14S,461 }.203.42.9

Interest Earnings :z. 5,066,912 4,742,1368 5,157,532

Profit on Sale of Assets 20b 414,814 1,7Gil,103 5,664,213

Total Operatine: Revenue 49,OIl.BOG 46,074,188 48,904.561

Operating E’.xpcnditure

Emplovee Costs (54,561,331) 153.776.2791 152,132,0491

Materials and Contracts (3S.763.92S) (38,835,827) 137,709,2731

Utilibes (5,142,827) {S.221,SI81 (4/748,3581

Inter~st Expem~s 22 1726.717) (816,6991 (966,4’01

InSur nc~s {1,n2.0l.} 12.228,2001 {2.444.9SSI

other Expenses (S,’96.’01) (’.006,198) (7,810,2651

Los!,; on Sale of Assets 20b (190.2881 (201,~g81 (271,8251

Depredation on Non Current Assets 2. (10,241.914) 128.299,17’) 127,4’5,4931

Provision for Site Rehabilitation tJ (505.1") {490.6201

Amortfsaticn on Non Current Assets 101:1.11 (1,390.921) {1.120,16’1 (1,391,0181

Total Operating bpendilure (141.842,IGO) (ll’.51l,’521 (135.430.3831

Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations before Rates (",Il’,"’) (,3,"0,7641 (.6,525,8161

Adjullitment:s for Cash 6udeet Requirements:

Profit on Sale of Assets lOb 1474,81’) (1,763,103) (5,6g4,2131

loss on Sale of Assets 20b 190,288 201,388 271,825

Depredation on Non Current Assets :z. 30,241.974 28,299,179 27,465,49B

Provision for Site Rehabilitation 13 505,193 490,620

AmortisatIon on Non Current Assets lOb 11 1,190,921 1,120,764 1,391.018

Movement in Non-Current Emplovee Benefit Provisions 13 73.331 74,982

Movement in Deferred Pensioners Receivable (",468) (11’ 8"’1

11,117,475 2,1,858,2.28 21,889,923

capital Expenditu(e and Revenue

Purchase of Land Vb 167’.48>) I110ooo} (836.966]

Purchas~ of Buildings ’" (13,104.3’4) 1 17,664 ooo) 133.3",3091

Purchase of Plant and MachInery g. (l’67.809) 13,9’2000} (7,9251371

Purchase of Furniture .,nd Equipment Vb 1414.0491 ’509.0001 ’1.1584571

Purchase of Computer Equipment ’" (1,340.778) 12,191.915) (9431811

Construction of Roads Infrastructure lOb (10.208.02’) 111.76978S) fl4.500,7451

Construction of Drainage Infrastructure lOb {794,477) 11.000000) (536.05SI

Construction of Footpath Infrastructure lOb 1876.253) (1,180ol4ll) (925.1211

Const.ruction of Parks Hard Infrastrucl’ure lOb (6.7\2.7931 1..\92.000) 17.709222)

Construction of Parks Soft Infrastructure 11.500.000}

Construction of Refuse Site Infrastructure lOb 1208,40l1 11""0001 (2\6.5871

Proceeds on sale 01 AsSt:ls 20b 1,651.090 3,578,000 12.S03,97S

Contributions/Grants for the development of As.sets 2’ ll,45S,693 11.336,931 11,063,443

Net Movement in Gifted Assets .. 1741,059J {14,566.l851

Developer Contribution Plans. Casn 8,734.325 6,017,736 5.631,840

Repayment of Loans 22 12,500,000) 12.597176} ,3,243,1131

Transfers from Reserves (Restricted Assets) .. 24,280,163 19.082,531 82.296,608

Transfers to Reserves (Re.stricted Assets! I’ m,sn,51.) (25.599,’’’’1 161.21’.7221

(33,214.1231 (36.886,4251 (36,32’.7961

NET (",l76.6031 (10l,d66,!t6Z! ,....60....1

Add Opening F=unds 3’ 6,643.985 I,SOO,OOO 9.267.511

less Closing Funds 38 11,9:67,494 14,487 6,643,985

Amount Required to be Raised from Rates (",600.1121 ,....81,4.., (96,331,163)

r ~ Ror~ Snrl"9 Statement should bt" read;n conJunCflon wlll1lhe accompanying "OI’f’S.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial 

report are presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

a. Basis of Preparation

The financial report comprises general purpose financial statements which have been prepared 

in accordanc:e with Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local governments and 

not-for-profit entities) and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and 

the Local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations.

The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 take precedence over 

Australian Accounting Standards. Regulation 16 prohibits a local government from recognising 

as assets Crown land that is a public thoroughfare, such as land under roads, and land not 

owned by but under the control or management of the local government, unless it is a golf 

course, showground, racecourse or any other sporting or recreational facility of State or 

regional significance. Consequently, some assets, including land under roads acquired on or 

after 1 July 2008, have not been recognised in this financial report. This is not in accordance 

with the requirements of AASB 1051 Land Under Roads paragraph 15 and AASB 116 Property, 

Plant and Equipment paragraph 7.

Accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report have 

been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. Except for cash flow and rate setting 

information, the report has been prepared on the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, 

modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, 

financial assets and liabilities.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with the Australian Accounting Standards 

requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the 

application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The results of this 

experience and other factors combine to form the basis of making judgements about carrying 

values of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates.

The advisors model valuations, which are based on future cash flows, are derived from a 

number of factors including information obtained from an angers of individual securities and 

ratings agencies, reviews of the components of the relevant securities and also movements in 

applicable credit spreads.
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The local government report ng ent ty

All Funds through which the City controls resources to carryon its functions have been included 

in the financial statements forming part of this financial report.

In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and 

balances between those funds (for example, loans and transfers between Funds) have been 

eliminated.

b. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of 

GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with receivables or payables in the 

statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from 

investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 

presented as operating cash flows.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an 

original maturity of six months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and 

cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are 

included as short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

d. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and service 

charges and other amounts due from third parties for goods sold and services performed in the 

ordinary course of business.

Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are 

classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are 

known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is 

raised when there is objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

~ 
~
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e. Inventories

General

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion 

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

f. Fixed Assets

Each class of fixed assets within either property, plant and equipment or infrastructure, is 

carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation 

and impairment losses.

Mandatory requirement to revalue non-current assets

Effective from 1 July 2012, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 

were amended and the measurement of non-current assets at Fair Value became mandatory.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the City commenced the process of adopting Fair Value in 

accordance with the Regulations.

Whilst the amendments initially allowed for a phasing in of fair value in relation to fixed assets 

over three years, as at 30 June 2017 all non-current assets were carried at Fair Value in 

accordance with the requirements.

Thereafter, each asset class must be revalued in accordance with the regulatory framework 

established and the City revalues its asset classes in accordance with this mandatory timetable.

Relevant disclosures, in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, 

have been made in the financial report as necessary.

Land under control

In accordance with Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 16(a), the City was 

required to include as an asset (by 30 June 2013}, Crown Land operated by the local government 

as a golf course, showground, racecourse or other sporting or recreational facility of State or 

Regional significance.

Upon initial recognition, these assets were recorded at cost in accordance with MSB 116. They 

were then classified as Land and revalued along with other land in accordance with the other 

policies detailed in this Note.

Initial recognition and measurement between mandatory revaluation dates

All assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently revalued in accordance with the 

mandatory measurement framework detailed above.

In relation to this initial measurement, cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as 

consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. For assets acquired at no cost or for
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nominal consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of 

non-current assets constructed by the City includes the cost of all materials used in 

construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 

overheads.

Individual assets acquired between initial recognition and the next revaluation of the asset class 

in accordance with the mandatory measurement framework detailed above, are carried at cost 

less accumulated depreciation as management believes this approximates fair value. They will 

be subject to subsequent revaluation at the next anniversary date in accordance with the 

mandatory measurement framework detailed above.

Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets are credited to a revaluation 

surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are recognised 

against revaluation surplus directly in equity. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.

Land under Roads

In Western Australia, all land under roads is Crown Land, the responsibility for managing which, 

is vested in the local government.

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected not to recognise any value for land under roads 

acquired on or before 30 June 2008. This accords with the treatment available in Australian 

Accounting Standard AASB 1051 Land Under Roads and the requirement of Regulation 16(a) (i) 

of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations that prohibits local government 

from recognising such land as an asset of local government.

In respect of land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008, as detailed above, Regulation 

16(a) (i) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations prohibits local 

government from recognising such land as an asset of local government.

Whilst such treatment is inconsistent with the requirements of AASB 1051, Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 4(2) provides, in the event of such an inconsistency, the 

local Government (Financial Management) Regulations prevail.

Consequently, any land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008 is not included as an asset 

of the City.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

The depreciation amount of all fixed assets including buildings but excluding freehold land, are 

depreciated on straight-line basis over the individual asset’s useful life from the time the asset is 

held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the 

unexpired period of the lease or the estimated life of the improvements.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at 

the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:
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1) The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of 

the carrying amount of the asset. For example, the gross carrying amount may be restated 

by reference to observable market data or it may be restated proportionately to the change 

in the carrying amount. The accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is 

adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying 

amount of the asset after taking into account accumulated impairment losses; or 

2) Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to 

the revalued amount of the asset.

Depreciation is recognised over the asset’s useful life, as follows: 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings (Components) 

Furniture and Equipment 

Computer Equipment 

Plant & Machinery 

Infrastructure Assets

30-50 years 

3-10 years 

3-5 years 

3-10 years

Infrastructure - Footpaths 

Infrastructure - Drainage 

Infrastructure - Roads: Surface 

Infrastructure - Roads: Base 

Infrastructure - Roads: Sub-Base 

Infrastructure - Roads: Kerbing 

Infrastructure - Bridges 

Infrastructure - Parks Equipment 

Infrastructure - Marina 

Infrastructure - Landfill 

Bus Shelters

20-50 years 

30-75 years 

15-25 years 

50-80 years 

80-100 yea rs 

20-50 years 

30-50 years 

10-30 years 

20-100 years 

10-80 years 

15-40 years

Capitalisation Threshold 

Asset Class 

Land 

Buildings 

Furniture & Equipment I Computer Equipment 

Plant & Machinery 

Infrastructure Assets 

Software

$

5,000 

5,000 

5,000 

100,000

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end 

of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 

These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in 

which they arise.

g. Financiallnstruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the City becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that 

the City commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is 

adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where 

the instrument is classified ’at fair value through profit or loss’, in which case transaction costs 

are expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method, or at cost.

Amortised cost is calculated as: 

(a) The amount in which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial 

recognition; 

(b) less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment; and 

(c) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount 

initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest rate 

method.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the 

relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or 

receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 

expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial 

instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to 

expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a 

consequential recognition of an income or expense in profit or loss.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A 

financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the 

short term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. 

Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

ii) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those 

with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non- 

current assets.
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iii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments and fixed maturities that the Council’s management has the positive intention and 

ability to hold to maturity. If Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to- 

maturity financial assets, the whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-tar- 

sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for those with 

maturities less than 12 months from the reporting date, which are classified as current assets.

ivY Available-far-sale financial assets 

Available-far-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non- 

derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other 

categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of 

the investment within 12 months. Investments are designated as available-far-sale if they do 

not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments and management intends to hold 

them for the medium to long term.

They are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in such fair value (i.e. gains or 

losses) recognised in other comprehensive income (except for impairment losses). When the 

financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously 

recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss.

v) Financial liabilities 

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Recognition Qnd derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date on which 

Council commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value 

plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value 

and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised 

when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been 

transferred and Council has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments 

recognised in equity are included as gains and losses from investment securities.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are 

subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the income 

statement within other income or other expenses in the period in which they arise. Dividend 

income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is recognised in the income
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statement as part of revenue from continuing operations when Council’s right to receive 

payments is established. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-monetary 

securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Impairment

Council assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 

assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or 

prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered as an indicator that 

the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 

cumulative loss- measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair 

value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is 

removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised on 

equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed.

h_ Fair Value of Assets and liabilties

When performing a revaluation, the City uses a mix of both independent and management 

valuations using the following as a guide:

Fair Value is the price that the City would receive to sell the asset or would have to pay to 

transfer a liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, 

knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing 

information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having 

regard to the characteristics of the specific asset. The fair values of assets that are not traded in 

an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation 

techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the 

asset (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset) or, in the 

absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of 

the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset after 

taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market 

participant’s ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market 

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fair Value Hierarchy

AASB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, 

which categorises fair value measurement into one of three possible levels based on the lowest 

level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

I~~ ’I
103 of 202

Version: 2, Version Date: 09/05/2019
Document Set ID: 7943624



Item 13.2 Attachment 1 ASFC 15/11/2018

City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Levell 

Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 

Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Levell that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 

Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined 

using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent 

possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair 

value are observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs 

are not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques

The City selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data 

primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The 

valuation techniques selected by the City are consistent with one or more of the following 

valuation approaches:

Market approach 

Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market 

transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Income approach 

Valuation techniques that use convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into 

a single discounted present value.

Cost approach 

Valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service 

capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting 

a valuation technique, the City gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of 

observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using 

market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the 

assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability and 

considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are 

developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered 

unobservable.

104 of 202 .~ 
"’",_...... . 

’rS~

Version: 2, Version Date: 09/05/2019
Document Set ID: 7943624



ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 13.2 Attachment 1

City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

As detailed above, the mandatory measurement framework imposed by the Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulations 1996 requires, as a minimum, all assets carried at a 

revalued amount to be revalued at least every 3 years.

i. Impairment of Assets

In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the City’s assets, other than inventories, are 

assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication they may be 

impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the 

recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 

value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount.

Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with 

another Standard (e.g. AASB 116) whereby any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as 

a revaluation decrease in accordance with that other Standard.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is 

represented by the depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

j. Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost. They represent liabilities for goods and 

services provided to the Municipality prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and 

arise when the Municipality becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the 

purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are usually settled 

within 30 days of recognition.

k. Employee Benefits

The provisions for employee benefits relates to amounts expected to be paid for long service 

leave, annual leave, wages and salaries and are calculated as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for the City’s obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term 

employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled 

wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees 

render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee 

benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation 

is settled.

The City’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave 

are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial 

position.
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Other long-term employee benefits 

The City’s obligations for employees’ annual leave and long service leave entitlements are 

recognised as provisions in the statement of financial position, Provision is made for employees’ 

long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related 

service, Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the expected 

future payments to be made to employees, Expected future payments incorporate anticipated 

future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted 

at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 

government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations, Any 

remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee 

benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur,

The City’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions 

in its statement of financial position, except where the City does not have an unconditional right 

to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case 

the obligations are presented as current provisions,

I. Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received 

less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan 

facilities that are yield related are included as part of the carrying amount of the loans and 

borrowings,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred except where they are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Where this is 

the case, they are capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset until such time as the 

asset is substantially ready for its intended use or sale,

m. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: The Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not 

recognised for future operating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required 

in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole, A provision is
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recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone item included in the 

same class of obligations may be small.

n. Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership 

of the asset, but not legal ownership, are transferred to the City, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability at the lower amounts equal to 

the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, 

including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction 

of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful 

lives or the lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with 

the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight 

line basis over the life of the lease term.

o. Interests in Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements represent the contractual sharing of control between parties in a business 

venture where unanimous decisions about relevant activities are required.

Separate joint venture entities providing joint venturers with an interest to net assets are 

classified as a joint venture and accounted for using the equity method. Refer to note l(p) for a 

description of the equity method of accounting.

Joint venture operations represent arrangements whereby joint operators maintain direct 

interests in each asset and exposure to each liability of the arrangement.

p. Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the City has significant influence. Significant influence is the 

power to participate in the financial operating policy decisions of that entity but is not control or 

joint control of those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for in the financial 

statements by applying the equity method of accounting, whereby the investment is initially 

recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the City’s share of 

net assets of the associate. In addition, the City’s share of the profit or loss of the associate is 

included in the City’s profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the investment includes, where applicable, goodwill relating to the 

associate. Any discount on acquisition, whereby the City’s share of the net fair value of the 

associate exceeds the cost of investment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which 

the investment is acquired.
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Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the City and the associate are eliminated 

to the extent of the City’s interest in the associate.

When the City’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 

the City discontinues recognising its share of further losses unless it has incurred legal or 

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. When the associate 

subsequently makes profits, the City will resume recognising its share of those profits once its 

share ofthe profits equals the share of the losses not recognised.

q. Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions

Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the local 

government obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions. Control over assets 

acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where earlier, 

upon receipt of the rates.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the 

condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and 

those conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts 

pertaining to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in Note 20(c). That note also 

discloses the amount of contributions recognised as revenues in a previous reporting period 

which were obtained in respect of the local government’s operation for the current reporting 

period.

r. Superannuation

The Council is a member of the Western Australian Local Government Superannuation Plan 

(WALGSP). This is a Defined Contributions Plan and Council contributes at the rate of 105% for 

the Superannuation Guarantee Charge, plus additional matching contributions of up to 4% 

where agreed.

s. Rounding Off Figures

All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the dollar, are displayed 

rounded to the nearest dollar but summed to two decimal places.

t. Comparative Figures

Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in 

presentation for the current financial year.

u. Current and Non-Current Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non.current, consideration is 

given to the time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is 

classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the City’s 

operational cycle. In the case of liabilities where the City does not have the unconditional right 

to defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as vested long service leave, the liability is
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classified as current even if not expected to be settled within the next 12 months. Inventories 

held for trading are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in the next 12 

months except for land held for resale where it is held as non-current based on the City’s 

intentions to release for sale.

v. Budget Information

Budget figures shown in the financial statements have been disclosed as per the legislative 

requirements. Where necessary, budget information has been recast to comply with current 

presentation requirements. Unless otherwise stated, the budget comparative figures shown in 

this annual financial report relate to the original budget estimate for the relevant item of 

disclosure.

w. New Accounting Standards and Interpretations for Application in Future Periods

The AASB has issued a number of new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

that have mandatory application dates for future reporting periods, some of which are relevant 

to the City.

Management’s assessment of the new and amended pronouncements that are relevant to the 

City, applicable to future reporting periods and which have not yet been adopted are set out as 

follows: 

Title

(i) AASB 9 Financial 

Instruments 

(incorporating AASB 

2014-7 and AASB 

2014-8)

Issued / 

Compiled 

December

Applicable!!)

2014

1 January 

2018

(ii) AASB 15 Revenue 

from Contracts with 

Customers

December 

2014

1 January 

2019

Impact

Nil - The objective of this Standard is to 

improve and simplify the approach for 

classification and measurement of 

financial assets compared with the 

requirements of AASB 139. Given the 

nature of the financial assets of the City, 

it’s not anticipated the Standard will 

have any material effect.

This Standard establishes principles for 

entities to apply to report useful 

information to users of financial 

statements about the nature, amount, 

timing and uncertainty of revenue and 

cash flows arising from a contract with 

a customer. 

The effect of this standard will depend 

on the nature of future transactions the 

City has with those third parties it has 

dealings with. It mayor may not be 

significant.

Notes: (1) Applicable to reporting periods commencing on or after the given date.
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Title

(iii) AASB 16 Leases

(iv) AASBlOSB Income 

of Not -for Profit 

Entities

Issued / 

Compiled 

February 

2016

December 

2016

Applicablelll

1 January 

2019

1 January 

2019

Impact

Under AABB 16 there is no longer a distinction 

between finance and operating leases. Lessees 

will now bring to account a right-to-use asset 

and lease liability into the statement of 

financial position for all leases. Effectively this 

means the vast majority of operating leases as 

defined by the current AASB 117 Leases which 

currently do not impact the statement of 

financial position will be required to be 

capitalised on the statement of financial 

position when AASB 16 is adopted.

Currently, operating lease payments are 

expensed as incurred. This will cease and will 

be replaced by both depreciation and interest 

charges. Based on the current number of 

operating leases held by the City, the impact is 

not expected to be significant.

These standards are. likely to have a significant 

impact on the income recognition for NFP’s. 

Key areas for consideration are:

. Assets received below fair value; 

. Transfers received to acquire or 

construct non-financial assets; 

. Grants received; 

. Prepaid rates; 

. Leases entered into at below market 

rates; and 

. Volunteer services

Whilst it is not possible to quantify the 

financial impact (or if it is material) of these 

key areas until the details of future 

transactions are known, they will all have 

application to the City’s operations.

Notes: (1) Applicable to reporting periods commencing on or after the given date.
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x. Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

During the current year, the City adopted all of the new and revised Australian Accounting 

Standards and Interpretations which were compiled, became mandatory and which were 

applicable to its operations.

(i) AASB 2016-4 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards - Recoverable 

Amount of Non-Cash- 

Generating Specialised 

Assets of Not-for-Profit 

Entities.

1 January 2017

(ii) AASB 2016-7 Amendments 

to Accounting Standards - 

Deferral of AASB 15 for 

Non-for-Profit Entities.

1 January 2017

y. Intangible Assets

Easements

The Council has determined that under AASB 138 Intangible Assets, easements are valued on an 

historical cost basis, because it is unlikely that an active market in easements exists to allow for 

fair value measurement. Due to acquisition of easements at NIL values, no easements have 

been included in the financial report.

z. Provision for Restoration, Rehabilitation and Site Monitoring Costs

The City complies with the full provision method for accounting provisions in respect of 

restoration, rehabilitation and site monitoring costs. Charges are made to expenses based on 

the estimated costs of restoring, rehabilitating and monitoring the landfill site. The rate charge 

is reviewed annually and is based on an estimated cost per tonne. The cost per tonne is arrived 

at after taking into account a standard engineering c’ost per cubic metre of landfill, the density 

of the waste and the most recent aerial surveys. Engineering rates differ according to the nature 

of the obligation to provide the service.

aa. Future capping Expenditure

The liability for estimated future capping expenditure is provided for through a rehabilitation 

provision on a phase.by-phase basis and is discounted to its present value, with the unwinding 

of the discount being charged to the statement of comprehensive income within the 

amortisation charge. The discounted present value of the future capping expenditure is also 

capitalised as part of the rehabilitation asset and is amortised on a straight-line basis. Changes
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in estimates are recognised prospectively with corresponding adjustments to the provision and 

associated costs.

bb. Land Held for Resale

Land purchased for development and/or resale is valued at the lower of cost and fair value less 

costs to sell. Cost includes the cost of acquisition, development and interest incurred on the 

financing of that land during its development. Interest and holding charges incurred after 

development is complete are recognised as expenses.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss at the time of signing an unconditional contract 

of sale if significant risks and rewards, and effective control over the land, are passed on to the 

buyer at this point.

Land held for resale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based on the 

Council’s intention to release for sale.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF UIE FINANCIAL REPORT

2a. Revenue and Expenses

Actual 8ud&et Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

The net result Includes’ S S S

Ii) CHARGING AS AN EXPENSE

Auditors Remuneration

Audit of financial statements 30,000 30,000 29,000

Audit of proJect. acqlllltls 883 10,445 13,332

30/883 40,445 42,332

Depreciation

BUlldmgs 5,987,676 5,350.032 5,360,475

Plant and Machinery 3,221,086 2,999,255 2,872,152

Furniture Equipment 361,032 203.364 142,509

Computer EqUipment 982,607 250,320 211.278

Infrastructure - Roads 11,069,610 11,087,508 10,735,077

Infrastructure. Drainage 2,532,59. 2,524,704 2,444.452

Infrastruc:tuf’t:. Footpaths 1,369,401 1.208,220 1,169,810

Infrastructure - Parks EQuipment 3,772,152 3,701,592 3,583,931

Infrastructure - Marina 945,815 974,184 945,815

30,241,974 28,299,179 27,465,498

Amortisation

Infrastructure. landfill 1,390,921 1,120,764 1,391,018

Interest Expenses

Debentures (refer Note 22) 726,777 816,699 966,490

Rental Charees

Oper tini leases 933,245 761,793 606,372

Other Expenses

M~mbers Travelling EJcpenses 8,106 10,000 11,853

RRRC fundfng Payment 1,667,547 1,658.623 1,574,225

Aust P~rform Riehts Assoc f~~s 6,701 3,188 4,027

Contrtbution - ESL 55,900 55,660

Contribution. SMRC 751,044 140,064 331,760

Customer Refunds 6,683

Study Fees Contributed 64,414 90,000 76,723

Donations 1,033,690 1,338,250 984,928

Landfill Low 3,569,403 3.778,615 2.989,955

Mayoral Allowance 88,864 88.864 81,459

Reimbursement - Manaeement Aereements 6,100

Llcensine EJcpenses 103,011 191,119 100,261

Deputy Mayoral Allowance 22,251 22,2l6 22,216

Contribution to Operatrnc Costs 14,000 14,000 14,000

Wast~ l~vy offset - Gateways Landfitl Charges 83,356 120.000 95.264

Public liability Excess 6,036

Insurance Excess 20,325

ESllcV\’ . CounCIl Pro~rties 123,042 80,291 11.6,125

Vehicle to ESL - Free of Charge 30,625

fuel Issues 779,482 770,206 757,056

Educator Servke Fee R~coup 367,275 52,000 327,056

Parent Service Fee recoup 292,980 585,262 222,305

Minor Other Expenses 1,415 2.100 2.051

8,996,907 9/006,198 7,810,268

Iii) CREDITING AS REVENUE

Grants/Contributions towards Assets ll,455.693 11,336,931 11,063.443

Increase/(Deaease) In Equity - SMRC Joint Venture 15,669,422) 499,833

Interest Earnings

Interest received on Reserve Funds 2,258,709 1,829,128 2,329,289

Interest received on Other Funds 2,808,203 2,913,840 2,828,243

5,066,912 4,742,968 5,151,5.32
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To make the City of Cockburn the most attractive place to live, work, visit and Invest in, within the Perth 

metropolitan area.

The City of Cockburn has adopted the program/activity structure outlined in Schedule 1 of the Local Government 

(Financial Managementl Regulations. The City has Incorporated the allocation of internal service provision costs 

throughout the various programs/activities.

Council operations as disclosed in this budget encompass the following service orientated programs/activities:

The collection of general-purpose revenue including rates and penalties, general-purpose grants and interest on 

investments. This provides the funding for much of the City’s programs/activities.

The administration and operation of facilities and services to the elected members of Council. Also includes 

other corporate type costs that are not related to the specific service areas covered under the other programs.

Provision of community safety services including supervision of various by-laws, animal and dog control, a 

security patrol service, fire prevention and voluntary emergency services.

The provision of environmental health services Including food quality and pest control.

The provision of support services to families and children, the aged and disabled and senior citizens. The 

provision of’ pre- schools and services and facilities for the youth.

Refuse collection, recycling and disposal. the operation of the Henderson Landfill site, 

protection of the environment, administration of the town planning scheme and maintenance of bus shelters.

The provision and operation of community halls and recreation centres, parks and ovals, beach reserves and 

swimming areas and library facilities. The development and provision of arts and cultural events.

This program includes road, drainage and footpath construction and maintenance. The provision and 

maintenance of streetscapes is also included, as is the purchase of heavy plant and the operations of the council 

works depot

Activities associated with the control of building activity within the city and the provision of facilities and 

services that encourage tourism.

Includes private works and engineering overheads and plant operating costs (both of which are allocated to the 

City’s works programl.
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3. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$ $

762,182 2,896,742

29,212 22,500

139,747,691 112.476.840

138,691,393 113,819,242

118,034,611 100,602,935

20,656,782 13,216,307

138,691,393 113,819,242

90,881,570 82,590,191

12,141,558 9,424.250

16,033,299 13,508,629

119,056,427 105.523,070

(1,021,816) (4,920,136)

118,034,611 100,602,935

118,034,611 100,602,935

Cash at Bank 

Cash on Hand 

Term Deposits

Restricted 

Unrestricted

Cash/Investment Backed Reserves 

Council Funded 

Externally Funded 

Development Contribution Plans 

Sub-total (refer note 14) 

Less: 

Funds held in current & non-current investments (refer 

note 4)

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH
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4a. Financial Assets

CURRENT 

Held to Maturity Investments maturing within 12 mths of 

reporting period (refer note 3)

Actual 

2017/18 

$

Actual 

2016/17 

$

3.841,492

NON CURRENT 

Held to Maturity Investments maturing later than 12 mths from 

reporting period (refer note 3). 

Mortgage-Backed securities 1.021.816 1.078,644

Available for Sale Financial Assets 

Investment in WALGA Local Government House Trust 123.734 123,808

1,145,550 1.202,453

All held to maturity Investments are restricted in nature (see note 3).

’) This note discloses the equity the Dty has in the Local 

Government House Trust as a consequence of a contribution 

towards the cost of purchasing Local Government House.

The total contribution by all Councils towards the cost of the 

WALGA building was $582.000. There are 620 units in the Local 

Government House Unit Trust, 8 of which are held by the Dty of 

Cockburn.

4b. Assets Gifted to Other Parties

Public Open Space on Lot 8010 Spearwood Ave Beeliar - gifted to 

the State 351.750

Road Reserve on Lot 42-44 Frankland Ave - gifted to the State 

Road Reserve on 12 Packham North Ocean Crescent - gifted to 

the State 

Operation Centre sewerage Infrastructure on and a round 54 

Wellard St - gifted to Water Corporation

330.000

59.308

1,295,940

A portion of Cockburn ARC - gifted to Fremantle Football Club 13.270.445

741,058 14,566,385

5. Interests in Joint Ventures

NON CURRENT 

Joint Venture in SMRC

Refer note 17 for further detail on SMRC Joint Venture

923.569 

923.569

6,592,991 

6.592.991
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City of Cockburn

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

6. Trade & Other Receivables

Actual Aclual

2017/18 2016/17

$ $

2,082,764 2,122,054

88,904 92,994

3,694,999 3,866,702

525,731 813,159

1,847,691 1,576,840

8,240,088 8,471,749

958,125 858,657

958,125 858,657

CURRENT 

Rates Outstanding 

Rubbish Charges Outstanding 

Sundry Debtors 

GST Receivable 

Other Receivables

NON CURRENT

Rates Outstanding - Pensioners

7. Other Assets

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

CURRENT $ S

Prepayments 282,233 911,565

282,233 911,565

8. Inventories

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$ S

Fuel Depot 35,600 21,782

35,600 21,782
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City of Cockburn

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

11. Rehabilitation Assets

Actual 

2017/18

Actual 

2016/17

NON CURRENT 

Post closure rehabilitation assets 

Less: Accumulated amortisation

16,517,533 

(611,760) 

15,905,773

16,517,533 

(305,880) 

16,211,653

Movements in carrying amounts of post closure rehabilitation assets during the financial year are shown as 

follows.

Opening balance at 1 July 
Increase / (decrease) in provision resulting from the 

remeasurement of the estimated future cash flows 

Amortisation 

Closing Balance at 30 June

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$

16,211,653 16,517,533

(305,880) (305,880)

15,905,773 16,211,653

12a. Trade & Other payables

CURRENT 

Creditors 

Accrued Expenses 

Income Received in Advance 

GST Payable

Actual 

2017/18 

$ 

5,525,506 

2,748,371 

1,020,338 

1,222,049 

10,516,264

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

7,360,147 

1.380,819 

597,526 

42,514 

9,381,006

12b. Borrowings

CURRENT 

Fixed Loan - Secured by charge over General Funds (PPSA 

Security Interest)

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$ $

2,500,000 2,500,000

17,500,000 20,000,000

NON CURRENT 

Fixed Loan - Secured by charge over General Funds (PPSA 

Security Interest)

Additional detail on borrowings is provided in Note 22.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

13. Provisions

Actual 

2017/18 

$ 

CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS RELATED PROVISIONS 

Employees Annual Leave 2,967,798 

Employees long Service leave 2,269,834 

Employees On. Costs 1.493,314 

6,730,946

Actual 

2016/17 

S

2,984,332 

2,132,812 

1,479,270 

6,596,413

NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS RELATED PROVISIONS 

Employees long Service leave 1,759,854 

Employees On-Costs 262,967 

2,022,821

1,696,012 

253,427 

1,949,439

NON-CURRENT OTHER PROVISIONS

Provision for Site Rehabilitation 17,513,346 17,008,153

17,513,346 17,008,lS3

TOTAL PROVISIONS 26,267,113 25,554,006

ANALYSIS OF TOTAL PROVISIONS

Current 6,730,946 6,596,413

Non-Current 19,536,167 18,957,592

26,267,113 25,554,006

Provision for Provision for long Provision for Site

Annual leave Service leave Rehabilitation Total

$ $ $ $

Opening balance as at 30 June 2017 4,144,905 4.400,947 17,008,153 25,554,006

Provisions made 1,823,874 318.420 505,193 2,647,487

Amounts used (3,000,981) (689,680) (3,690,661)

Balance at 30 June 2018 2,967,798 4,029,688 17,513,346 24,510,832

Provision for Provision for long Provision for Site

Annual leave Service leave Rehabilitation Total

$ $ $ $

Opening balance as at 30 June 2016 3,312,104 3.988,241 16,517,533 23,817,879

Provisions made 3.450,039 911,434 490,620 4,852,092

Amounts used (2,617,238) (498,727) (3,1l5,965)

Balance at 30 June 2017 4,144,905 4,400,947 17,008,153 25,554,006

I’\~ ’I
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Annual Leave Liabilties

Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months 

after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 

expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 

More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

2017/18 

2,280,180 

687,718 

2,967,798

2016/17 

2,405,721 

1,623,967 

4,029,688

The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in 

relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Long Service Leave Liabilities

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the City of Cockburn 

does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 

the end of the reporting period.

Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 

because the City of Cockburn has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability until the 

employee has completed the requisite years of service.

Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 

More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

2017/18 

2,609,004 

1,420,684 

4,029,688

2016/17 

2,451,508 

1,949,439 

4,400,947

The provision for long service leave is calculated at the present value as the City of Cockburn does 

not expect to wholly settle the amounts within 12 months. The present value is measured taking into 

account the present value of expected future payments to be made in relation to services provided 

by employees up to the reporting date. These payments are estimated using the remuneration rate 

expected to apply at the time of settlement, and discounted using market yields at the end of the 

reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 

possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Employee On-Cost Provision

The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities give rise to the payment of 

employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value 

of expected future payments.
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and 

are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment wo which they relate has 

occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ’Employee Costs’ in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. The related liability is included in ’Employees On-Costs’ provision.

Carrying amount at start of period 

Additional (reversal of) provisions recognised

2017/18 

1,732,697 

23,584 

1,756,281

2016/17 

1,090,856 

641,841 

1,732,697

I,~ ’I
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City of Cockburn

Financial Re ort

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

14. Reserves

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ $ $

1. Staff Payment. & Entitlements

Opening Balance 1,947,631 2,118,183 2,115,293

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 35,725 45,068 45,778

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 125,000 125,000 119,822

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (398,625) (172.000) (333,262)

1,709,732 2,116,251 1,947,631

2. Plant & Vehicle Replacement

Opening Balance 7,371,172 7,096,929 8,252,372

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 184,817 105,975 165,730

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 3,661,516 3,038,000 2,966,421

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (1,862,834) (2,328.292) (4,013,350)

9,354,672 7,912,612 7,371,172

3. Information Technology

Opening Balance 290,055 379,658

ransfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 5,035 8,082 7,747

ransfer from Accumulated Surplus 100,000 100,000 100,000

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (188,525) (48,744) (197,350)

206,565 59,338 290,055

4. Major Buildin.: Refurbishment

Opening Balance 11,573,486 11,482.745 9,828,567

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 259,922 133,850 224,591

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,620,328

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (240,000) (100,000)

13,093,407 13,116,595 11,573,486

5. Waste & Recycling

Opening Balance 13,165,896 12,366,302 23,846,752

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 268,858 348,847 329,115

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 1,646,594 1,472,079 1.271,022

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (945,146) (447,508) (12,280,992)

l4,136,202 13,739,720 13,165,896

6. land Development and Investment Fund

Opening Balance 4,177,766 4,794,906 6.348,831

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 83,436 251,777 101,680

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 359,212 3,010,000 11,141,607

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (863,798) (310,000) (13,414,353)

3,756,615 7,746,683 4,177,766

7. Road. & Drainace Infrastructure

Opening Balance 13,987,382 13,446,390 8,159,206

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 309.299 64,880 246,952

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 2,041,646 1,500,000 5,754,502

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (892,103) (2,433,333) (173,277)

15,446,223 12,577,937 13,987,382

’I-. 
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City of Cockburn

Financial Report
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

14. Reserves

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ S S

8. Naval Base Shacks

Opening Balance 1.077.675 1.115.536 935,871

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 21.510 22.969 21,428

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 75,363 75,363 120,375

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (95,534) (65.000)

1,078,013 1,148,868 1,077,675

9, Community Infrastructur.

Opening Balance 13,210,265 12,278,153 12,096,036

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 314,659 109,782 264,703

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 2,356,082 3,632,000 4,504,635

ransfer to Accumulated Surplus (1,001,113) (3,330,000) (3,555,111)

14,879,832 12,689,935 13,210,265

10. Insurance

Opening Balance 328,198 312,051 488,961

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 18.042 8,090 9,737

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 925,580 14.500

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (9,000) (50,000) (185,000)

1,262,819 270,141 328,198

11. Greenhouse Action Fund

Opening Balance 349,919 901,331

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 8.839 10,330 16,195

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 200,000 200,000 1.450,000

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (138,325) (2,017,608)

420,432 210,330 349,919

12. Aged and Disabled Asset Replacement

Opening Balance 223,193 173,575 325,947

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 4,684 8,628 5,285

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 68,129

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (36,874) (39,000) (177,168)

191,003 143,203 223,193

13. Welfare Projects Employee Entitlements

Opening Balance 459,203 503,743 479,810

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 10,052 9,223 10,971

ransfer from Accumulated Surplus 252,888 15,671

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (14,012) (47,249)

708,130 512,966 459,203

14. HWRP Post Closure Management & Contaminated Sites

Opening Balance 2,359,654 2,270,475 2,322,695

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 49,551 47,780 52,361

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

ransfer to Accumulated Surplus (85,000) (15,401)

2,324,206 2,318,255 2,359,654
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Item 13.2 Attachment 1 ASFC 15/11/2018

City of Cockburn

Financial Report
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS,

14. Reserves

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ $ $

15, Municipal Elections

Opening Balance 155,198 156,894 34,213

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 3,839 2,681 984

rransfer from Accumulated Surplus 120,000 120,000 120,000

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (200,000) (200,000)

79,037 79,575 155,198

16, Welfare Redundancies

Opening Balance 41,748 41,622 40,825

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 886 797 923

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

42,634 42,419 41,748

17, Port Cooeee Special Maintenance. SAR

Opening Balance 1,246,841 1,325,764 1.400,129

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 31,633 26,794 29,760

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 351,247 274,000 256,936

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (211,591) (439,984)

1,418,130 1,626,558 1,246,841

18, Port Coogee Waterways. SAR

Opening Balance 112.4 77 117,533

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 3,287 8,685 3,629

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 56,000 56,000 188,590

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (79,742) (79,742) (79,742)

92,022 102,476 112,477

19, Community Surveillance

Opening Balance 1.097,742 969,084 1,245,490

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 23,183 22,594 27,369

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 200,000 200,000 200,000

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (416,967) (369,115) (375,117)

903,958 822,563 1,097,742

20, Waste Collection

Opening Balance 2,437,627 2,543,307 2,641,530

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 46,756 63,366 50,763

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 79,349 1,000,000 1,027,352

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (471,435) (421,200) (1,282,018)

2,092,296 3,185,473 2,437,627

21, Family Day Care Accumulation Fund

Opening Balance 8,482 8,295 8,295

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus, Interest 180 187

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 44,025

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (22,012)

30,675 8,29S 8,482
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ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 13.2 Attachment 1

City of Cockburn

Financial Report
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

14. Reserves

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ S $

22. Underground Power - Service Charge

Opening Balance 222.504 222.504

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus’ Interest 5,029

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (227,532)

222,504

23. Naval Bas. Shack Removal

Opening Balance 526,838 501,724 461,814

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 11,162 10,217 10,533

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 54,693

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (10,000) (202)

528,000 511,941 526,838

24. Environmental Offset

Opening Balance 298,185 299,286 291,595

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus’ Interest 6,327 7,691 6,590

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

304,512 306,977 298,185

25. Bibr. L.ke Management Plan

Opening Balance 589,288 554,320 985,439

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 12.503 10,648 16,491

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (25,000) (412,642)

601,791 539,968 589,288

26. Restricted Grants & Contributions

Opening Balance 3,585,466 301,769 2,230,479

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 4,025,329 3,514,786

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (3,077,858) (2,159,798)

4,532,938 301,769 3,585,466

27. CIHCF Building Maintenance

Opening Balance 4,621,068 4,573,192 3,323,192

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 109,672 84,023

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 1,439,494 1,450,000 1,288,333

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (19,422) (74,479)

6,150,813 6,023,192 4,621,068

28. Cockburn ARC Building Maintenance

Opening Balance 500,000 1,419,762 10,880.762

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 10,608 53.000 125,909

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 1,500,000 8,300.000

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (18,806,671)

2,010,608 1,472,762 500,000
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Item 13.2 Attachment 1 ASFC 15/11/2018

City of Cockburn 

Financial Report 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS. 

14. Reserves

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

S S S

29. Carry Forward Projects

Opening Balance 3.974,994 710,429 4,020,698

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 5,419,903 6,584,183

rransfer to Accumulated Surplus (5,776,505) (6,629,887)

3,618,392 110,429 3,974,994

30. Port Coog.. Marina Assets Replacement

Opening Balance

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 423

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 300,000

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (15,000)

285,423

31. Port Coogee Waterways - WEMP

Opening Balance 2,296,993 1,937,180

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 47,424 40,372 35,418

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 45,000 2,464,768

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (626,266) (203,192) (203,192)

1,763,151 1,774,360 2,296,993

32. Cockburn Coast SAR

Opening Balance

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 1

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 896

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus

897

33. Development Contribution Plans (DCP) - Community Infrastructure

Opening Balance 5,964,447 9,715,696 10,361,258

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 184,299 220,238 218,853

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 5,749,609 5,000,000 4,644,522

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (6,184,101) (8,463,452) (9,260,186)

5,114,253 6,472,482 5,964,447

34. Development Contribution Plans (DCP) . Various

Opening Balance 7,544.182 8,330,102 6,497,765

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 192,100 77,827 156,723

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 2,980,077 1,017,736 1,003,258

Transfer to Accumulated Surplus (397,314) (96,955) (113,563)

10,319,045 9,328,710 7,544,182

35. Public Open Space (POS) Cash in lieu

Opening Balance 55,125 5,471.641

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus. Interest 108,937 53,833

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 96,000

ransler to Accumulated Surplus (5,621,474)

164,062
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ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 13.2 Attachment 1

City of Cockburn

Financial Report
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

14. Reserves

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ S $

SUMMARY CASH BACKED RESERVES

Opening Balance 105.523,070 101.742,576 126,599,957

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus - Interest 2,258,709 1,829,128 2,329,289

Transfer from Accumulated Surplus 35,554,811 23,770,178 58,890,433

rransfer to Accumulated Surplus (24,280,163) (19,082,533) (82,296,609)

TOTAL CASH BACKED RESERVES 119,056,427 108,259,349 105,523,070

RESERVES OTHER

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Opening Balance 503,528,001 568,241.909 575,432,360

Revaluation net increments made during the year 19,821,682 (71,904.359)

TOTAL RESERVES OTHER 523,349,683 568,241,909 503,528,001

TOTAL RESERVES 642,406,110 676,501,258 609,051,071
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City of Cockburn 

Financial Report

In accordance with council resolutions in relation to each reserve account, the purpose for which the 

reserves are set aside are as follows:

1. Staff Payments & Entitlements 

This Reserve provides for payment of various staff entitlements including separation, bonus, awards 

and other payments made to Staff either through contractual or statutory entitlement, other than leave 

liabilities already provided for within the City’s net asset position. 

Anticipated date of use ongoing

2. Plant & Vehicle Replacement 

This Reserve provides for the orderly replacement of plant and vehicles. Annual transfers into this 

Reserve are based on the estimated depreciation charge for plant each year. Funds are drawn as 

required to meet annual plant replacement costs. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

3. Information Technology 

This Reserve is used to provide for the capital cost of upgrading/replacement of CouncIl’s computer 

hardware and software 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

4. Major Building Refurbishment 

This Reserve provides funding for future major refurbishment of Council buildings as they become 

necessary. Annual transfers are usually made to this Reserve from any end of year surplus. 

Anticipated date of use’ ongoing

5. Waste & Recycling 

This Reserve provides funding for capital costs associated with the development and management of 

a waste disposal site. Transfers to this Reserve are made based on planned future capital funding 

requirements for waste management. 

Anticipated date of use: majority by the time the landfill closes in 2040.

6. land Development and Investment Fund 

This Reserve is to accommodate and facilitate the purchase, development and disposal of land under 

the Council’s land development strategies with the ability to loan funds on an interest payable basis to 

other reserve accounts of the City. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

7. Roads & Drainage Infrastructure 

The purpose of this Reserve is to provide for the renewal and refurbishment of roads and drainage 

infrastructure and for the provision of matching funds for Federal & State Government road grants. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

8. Naval Base Shacks 

This Reserve provides funds for the development & refurbishment of the Naval Base shacks site. It 

will also fund rehabilitation costs when the Park reverts back to the State Govemment. Annual 

transfers to this Reserve are fully funded by part of the lease income derived from the shacks. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

9. Community Infrastructure 

This Reserve funds the provision of community and recreation facilities within the City as the need 

arises. The requirement for these facilities over the next five to ten years is significant due to the 

rapid rate of development within the city and the associated population growth. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.
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10. Insurance 

This Reserve is used to mlnlmlse and smooth annual budgetary impacts from the City’s performance 
based insurance schemes, including deductibility levels. 

Anticipated date of use. ongoing.

11. Greenhouse Action Fund 

This Reserve will be used to purchase carbon offsets and fund projects to support energy efficiency, 

waste management and renewable energy installations. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

12. Aged and Disabled Asset Replacement 

This Reserve is fully funded from the operating government grants received by the services and has 

no budgetary impact on Municipal funds. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

13. Welfare Projects Employee Entitlements 

This Reserve is fully funded from the operating government grants received by the services and has 

no budgetary impact on Municipal funds. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

14. HWRP Post Closure Management & Contaminated Sites 

This Reserve is required to cover any costs associated with clean-up & remediation works at 

contaminated sites within the district as enforced by the Contaminated Sites Act. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

15. Municipal Elections 

This Reserve provides funding to cover election expenses during election years to smooth out annual 

budgetary impacts. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

16. Welfare Redundancies 

This Reserve was created for the purpose of covering potential future redundancy costs for grant 

funded services, as funding agreements do not usually allow for these costs. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

17. Port Coogee Special Maintenance - SAR 

This Reserve is used to manage funds raised through the specified area rate (SAR) for the Port 

Coogee development. These funds are required for the specialised maintenance requirements of the 

development. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

18. Port Coogee Waterways - SAR 

This Reserve is used to manage funds raised through the specified area rate (SAR) for the Port 

Coogee development on land directly adjacent to the waterways. These funds are required for the 

maintenance of the waterways surrounding Port Coogee marina and associated infrastructure. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

19. Community Surveillance 

This Reserve funds activities in relation to Community Surveillance. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

20. Waste Collection 

This reserve provides funding for future capital requirements related to the Waste Collection service. 

Anticipated date of use’ ongoing
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21. Family Day Care Accumulation Fund 

This Reserve is fully funded from the operating governrnent grants received by the services and has 

no budgetary impact on Municipal funds. 

Anticipated date of use. ongoing.

22. Underground Power - Service Charge 

This Reserve is used for managing funds raised through prescribed service charges for the 

undergrounding of power within the district. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

23. Naval Base Shack Removal 

Established for the purposes of the future removal of leasehold dwellings at Reserve 24308, Naval 

Base. All funds raised are to be accounted for on a property lease by lease basis, and not on who 

paid the actual payment at the time of the payment. Funds raised will be reimbursed to leaseholders 

when dwelling is removed and the site rehabilitated to its prior state. 

Anticipated date of use: no certain date for rehabilitation.

24. Environmental Offset 

This Reserve IS used to manage funds required to undertake environmental rehabilitation of land 

associated with road construction as approved by the relevant government agency 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

25. Bibra Lake Management Plan 

This Reserve is used to manage funding to implement the Bibra Lake Management Plan as adopted 

by Council. 

Anticipated date of use’ ongoing

26. Restricted Grants & Contributions 

This Reserve is used to quarantine monies received for restricted purposes across financial years. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

27. CIHCF Building Maintenance 

This Reserve is used to manage funding for malar building maintenance of the Cockburn Integrated 
Health and Community Facility (CIHCF). 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

28. CockbUrn ARC Building Maintenance 

This Reserve is used to manage funding for the major building maintenance of the Cockbum ARC 

recreation facility. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

29. Carry Forward Projects 

This reserve is used to manage municipal funding for incomplete projects carried forward to the 

following financial year. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

30. Port Coogee Marina Assets Replacement 

This Reserve provides for the replacement of marina infrastructure assets. Funding is provided from 

pen fees to reflect estimated depreciation costs. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing
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31. Port Coogee Waterways - WEMP 

This Reserve is used to manage the funds paid by Ihe developer of Ihe Pori Coogee marina 

development in accordance wllh the Waterways Environmental Management. Plan (WEMP). The 

funds will be used to maintain and manage the marina waterways. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

32. Cockburn Coast SAR 

This Reserve is used to manage funds raised through the specified area rate (SAR) providing funding 

to ensure that the parks and public areas (including custom street lighting) within the Cockburn Coast 

Development are maintained in accordance with the higher standards agreed to between the City and 

the Developer. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing

33. Development Contribution Plan (DCP) - Community Infrastructure 

This reserve is used to account for funds generated from the Community Infrastructure Development 

Contributions Scheme (DCP13) established under the City’s Town Planning Scheme NO.3. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

34. Development Contribution Plans (DCP) - Various 

This Reserve is used for the management of contributions and costs with respect to Development 

Contribution Areas as established by and in accordance with Town Planning Scheme 3. 

Anticipated date of use: ongoing.

35. Public Open Space (POS) Cash In lieu 

This Reserve is no longer used from 2017/18. All funds have been transferred to the City’s trust 

account.
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City of Cockburn

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

15. REVALUATION SURPLUS

Actual 

2017/18 

$

Actual 

2016/17 

S

Revaluation surpluses have arisen on revaluation of the following 

classes of non-current assets: 

Land 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

107.394,794 118,679,531

(11,284,737)

107,394,794 107,394,794

22,861,653 22,405,632

456,022

22,861,653 22,861,653

171,628,693 240,139,955

14,929,212 (68,511,262)

186,557,905 171,628,693

148,810,441 142,858,567

4,339,438 5,951,874

153,149,879 148,810,441

2,598,696 2,673,635

(74,939)

2,598,696 2,598,696

27,781.245 27,186,403

553,032 594,842

28,334,277 27,781,245

22,452,479 21,488,638

963,841

22,452,479 22,452,479

523,349,683 
.

503,528,001

503,528,001 575,432,360

19,821,682 (71,904,359)

523,349,683 503,528,001

Buildings 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

Roads Infrastructure 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

Drainage Infrastructure 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

Landfill Infrastructure 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

Footpath Infrastructure 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

Parks Infrastructure 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation Increment/(Decrement)

TOTAL REVALUATION SURPLUS

SUMMARY OF REVALUATION SURPLUS 

Opening Balance 

Revaluation net increment/(decrement) made during the year 

TOTAL REVALUATION SURPLUS
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

16. Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

Actual Budget Actual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ $ $

It,

Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided by/(Used inl Operating
Activities to Change in Net Assets Resulting from Operations.

Net Result 32,718,585 23,897,352 71,913,380

Add (Less) non-cash items:

Depredation 30,241,974 28,299,179 27,465,498

Amortisation 1,390,921 I,UO,764 1,391,018

PrOVISion for Site Rehabilitation 505,193 490.620

(Profit)/lOSS on Sale of Assets (284,526) (1,561,715) (5,412,388)

Impairment charge provision 3.200.000

Assets GlUed to Other Parties 741.058 14.566,385

Decrease/(Increase) in Joint Venture Investment 5.669,496 (497,115)

Recognition of Gifted Subdivision Assets (12,168,364) (62,676,020)

Less: Grants & Contributions for the Development of Assets (20,190,018) (17,354,667) (16.695,283)

Change in Assets and Uabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease In Rates Debtors & Deferred Rates (60,178) (573,416)

(Increasel/Decrease in Sundry Debtors 459,132 7.198,041

(Incre.sel/decrease in Accrued Investment Income (270,8511 (274,568)

(Increasel/Decrease in Stock on Hand (13,8181 19,320

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors & Accruals 712,446 (42,686) (14,822,444)

(Increasel/Decrease in Rubbish Debtors 4,090 17.536

Increase/(Deerease) in Employee ProvISion 207,914 (7,744) 1.245.507

Increase/(Decrease) on Income Received in Advance 422,812 597,526

(Increasel/Decrease In Prepayments 629,332 (195,569)

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 40.715,198 .34,350.483 26,958,027

hll 

Recondliation 01 Cash

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flbws, Ihe enlity 

considers cash to indude Cash on Hand and in Banks and 

IIIveSlments In Money Market Instruments. Cash at the end 

of the reporting period as shown In the Statement of Cash 

Flows is recondled to the related Item in the Statement of 

Financial Posl!lon as follows: .

Cash at Bank 

Cash on Hand 

Term Deposits 

Cash & cash Equivalents at end of Reporting Period

762,182 

29,212 

137,900,000 

138,691,393

5,902,438 

23,000 

108,071,703 

113,997,141

2.896,742 

22.500 

110.900,000 

113,819,242

Undrawn Borrowing Faclit

Credit Standby Arrangements 

Credit Card limit 

Credit Card Balance at Balance Date 

Total Amount of Credit Unused

250,000 

(77,769) 

172,231

250,000 

(81,359) 

168,641
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

17, Investment in Joint Venture - SMRC

The City IS c:urrcnll’l it member ollhe Southern Mclropolitan Regional eal/ned (Sl\1I’~C) it 1I:910nallocal government 
cstabftshed in 199\ pursuanl10 the Local GovclI1menl/\cl with membcrslnp cunenlly consisting or rrvc IoC31 

go’.’ernments In May 2018 Counc ldelcrmined 10 wHhdraw from the SMRC effecU...e 30 June 2019 and gave 12 

months notice Equity interests wiU be adjusted in 2018.19 in accordance wiCh the establishment agreement and to 

be determined althe time

Equ ,’ conlrbutionl!l fa. partelpallng local government member, ale bued on published AU’lralian Bureau 01 

Stalbtics (ABS) population st..t,t s, whk:.h when updated, chcmge the future conlr btlhon ratios for members. The 

City of Cockburn’s equity contribution ratio for SMRC was 37 29% at 30 June 2018, with the accumulated share 

of SMRC equity to date representing 34.19Gk of net adjusted assets (excluding office building and RRRC assets 

and Uabilites, and loan receivables from members) The City’, accumulated equity in the office building 

Icprcsenls 3S 19% 01 the adJusled net assets (e~cludlng loan lece/vable:! horn members), 

The Regionitl RcsotHce Recovery Cenlle (RRRC) plojcct Vias established by the SI\1RC in 1998 ’01 the 

management or municipal househok1 waste and ork)inalty consisted 0’ five local government participants. The CMy 
Vias a participant in the RRRC project up until its withdrawal from 30 June 2017 (see details below) and its previous 
share of equity has no,;,,’ been elminated, However, it has a separate waste supply agreement to continue 

supptymg the RRRC with municipal waste (excluding ,ecyclables and greenwaste) up until 30 June 2021 al the 

Pl va ny C} te lees.

Ner Increase/(D cfeue) in Equity. SMRC Joint Ventufe

2011/18 2016111

Actual Actual

S S

(audited) (audited)

23,783,690 27,424,549

( 29,135,978) ( 29,723,652)

( 840,103) ( 959,038)

( S,I!J2,3!i’I) ( 3,25B, 14~)

14,364,529 22,283,135

42,68’1,696 43,446,7’16

57,046,225 65,729,851

9326,121 18,886083

16,216,134 9,513,395

25,542,255 28,399,478

31,S 3,g7 37,m,m

923, ~69 6,392,991

927,780 6,414,370

823,392 11,817,202

1,751,172 18,231,572

185,191 6,872,233

642,412 4,766,348

827,603 11,638,581

923,569 6,592,991

( 5,669,422) 499,833

Statement of Comprehensive Income. SMRC 

Revenues rrom Ord ary Activ Ues 

LESS: El(penses from Ordinary Act~,ftles 

LESS: Borrowing Cost Expense 

Net Profit Of (Lots)

Statement of Financial POlition - SMRC 

Current Assets 

Non.Current Assets 

Total Assets

Current Liabitities 

Non-Cun"nl Uabd<< s 

TotalliabiliUet

Net Assets

The Cfty’s share in the net assets of the SMRC (excluding 

eqUity) Equny RotlO 

Represented by Share 01 Joint Venlme entity’s Financial 

Cunent Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets

CUHenl LlabUihes 

Non-Current UabijMies 

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

City of Cockburn’s w hdrawal from the Regional Resource Recover’1 Centre (RRRC) Prolect

The City withdrew from the RRRC Project Participants’ Agreement, effective 30 June 2017 foHowing a 12 month 

notice period. The City’! withdrawal triggered a lequirement under the RRRC Project Participant’s Agreement to 

pl palC an amended business plan lor the Project having legard to the eNect of the City’s withdrawal The Deed of 
Variation to the Project P.ulcipant’s Agreement also requlled the SMRC 10 detCI’ffime the C ’s pr’oportional 
entUement to any net surpkJs Of derlC on the basis of a noUonal winding up of the Project However, any assets 
and liabiilies relating to RRRC Loan Borrowings were excluded from the notional Vlindilg up calculation.

The SMRC facilitated the preparation of an amended business plan based on Ihe notional winding up of the RRRC 

Plojee! al 30 June 2011 Alter ,ev Vl and negotiation, the City agn~ed to pay a Plop0l11onal bbillty of S365,988 as 

per the Notional Winding Up Report It was al10 required to pay $150,532 lowards the cost of preparinl} the 

amended business plan tr)ggered by the City’s Vlithdrawal.The City’s equity share in the assets of the RRRC was 

adjusted during 2017-18 (olowing the acceptance of the amended business plan by the City and the determination 

01 the impact from the nolional wilding up on the C.y’s equil:y share

In accordance w the RRRC Project Participants’ Agreement the City Vli conbnue to be responsible for its share 
of RRRC borrowing repayments untW these are fully repaid The equ~y contribution ratio for the RRRC was 42 97% 

(at time ofVl hdrawal) and this will apply to future borrowing repayments, The City wiH also be entitled to any 
propolt onal equity in the assets acquired hom the related borrowing, ~s valued when the borrowing is fully repaid,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

18. Contingent Liabilities 

(~) Regional Resource Recovery Centre IRRRC) . Lending Facility 
The City was a participant in the RRRC Joint Venture, until its withdrawal effective 30 June 2017. The project 
was established through the Southern Metropolitan Regional Council (SMRC) and involves the cities of 

Canning, Cockburn, Fremantle, Melville and the Town of East Fremantle in the development of a waste 

processing plant and a recyclable and green waste facility at Canning Vale.

The capital constructon of the RRRC facility was funded by borrowings from Western Australian Treasury 
Corporation (WATC). A $40 million lending facility was initially set up for this purpose (repayable over a term 
of 20 years) and this facility has since been extended to a total of $55 million. The SMRC administer the 

borrowings with the project participants making quarterly contributions equal to the repayment costs of these 

borrowings.

The City guaranteed by way of agreement its share of the loan liability to the SMRC and the WATC. Whilst 
the City has now withdrawn as a participant in the joint venture, this guarantee remains in place until the 

lending facility is fully repaid.

The City’s estimated share of the project funding is based on population percentages as derived from the 
Australian Bureau of Statistics census. These are now revised yearly over the life of the lending facility with 
the City’s share for the 2017/18 year being 42.97%.

As at 30th June 2018, the balance outstanding against the lending facility stood at $16,482,637 with the 

City’s share of this liability being $7.082.589 (42.97%).

The City’s annual contribution towards the repayment of interest and principal on the lending facility is 

currently around $1.67 million (approx. $35 per household).

Ib) SMRC Administration Building. Lending Facility 
As a SMRC participant. Council has guaranteed by way of security to the Western Australian Treasury 
Corporaton. a charge over its’ general funds for its’ share of any outstanding debenture borrowings provided 
for the SMRC administration building at 9 Aldous Place Booragoon. This facility has a limit of $2 million.

As at 30th June 2018. the balance outstanding against this facility stood at at $1.800.000 with Council’s share 
of this liability being $671.220 (using the current cost/profit sharing percentage of 37.29%).

IC) Claim for Injurious Affection. land at 870 North Lake Rd 
The owners of 870 North Lake Rd (Otago Pty LId) have made application to the State Administrative Tribunal 

(SAT) for an order. under s 176( 1) of the PD Act. claiming that their land is injuriously affected to the value of 

$3,932,535 by the City’s Local Planning Scheme NO.3. including by operation of Development Area Structure 
Plan. The City disagrees and argues strongly that the land is not injuriously affected. Proceedings for 
determination of the application were stalled in SAT. awaiting the decision of the Court of Appeal on a similar 
matter (Scuttl v City of Wanneroo). The Court of Appeal have recently handed down its decision. which did 
not go in favour of the City of Wanneroo. However. the City’s legal position is that the decision’s application is 

very limited and not necessarily applicable to the Otego matter. The City has contacted the applicant with our 
view and the matter currently remains with the SAT process, awaiting further direction.

I’}~ ’I
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19. Capital & Leasing Commitments

Capital Commitments

At the reporting date, Counc had the following commitments remaining for major purchases:

2017/18 

$

2016/17 

$

Contracted for: 

Capital expenditure projects 

Plant & equipment purchases

10,384,193 

78,282 

10,462,474

5,772,499 

800,924 

6,573,423

Operating Leasing Commitments 

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial report

Payable: 

Not later t.han 1 year 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 

Later than 5 years

Actual 

2017/18 

S 

767,631 

1,288,587 

7,663 

2,063,881

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

672,405 

870,010

1,542,415

~. . 

’I...Y
r
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20a. Assets Classified by Function 
Torol Ass~ts CJaHJfl~d bi’ Function and ActMry

20b. Disposal of Assets

Net Book ValOt: I
Actuol Budcot

2017/18 2017/11

190,288

&;0,734 S56,392

525,541 1,45g,893

1.366.564 2,016.285

9%,a97

190,288

1,176,275 1,019,388

1.JGG.SG4 2.01’.2115

"’..wI tUIII

2017/18 2016/11

S S

60,060,582 52,9:H,714

28,063,877 28,570,090

1.782,638 2.01S.$.20

1,810.783 1.883.193

3,12:4,572 2.SlW.114

4S,984,876 40,974,561

B6,340,SOG l06,298.632

64S,257,47L 630,293,449

1,853,249 1,866,912

347,7~.LS7 352,906,834

1.212,132,110 1.220,244,078

Sale Price I Profit/loss.

Aaual Budcot Act...1 8udct!t

2017/1. 2017/11 2017/1. 2017/1.

13,000 13,000

1190.,.81

914,B:l4 432.SOO 324,100 1’2;,’’’’

616,256 3,132,500 150,715 1,672,607

1,651,090 3,518,000 284,516 1.561.715

2,760,000 1,763,103

1190,2881

1,6S~090 818..000 474.814 1201,’88’

1.651_ J.518.ooo 284.5lf IS6l.71,

Gel’ler~1 ?vrpo:;e Fundlr;g 

Gcvflf’n nce 

l.aVl. Ofd4f and PublIC Safety 

H<.1th 

Ed:.tc.atlc:n and W f-af. 

cmmunity Am<<lities 

Recr.atlon and Cultur. 

TrM1sport 

~conomk Set...c.s 

Iother Property Mid Services 
....

8YFUllcrJON

Educ.ation Mld W~b,. 

Rlt(r.atiOfl "lid CUltU1. 

r1Insport 

Oth.r Property anc: Stt....C.S 

...,

BY ASSET CLASSlFICA nON 

l>nd 

BuUdi,,&s 

Pi~nt ~nd Equipment 

ot,,’

I’,~ ’I
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2Oc. Control Over Contributions

NOTES TO A."rfD ORMIHG PAJl:T OJ THf flNANCIAllUPOAT

Funding I)odiea 

Alecl k"whuftJ Cle-fiMf’( 

Oly 01 Ar:r’ll-J ,’. COnlritn:t!o" 

cC11"’nunltv SpoHl Ind I;’KrU!l:m 

O.p.rtmlm Ch,ld ProtKtlon 

Dep.nm.nt child PfcttttlOn ’1’10 ~Imlly SUpport 

O.p.rtm.nt Locll Go..ernm.n: lJ\ COmmUnltlU 

Oep’l1m.m of AU :r;f’f Gf~ril 

oep’l1mttm 01 Ci’llfCl protection 

o.p.nm.m 01 CC’nmurl: In Chjld P’Clution lIte ~.m Iysupport 

OeplrHn.m 01 Ort’l(tfII, .$4..",t,,~ 

o.p,rl~n1 of lO’IKII,em. Implo..... & Wor\phlCt 

OtPl:lmttnl 01 [duu\lon In<! fI"J1nnl 

OEopll’tmem 01 fnl/ironment RfCU!J(,oll 

O~ln,...,.n: of ’1-. Jnd fmtllt.l’\cy’.ifNlu,S 

Ol!plrlnwnl of "u~h 

O.p.rtm.n, of Infrulr>.:rturl ind A’riona! o......opm.nt 

O.p.rtm.m of LOCII GOVlrnmeflt 

ofplJ’tm.n: of lo~llo...rrmtnt. spon ar,d cu!tunl IndunrtlH 

O~p.f1IMn": of .:kJ & WddJi!. comfT’.UMy to Rec,cn.J p,rh 

Oep.rt".m 0’ ~l ~"~IC4S 

Cep.r1rMnI of ~pofU nd A,(:rUtJ.Ot1 

Orrp r1".n: 01 lampon 

O...."op’r Canulb1.nlcn. T,rr"ncvil ply u:: 

Di$..llc ~ty S.~t<:t’J Ccmm.u,an 

OI!.1b!~t"~ S~IC.’~ CcmmL!l!lon 

~Iem"nt’e Perti 

GC’~er’rmM: o’\\,eS:,fn Al,a:t.Lt M~ltll He.llh COrnmlu.cn 

Hul!I\Wly 

H ~ Comm.",nl!V :;.rvictc1 

HOpe CCn’..!T’Llnlt’(S’r.oiCt-s IflCorponn.d 
f.’;;t..t\ A04d~ WA 

""eo’lc.’llolHtn].. 

~llI. ,!nO P"tntlnl Ite.uart!’t CtnUt 

Ollie’ O! tmf1(UIC’" Mlln’lt’Irunt 
Pr,v.lII. ~0’lIf\buIiOn1 

P\l l!c t"’n~e!l,u:thcUlI\, 01 ’NA 

SOLltt’l uk, O!IIt"f n-n.li\d CDl1"mUfl,t", eenne 

SUle fm.rpncy MII"’lement COIl’lmltte. 

Sute Nittyral AIMCUfce 1\;I.~re-m..nt Off’,,; 

WJ. LOe.1 Go\..rnment ~sociltion 

w’.n.rn AUitnli.n lOc.1 <Oo’lIrnme.nt AUOOlt10n (WALGA)

Purpo_e 

per.! nll"nt tor dell\f.rlf1l ser\l!ce~ 

Operl!’nc lUll! lor dlt!...rlnl sef\p!ce~ 

CllYul rlrtt lor pllk ,0:t.U!\lction 

p.rIU\llf.nt fw d’~Ne!inl senr.::., 

Op.rlt!nllr.m for d.INlfinl !./-\:u 

p.n:lfI( Ifan: fer d.fN.clfll S.Men 

peri. nc (fant fer d~:I...uInC n’""cu 

pef t.nc (f.nt ler de’l<trlnr; HI’\I’,,~ 

p.r~MI gr-.m for deUvn!ne S./’\Il-t.~ 

P"-’Il ne Ir.nl lor d..,....rlne ",....::." 

Op.,1I1 nc crllnllol c!.:...." C serv:;... 

pe’*l TIS Iram ler c!.f~.dnl s.rv:c.~ 

Opef’ll.nc Iflnl for d.t~e!lnc S.-v.C/H 

OpKa: nc Iran: let .IN.!lnt; seMe..t 

Op,!u:::nc Iran: fe: c!t!l’I..,m, StrYtc.l 

-,p:l.1 (fart fer foads eontruct n 

Clp,ta11f’Jrlt fel park eOrltN(tl.Ofl 

’1prtal (rar.t fer park ecntrvct!:On 

penhn( Cfam for d’~Idnc Hr.ricu 

ptnt,nllrant for d.:J...lrInC stror.cu 

p.nt,nClflnl lor d.~...IrmC MNkn 

Op....IIt’nc crant for co,s:lI!.n .c!.;;latk’m stlJd, 

e\,I(I;., (n\tI~Ii,ic"\ leI plrt :on1lJUClicn 

QpifJ’1II1 nc Clint h’l’ e.’ vltfilll.’kr....ce~ 

.\’tIO t c:lntrlbl.tien lor bulle’.nl CCMtnJrton 

Oper.!;", Cnnt lor ee’.’f,"’ te’V’lce’ 

Opw.t-nllrant tor ee!r<i’("’1 SIt’Vlelt 

PtflMllrn! for d.rilitrlnl SeAAt.s 

p.rl:.", l"n! fer de.nnl serv.~..s 

peru-nel,ant for delintinl senr.us 

;MiII! ’f.nt lor lo.ds conuucllcn 

perll’’’’ ,Iln! lor dl....rinl ,.rV’..c:n 

IoP,rlt.", C’lnt fO! d.r;~erin, atv:Ul 
!opera! nc: Iw,t lor d~,v" C ser....e.~ 

IoPtrlll nt "rlnl fOI d.t,_erln, St;",t., 
;:UI’fllnller bUlle I", conltuc:.~lotl 

IoPIU1/lf Illnt fOf all".rinc servicel 
lop....: nc Ir.nl tor delj.trin, S’NfC" 
IopfIf"l’ nc tfln! ~O, d"-.l’Ierln, 1’M~~S 
p.nt.nc Iflnt tor defr...lfin,5.:v.::I!~ 

.!XI~I Vlr,t for buitCiinl contfUC’: n

Functiofl 

R...,Jut:on & Cult,,1’e 

rnr!.pon 

A,au:,on!: Cull",. 

fdJCJtion.&.w.lf.rl 

(ll1.:t:nion& WIlflfe: 

~d~eatlon Wtifart 

tdlKatlcn &. welf rt 

td1,lcu on!. "’iell.,e 

rduc’tion & Wllf" 

Cd’Jl;allotl & W,tllI" 

Cd’,lC~I.cn & welt.,e 

t.duc.llon & \’/III.If’M, 

Cemfl’l’~nltv Atnl!n,t~tt 

llW, O1dt! &. P\.j’oll( S.tlt’ 

fdJcuion &. W.lflr. 

.nmpor- 

Ihl! Pfopln’, &. S.NICI!S 

thlt Ptaplrw & SINlctS 

th.r Property & ~It"’iCI!S 

~dJU\lO" &. w.ll" 

AKrUtLOn &. cultult 

Oth.r P:ap.’ty & Slty,cltS 

Oth.r P;O~tttV & SIIIVt~ 

fduc..flon & WIIII)r~ 

fd1.lculcn &. wel’a" 

AKrU:On & <:ultur. 

Cdll1:IIIOn &. wel’." 

Cd1J!Jtion&.w.l1ar. 

fdllCuion &. ......If.r.. 

fdll<::uion &. wlthr. 

(Import 

educltion & wllfar!! 

Education &. w.lf ’ 

UW, Ofd., &. Publk !t.lI1.ly 

(d.:-~lIl1cn &. w.II.,. 

TnnlpOlI 

the! Ptopetty & S.lV tes 

l.w, Ofd~ &. Publk Safl!t’"y" 

101M! Prop"!tY & Sit’ll") 
.f.llJ1spon 

AI:r..:i-:ln $; Cul:url

u....... ~oo........._

BaIInM(1) Re-ceiw-d (2) Expended (3) .’)
1101111 201&.’11 201&111 -"

.0’- ’0,000

200,000 lI,nO Ut,no

1.,1.21 7O,w

...... 4&3,9Bl 46i,S5l ......

19l,Sll 145,104 "’-

174 21&,l1.Z 201,OOS ......

..,.. 1.1,810 1’,liOoS

d,’. 4,lN,925 oS,ant,sH ....

.. 1,739,.211 1,1514,125 ..-

1,961"n6 1."&.4"

100,000 ....-

_,In nO,aoSl 2.52,806 ".’.

m,IU 11d.n, 2n,7Cs .......

441.62’ .U9,1Hi1 .01....

....’ l,lS]

..... 10,COO 4,Oeo .t,at.

5,ceo 5,000

55.407 S5,IS07

.........., 2,!47,301 ’&,210,019 _,111

l,111 7,920 7,5~9 1,471

lJ~_ 4M,1811 1.57,820 .",.17

".’" a,coo 3.::1,8ll ..,n

"’- 9,091 -

I,OOC .....

..- 2J,l71 e,’:"

..- 0,1",_ .... -

R,eet’led 12J Expt’nMd (3)Ciolino !baanM

2011/18 201711. .....".

tO,OOO

11,1&2 ......

200.000 371,720

70.=

349,539 351,910 .....

12\1,457 126,6Z1 _,ZQ

27~,U9 Zl ,090 .~-

701S,J~ &9~,608 .~...

449,!itJO 391,480 ......

1.\110,56’: 1,829,119’: "’,’"

’,754,0515 3,714,’-32 ........,

1’50,000 .......

6S,o::IO 60,235 ..,..

6,535- .J.4M

671,670 6:U,II4.t m,Jll

HO,619 1111,903 17,711

20,.11)6 ...-

H 2, l .u...)

6~I.OO2 464,452 IN.1U

10,000 II,fUS _,lOt

14,S’OO 1,8S5 ",NS

111,614 96,S;3 lS,0l1

1,!I!O,IC 1..4157.1011 -....

a,200 15,611 .....

Si,OOO 55,2:50 ,.no

IIS,2S1 4S,ISl ".,’.7

41i1,~ 1l,20r! ",..

54,5S0 SI,5S1 ..-

~JlJ

-

.....

10 1 ,,.,,. m

11j- anWtontr1llU1k1nl rKognl...a., IIvtrw. In I ~r.vlOu. r.pomng ~noa wt,l~ _I’ not Up.r.cMO II tn. eta.. 0; tn. pr,vloul r.porlUlg p.no<!,

1’1 HI. gll,.II,’conlJllItlonl wtlk:h _It IICognl..d.ll r.wtflt.l.. ourlng tt.. ll ltlnv per1Ocl.ne ...,nk:,. "Id ~t ~.I ~n tul., hpen Clln!ne mun., ’p’clI’J’" 

y:t’t,CClnhlbu:tl,

I’l- GranttlcontneullO"1 wtlkh ".d 0"" ,ecclJfI’...a II f.vennllfl a ,n"oul,.poltlnQ ptllOCl Of ffC......d III !ft. unr."tr.pcfllnQ pellod and die!! ..,. 

I.p.nOtOln tftl C tllr..1 ftpDl’!lnllperlOd WI~. maMet ’p’C’tnH 0)’ 1tI. centllbu!Ol.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

21. FINANOAL RATIOS

Current Ratio 

Asset Sustainab ty Ratio 

Debt Service Cover Ratio 

Operating Surplus Ratio 

Own SOurce Revenue Co....er age RatIO 

Asset Consumption Ratio 

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

2018 2017 2016

.1.479 1.432 1.211

0.70S 1.442 1.399

10.370 9.533 20.631

0.008 0.078 0.049

0.957 0.971 1.003

0.691 0.689 0.714

0.707 0.129 0.741

Th~ above ratios are calculated as follows:

Current Ralio current assets minus restricted current assets 

current liabilities minus liebilities associated 

with restricted assets

Asset Suslalnability Ratio capital renewal and replacement expenditure 

depreciation elCpense

Oebt Service Cover Ratio annual operating surplus before interest and depreciation 

principal and Interest

Operatina: Surplus Ratio operatine revenue minus opera tine expense 

own source operating revenue

Own Source Revenue: Ratio own source operatine reve:nue 

operatine expense

Asset ConsL!mption Ratto depreciated replacement cost of depreciable assets 

Current replacement cost of depredated assets

Asset Renewal Fundina Ratio NPV of planned capital renewals over 10 years 

NPV of required capitdl expenditure over 10 years

1 ~~ ’I
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NOlI5TO AND fORMING .NlT Of THE flNANOAl R[POIIT

U.ln_ on 8on’owincs

lOM’lR~ntl

Principel R~nt.

Prine"" 

30 June 2018 Int~e,t ftePitYfMntl

Poniculor5/Puf_

""""pol 

I July 2017 

S ._~. ~. _...yDo.. 2.96"t 27 Juno 2026

Ac..... 

S

I\udc.’ 

S

AdIHlI 

~
~. 

:0,000,0001 
2
,
,of

726.177 

726.717

816,699 

8i~699

Ad.... 

S

l\udcct 

S

Reaeldon & CuhlKe 

To assist fund the: Cock.b\lm Central West development 22,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 20.000,0001 

20,000,000’T.... 22,SOQ,000~ 2,SOQ,000 2,sco.OOO

Unspent loam 

I nere is no unspent lOins IS lit 30 June 2018.
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NOTl5 TO AND fORMING "ART Of THl FINANOAt R[MlR’,

loll, ~tet.~ftl" Il.tiftllftfcw_tion

NON.MINIMUM MINIMUM,S TOTALS

a" R.tt.ble....!uc Rite In Vi<’d Budget 0" Rlte.blt: V,dutI AmOUnI ’Odd Bud!d Ot, R.ttll!lb"’V,luc ~,Id Bud~1

1011,11 S S S 1011 }OJ! S 5 2011 2018 S S 1017 2018

ooy

:",PI~d Commerrl.l/lndul.tllal l,5M 380,919.010 0.0168300 79,HO,611 ]!U1O,fi2J ,.. 1,611,016 ", U7,1o: 1~7.105ti 1.19. J8l.IO,1)96 19,4Z3.Q79 19,4ZS,079

~.np,~1 Comme--cI4ll1. e.,......" P ll, , 1.778.~44 0.0991500 177,).80 117.380 ’51 , 1,778,244 111.380 177.)80

lml"oved Revdtnll11l 19.015 665,593151 O.07lJI900 41!.114,817 48,714..lIn lH89 192..611,750 IlOJ U,1Sl.967 15,1)1,961 41,1110 851,211,601 64,466.’94 64.466,794

Aunl I,,,", 4],31.8.010 0.0866000 J.1~2,lOti l.1S1,lOti 1.S29 lO,40i,C>tiO 7)) 1.151,J31 !.ISt.ll] J.I09 ))’1:J4,670 4.90).5’) 10 90J.}.4)

Ronll V.c"nt l,nd 52 10..6S4,OOO OOCU9&OO l!l..20~ 281.201 , 184.000 ." ".... 1)1.. ,. 70.U8,OOO 281.041 281,CH’

Ru,.JGe""f1111 ". 180.0I\1.100 0OO2~800 -4G4.!109 ....509 \I 1,48l.76J ’" 10,142 10.142 m 181,525.86J 414.651 474,65’

Tot" .....l...... JJ,a l,lel.I75,HZ ’l,660,741 ’l,MO.’" 1l,IJt 206,J14,I" 17,012.’" 11.07;1:.1.’ 417,SOI I.SU,?ot,." ",’U.." ’’,In,.’’’

~nteilm R..,~) .6RV S IJV 1,715,4~ 1,984.466

Rllet R~~ In A.dv..ncc 1116_1

RHlOOntlf1 ImDfOYW (ooce’~iotI$ 1l.IU.IQ1! lUll 1911 11.7~~1"

TouIGe,.., Rat" n.4" 1.1U.J7S,ln ’0,’0,55’ 12.,160.’" n,’" l06,S"’,I" 17.0n.’’’’ 17.01l.74’ 47,JOI 1."".1ot..U ",600,111 ".tll,40

NON.MINIMUM MINIMUMS OTALl

a" R.I~able"’.Iu;’! Rail In r..., Budf,ct 01., RueebleVitlue "’"""’" ,.... Itud,~t a" !t.iuub!oeV4_e ~.~ B\.Idlet
~Oll 1.7 , S S 2016-2017 S S S 2016.2017 S $ ]0162011

.OY

’mproved Commet"dal/tntiuWI" 2,445 196.641,511 0.07)SOOO 1-4.1.46.838 14,8~M20 "0 1,432.031 ’" 156.2<<) 1~Ij.,240 2.6S~ 198,019.551 15,003,128 14,980.160

l.alll~ Comm ~ Ind’JSlflal Impt \Td >J 123.25....5)0 0.0805800 9,932.092 9,93],092 ’" " 12J,2~7.530 9.9J2,O’.n 9,932.092

Jandakot Ahpon Sntndolrd I 15.)91.1)’ 0.Q75~ 1.162,OJI 1.16tOll ’" . 15.191,U1 1.161.0)1 1.16M}l

1.~kotAhport. MalO’ 1 2S,416,000 0.Oa05800 2,S.021 2,043.021 ,.. I 251’16,000 2.,OAS,021 1.G4S.021

’mplovN Co"’u’n~dal C.r....’n 9alt , 1.na,244 0_ 168,9B 166.9ll ,.. , 1,171,244 16&.9J3 168.933

lfY’plowd Resi en’laI 21,694 6:l9.61U2. 0.0125000 45,641.365 4S.61Ult6 1U 1 1S4,144.~48 UII 15..1’)J.91I1 1),21S,118 J9.SSS 813,16).J’/6 bO.l41.l08 60.821.781

1.621 oH,JOO,307 0.0939100 J,.,g,~lt 3.892,341 1.394 1295.404 ’" 1.0]1.1)6 1,011,136 1,015 49.s~,711 4.915.641 4.929,.471

Ru,’" VlOunt LAnd SS 78,17-4.000 0.0039100 J05.660 ’"1.0014 , 184.000 906 1.1111 un " 1IJ,]~.OOO 107,-412 181,8506

Jtu.l.tC’,.nenl "" lJ1~1.100 0.(01)100 !I~.IOO 544.1’90 " 1.560,763 906 13.590 ..... ", 214,062,863 544.690 554,7$6

lM......l.."d lUll UU..S."" 11,$24.502 71.4H.UI n....2 IM.’16,7’" 1’.402.n9 l’,",fO,I71 41.’1. I,SI9.70l.41U "’.’11.1ll ,.....7.109

!fUl!ilm Rail!’ GRV$.W Un,jJ 1.169.726

iI,HOS RK~ In Advanu 152,3-41

RQ1dentl.llmPf~ Come’s.Ion\ (1619 "H, 11.61’’’11)1 JI"’>tIaJ~

Tot-’ G.,..,. "".. ’2,112 1,sU.0I5,K4 15,905,09l 1.....,21. IS,Ul 116,511.7" 1l,40Z.119 1l,420,’72 45,’141 1,519.’02,412 N.n1,1’) ’5.700,000

Ub. Specified Ar.. lItat..

,n ,",e

Rateable .... 81K1cel ^",pl to ,\pJJlledto

Mat,hl &inbof R’le 0’, y,... ’field K_n~ 101110lII Co.1\ C"’"’

1011 1. I I I I I I I

E~ 
Coog!41 Sp<<il.1 ~lflt~tlaroce 0.0121.1 G’. 00’ 26.161,700 319.434 39.48\ 274.000 )5,8.915 206,342

POll Cooset: W.UWWoIr; 0.01211 G’. ,. J,34:’,IOO 46.g.s9 1.$83 ~6.000 4un 19.141

kbum COI\1 M"I"t~."" o OU2l G<. ... ...

T., Soe" Ar.....ie.. III 10,001,100 JH,J" .1,* no,ooo COI,loU 116,OU

’...

Ratt.lllsle .." 8ud~el Appliad to <\ppliedlo

lOll/It

Rate 8.a..uorR.lf! Oov V.IUf "’’’’ R~u, 20172018 Co~u Co~I~

I I I I I I I

1:011 COO~ Sjlo!". M.II\Ittn4llte 0.011 GR. 770 11.90",ftAO 161,892 10,:’94 11".000 173,41$ 1I~,919

$Ion COO!ft! Wa! lWa~ o.Oll G,. SO ".100.800 "!U81 ,..1311 ~ .OOO 39,451 )6.000

Total Sp.c....d A", ...,,, au ZI.OI4,440 JlZ.17J ,., 130.000 lll,t16 n.1..flt

1"’)< 
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24. Interest Charges, Administration Fees and Instalments

Interest 

Rate 

%

Admin 

Fee 

$ 

5.00

Actual 

2017/18 

$ 

241,853 

231,312 

422,033 

895,198

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

270,113 

229.449 

349,316 

848,878

Administration Fee 

Penalty Interest 

Instalment Interest

7.00 

3.50

Payment by Instalments 

Council offered instalment payment options of either two or four payments. The first instalment (inclusive of any arrears) 

had to be paid in full by the due date. Failure to pay the first instalment by the due date resulted in the forfeiture of the 

instalment payment option. Ratepayers had the following options for paying their rates: 

(a) Pay in full by 2 September 2017

(b) Pay in four instalments due: 1. 25 August 2017 

2. 27 October 2017 

3. 5 January 2018 

4. 9 March 2018

Administration Fees 

The Rates Instalment Fee is $5 per instalment.

Special Payment Arrangements 

Ratepayers who were unable to pay their account in full or according to the instalment plans offered were able to make 

special payment arrangements to extinguish their debt. Penalty Interest was applied at the rate of 7% to any outstanding 
balance.

Instalment Interest

The Local Government Act allows for interest to be charged on overdue amounts. The Council charged interest at the rate 

of 3.5% on outstanding rates for the year under review. This charge covered the opportunity cost of lost income on 

investment that would otherwise be received had the instalment options not been exercised. The maximum rate of 

Interest allowed to be imposed on outstanding amounts under S6.45(4I(e) of the Local Government Act is 5.5%

Penalty Interest - Rates

Penalty interest was levied where payment in full or the first instalment was not received within thirty-five days of the 

issue of the rate notice. The rate charged was 7% on the daily balance. The maximum rate of interest allowed to be 

imposed on overdue rates and service charges under 56.51(1) of the Local Government Act is 11%.

Penalty Interest - FESA 

The Minister for Emergency Services deemed the penalty interest rate for 2017/18 to be 7% on outstanding balances. 

Interest was levied where payment in full or the first instalment was not received within thirty-five days of the issue of the 

rate notice.
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2S. GRANT REVENUE

Actual Budget Aclual

2017/18 2017/18 2016/17

$ $ $

Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as operating

revenues In the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

By Nature or Type:

Operating Grants, Subisidies and Contributions 12,800,692 11,382,351 13,752,463

Non.Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 11,455,693 11,336,931 11,063,443

24,256,385 22,719,282 24,815,906

By Program:

General Purpose Funding 7,058,056 7,180.091 9,901,179

Governance 601,319 80,000 2,202,389

law Order & Public Safety 298.023 250,730 972,425

Recreation & Cullure 10,995,485 9,563.087 6,951,752

Transport 5,303,502 5,645,374 4,788,161

24,256,385 22,719,282 24,815,906

26. Fees and Charges
Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$ $

General Purpose Funding 444,674 778.231

Governance 11,830 18,586

law Order & Public Safety 546,800 651,096

Health 307.069 303,848

Education & Welfare 1,576.171 1,480.154

CommunIty Amenities 9,780,262 9,907,490

Recreation & Culture 11,472,294 3,767.169

Transport 223,806 217.574

Economic Services 1,813,712 2,039,149

Other Property & Services 2,524,127 3,189,998

28,700,746 22,353,295

27. Number of Employees

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

No. No.

Number of full.tlme equivalent (FTE) employees as at balance

date: 478 497

28. Superannuation

Actual Actual

2017/18 2016/17

$ $

Contributory 713.769 708,621

S.G. Occupational 4,681,399 4,303,471

5.395,169 5,012,092

I’:~ ’I
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29. Financial Risk Manat:ement

....~u’,.... .. .....~,,,"’.. ",...",...~.. ,. .v.. .., ,..., .... ’M.......... ....".. "....’......’.’6 1"" ,,,,c I...... .......... I ...., ..~......., ...... ..... ,,’......... .... ,...... "t. ........’..... .. .,........ """’0"."_&"""...,. ."’........... ",.. ’,re ........"’...................

of tioilnl::ill mukets Jnd s..eks tC mtn:mlH! potential advtorse elfKU en the linOlndal pef"formlllc"" cf the CounCl’

Coun l dOH not ena:ilC~ in tnn5~ct’ions @xpr~5ed n fan~icn currencies ~nd is therltfote not SUbjKt to far.ie" currency risk

FinantJ.1 r~k management h carried cut by lhe fin,,"ce aru under poilcle~ ilpprcved bv ttll~ CounCIl

carryinc V.lue 

AClual Actual

Est. F~if Value 

Actu:.1 ",,(tUlIt

1017/"18 

S

2016/17 

$

l017/18 

S

2016/17 

S

Finilnciill Asseu 

Cash and ca~h IIqu al4Jnl:l 

Held .to-mllrurity investments 

AVlIilable tor Sale Finlnc/al A.net.. 

Re<el...abl~ .

138,691,393 

1,021,S16 

123,73-4 

8,672,483 

148,509,426

113,819,242 

4,920,136 

121,808 

8,511,248 

127,380,4H

138,691,393 

1,021,1116 

123,734 

8,672,483 

148;509,.426

113,819,242 

4,920,136 

123,803 

8,517,248 

127,380,433

Fino1ncial liabllitil!j, 

Bonowrn&$ 

Payabl.s 
.

20,000,000 

9,294,21S 

29,294,215

22,500,000 

~,33S,4S4 

31,838,484

15,713,338 

9,2S4,21S 
25,007,602

17,250,175 

9,338,484 

26,588,6;9

(! rhe amOUl’Il i’J(~Iuc!H !hl! CST U!teiVilbJe ftom!Oiyab’l! to :’TO (!.U!utOfll ftClfI\’ible/pil..,.i!)~.) 

Fait value ~ d.termlned u fQllow~ 

. C.sh ind Cash e:qulvifl~nu, RKltlVabl~5, PayifbleJ - e.’lmilted to the curvin, Vilue which ilpp.o:\Imate. net mifrk.l!t \’,Iue 

. Bonowin&:s, H.td.to.MitUt y Investments - II!stimo1ted future ea~h flows djscount~ bV thl! cunent mitrk.et interest ro1tll!S .pp~cable to o1nets o1nd liabilities with s mil.ilr n~k profiles 

. A.I,iaUable tor sat. hnandal asslm. . .lttmatilld to the carlv~"a v;alu. which IS bll.s.d on indeP ndent valuation

(al Cuh. C.,h Equivalenu 
Financial assets at fair viflue throuch profit or loss

Council’s obJecti.... is to millllmlse Its return on Qjh o1nd investtnnts whilst millnulninl ’n ildeqll’te ley.J of Ilquldlty ilnd preservinc capfUl The finilnce .reil min.c.s th" Ciljh o1.nd Invenmenu 

portfolio ",ith tl"te ass stlnce of independent advlser~. Council hu ~n Invtitment policy and the ~olky is ~ubject to .evlew by Council.

The major risk anocl."ated with Invenmcnts I,. price risk - Ihe "~k th.t Ih~ capital ~Iu. or lnv.utment$ ma’( lIuctuale dUe to (h.n&,,~ In mar~l!t prices, ....’h..thl!f the:;. than!:... .I’ll! ("ll1JslIfd by f;;.ctof"$ 

specific to individuill finanC al instruments of their issue.rs or factor5 affectin&: !imllar instruments traded in a market.

Cash and Fnvestmenu ilfe ho 5ubject to interest r.le rilk - the risk that movements in inleren rate5 could affIKt u!turn).

Anoth.r N~k 1!.$OClatM WIth U"h IInd invcatments" credit risk - ~hl! ruk thlll a contr.cdn, enthy ","11 not -complete it.$. o!)litl.Jhcns under it tln~n(J.\lllnstrum.nt ,."ull/ne In a ’IMlInciallo>> to 

Council

Council .il1~o uek., .ildll". fro,." an Ind.p.ndent advisa, before pl dnrt .ilny c.il,1l .ilnd In\ieU1"I’Ients

ImpllC1 01 a 10% mo...emenl in prrce ollnvotstmentlo

~tlWl 

l017/18 

S

.~ctu.l 

2016/17 

$

. Equltv 

. Slat.ment of Compreh.nSlV4 In(om~

102,182 

102,182

492,014 

492,01-1

Imp.ilCt of.il 1"- mO\ilM’lfOnt tn Int rltS! f4Il;t~ on c.illh 

~nd In....stm.nts:

. Equity 

. St..tement cf COmpr.h.nsl.... In(om.

1,39a,369 

1,39S,369

1,315,379 

1,315,379

(bl Receivabl.s 

Coundh major tec.....abl.1 comprise rates .ilnd annual c.h.,.&es ilnd us..,. ehar&es and fe.~. The m.jor ns..lt assocla:ed with these recel’o’ bles I! credit nsk - the tlS~ that the dehu m.ilV nOl b. ’.I!pilid 

Countll man.J&:.:t$ fhls risk hy monlt.orlne CUUlndin’ d~bl :and emplov1n, debt r*Co".crv pollcurs It ..Iso cncourac., rllt~pay"1 to pay ratlt!. by the due dOlte ’MTOUCh Inc..nt....es

Credit fisk en ra(es nd anntJill Ch.ilfll:c.! IS minlmis.d b., the ability of Ccuncll 10 r.cover th.se debts o1S secured eno1r&:e over the land - that Is, the land elln b+ wid to reco’o’ the debt Council t.!!; 

.Iso abl. to dl r,e ntere.5t on overduf! .ates nd annual ch.r,es at nlCh’!f tn." m.r~et rate~, which funher encour ll:e.J p"yment

rhel4,,~ of Out:>~~"d nt: reCeiVables l.s r~ort/ild to Council monthiv .ilnd bttnc.hn’".rks :.rlll S4lt Ind monitored for acc"pt;able coUect/on performll1’let!

Council m.ilkes 5U1t.ilblli!! p,.oVislon for doubtful f~ltl’o’ables as rltqulred and came!. out credit Che,b on most non....te debtor~

There are no mate al r.c:ei...ables that hav. Men subject to iI re.nelotiation of repayment terms.

Acel", Ano1lysis of Receivable

Carryl", 

Amount

Not Put 

due& not 

imp..airlMi 
S

UPIO 

1 Month

1. ] 

Months

1 Month" 

to 1 Vear

1. S 

Vun

Mor.,ha" 

5 Years

1017/18

Receivables ’ 8,672,483 

8,672,483

3,349,448 

3,3491448

1,450,482 

1,450,482

271,826 

271,826

2,630,482 

2,630,-182

970,245 

970,245
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29. Financial Risk Manaeement

1016/Jl

R.(CI,.....t.f!>>. 8"S17,,zo18 

5,517,248

1,97S,001 

1,975,001

1,98S,87S 

1,985,875

8S2.6?O 

852.670

2,84S,04Q 

2,845,044

8S8,GS1 

85S,fi57

~ The IImcunt of r.ui....bl.s e!O:dude.s the GST reCQ....rabte fr(lm the ATC (stltutOry recltivllble! 

(el Payables & Borrowincs

?Iylbles and borrowincs ;Ire bocn SUbjll!<:t to liquidltv risl: -ttlat IS tn. risk that nluHicient fund~ mly b. on hind to me.t payment obllcat;on~ U .1nd whit" they filII due. CouncIl mIRages thiS 

n~k by monitorlnllu cuh flow requlrem.nu and liqc.:tdlty 1.’Jotls ..",d matntlljnln! In .tteQulIte c:uh buth.r.

0... 0.. - Tot~1

within b4nwen lifter ConlJllctual e.rryi,.
1 yeu 1&5yun 5Y.llu cuh flows Y lue.1

S S S S

2017/J8

SorrowlnCs 2,500,000 10,000.000 7,500,000 24,578,000 20,000,000

P~V~blt.s’ 9,294,215 9,294,21.5 9.2~,2lS

11,794,215 10,000,000 7,SOO,OOO 33.SH,215 2~.294,21S

2OJ6/17

Sorrowm,~ 2,SOO,OOO 10,000,000 10,000,000 27,159,750 22,SOO,OOD

Pltyables’ 9,338,484 9,338..484 9,338,484

11,838,484 10,000,000 10,000,000 36,498,234 31,838,484

~ The .mount of p~Vilblu ocludes the GST payable to the ATO (o:t t\.ltCry p v.bJe!

(d) liquidity Risk and Inte-re,it fbte Risk Exposure 

The followinc: t~ble wmm~riSH the lquldlty rlsk nd intltrt.st nile fisk fot the City, to(ether with the effective Int.erest r~tes u at 30th Junlt 2018,

lnterest Rate hposure

We hted Averace

1017/J8
Effective In(ere~t Carry ng: Fixed Variable Non-Inter~t Nominal

Rate Amount Interest Rate Inte:r6t Rate Bunni Amount

" 5

Financia’ Autt,$

Cash & Cash Equivalents 269 J38,691,393 137,900,000 791,393 138,691,393

Direct Securities 249 J.0;0,816 1,021,816 1,02,1,8.16

Available for sale financial Asset 123.734 123,734 123,734

Receivables 2.72 8,672,483 958,125 7,714,358 8,672,483

Total 148.509,426 138,921.816 1.749.518 7.838.092 148.509.426

Finilnciall abilittes.

8orrowincs 3.69 20,000,000 20,000.000 20,000,000

Accounts Payable 9,294.215 9.294,215 9,294,215

Oeposits/Bonds 1.50

Total 29,294.215 20.000.000 9.294.215 29.294.215
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Maturit Dates

2017/18
} Months to More than

Carrying Amollnt Up Co 1 month 1- J Monlhs t Yur I Year

financial Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 138.691.393 14.267,295 32.866.238 91,557.860

Direct Se.c-unlles 1.021,816 1,021,816

Available for sale financial Asset 123.734 123,734

Receivables 8.672,483 8.672.483

Tolal 148.5O’J,426 22.939.778 32.866.238 91.557.860 1.145.550

Finln al Labilitic)

Borrowings 20.000.000 2,500,000 17,500.000

Accounts Payable 9.294.215 6.314,389 1.611.202 991,659 376,965

Deposits/Bonds
TOl’al 29.294,215 6.314,389 1.611.202 3.491.659 17.876.965

Th. followln& tiable pro...ides companti....s OIi It 3f.)’" June 2017:

Interest Rate h~osure

Weiehted Avcraee

2016/17
Effective Interest Carrying Fixed Variable Non-Interest Nominal

Rate Amount Interest Rate Internt Rate Bearing Amount

" S

Finilncial ASsc:15

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2.90 113.819,242 110.900.000 2,919,242 113,819.242

Direct Securities 261 4.920,J36 1.078.644 3,841.492 4.920.136

Available for sal~ Financial Asset 123,808 123,808 123.808

ReceiVbles 2.48 8.517,248 858,657 7,658,590 8.517.248

10lal 127.]80A33 111.978.644 ].777.899 11.623.890 127,380,433

finan al Liabilities

Borro\’,ines 3.66 22.500,000 22.500.000 22.500.000

Accounts Paya~e 9.338,48d 9,338,484 9.338.4S4

DepoSIts/Bonds 1 SO

TOlal 31.838,484 22,500,000 9.338.484 31.838,484

Matudt Dales

1016(17
3 Months to More than

Cartyin2 Amount Upto 1 month 1.:3 Months 1 Year 1 Year

S S

f nilnclal A>>ets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 113,819.242 2.919,242

Direct Sec.uritles 4,920.136 3,841.492 1,078,544

Av ilable for S le Financial Asset 123,808 12.307,089 45.ll3.382 55.056,369

Receivables 8.517.248 8.517,248

Total 127,380,433 23,743,578 45,1l3,381 58,897,861 1.078,644

fini1nd8Iliabilitie~

Borrowines 22.500.000 2,500,000 20,000,000

Accounts Payable 9,338.484 6.663,244 2.078.647 933 597,526

Deposits/Bonds

Total 31.838.484 6.663.244 2.078.647 2.499.067 20.597.526
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30. Elected Members Remuneration

Actual 

2017/18 

$

Budget 

2017/18 

S

Actual 

2016/17 

S

The following fees, expenses and allowances were paid to 

councillors and the mayor:

Meeting Fees 

Vehicle Mileage Claims 

Mayoral/Deputy Mayoral Allowances 

Communication Expenses

320,437 

8,106 

111,115 

42,129 

481,787

329,318 

10,000 

111,080 

35,000 

48S,398

336,490 

11,853 

103,675 

37,955 

489,973

31. Economic Dependency

A significant portion of Council’s revenue is received by way of grants from the State and Federal Government. 

Actual Budget 

2017/18 2017/18 

$ $

The total of grant revenue from Government sources 24,256,385 22,719,282

Actual 

2016/17 

$ 

24,815,906

32. Events after the Reporting Date

There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the year that have significantly affected or may significantly affect 

either: 

. the City’s operations in future financial years 

. the results of those operations in future financial years; or 

- the City’s state of affairs in future financial years,

33. Major land Transactions 

The City did not participate In any major land transactions during the 2017/18 financial year.

34. Trading Undertakings and Major Trading Undertakings

The City did not participate in any trading undertakings or major trading undertakings during the 2017/18 financial year.

35. Trust Funds 

Funds held at balance date over which the City has no control and which are not induded in the financial statements are as follows

Opening Balance 1 Closing Balance 30

July 2017 Amount. Received Amounts Paid June 2018

$ $ $ $

Bonds and Deposits 5,385,113 1,998,629 {1,549,2981 5,834,444

Public Open Space 5,845,276 661,375 (SOl,739) 6,004,913

11,230,389 2,660,004 {2,OSl,0371 11,839,357
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Note 36 - Fair Value Measurement

The City of Cockburn measures the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis after initial 

recognition: 

Available for sale financial asset 

Land and Buildings 
Plant & Machinery 

Computer Equipment 

Furniture and Equipment 

Roads 

Footpaths 

Drainage 

Landfill Infrastructure 

Parks Equipment 

Marina Infrastructure 

The following table provides the fair values of the City of Cockburn’s assets measured and recognized on a 

recurring basis after initial recognition and their categorization within the fair value hierarchy:

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Non-financial Assets - 30 June Note Levell ($) Level 2 ($) Level 3 ($) Total ($)

Land 9(b) 84,111.627 84,111.627

Buildings 9(b) 215.120.020 215.120.020

Furniture and Equipment 9(b) 2.147,807 2,147.807

Computer Equipment 9(b) 4,153,841 4.153,841

Plant & Machinery 9(b) 14,873,074 14,873.074

Roads 10(b) 366.263,283 366.263,283

Footpaths lO(b) 41.867.605 41.867.605

Drainage 10(b) 211,708,027 211,708.027

Landfill Infrastructure lO(b) 20.791,575 20,791.575

Parks Equipment !.O(b) 55,310.434 55.310.434

Port Coogee Marina 10(b) 50,716,627 50,716,627

Total 98,984,701 968,079,219 1,067,063,920

Non-financial Assets - 30 June
Levell ($) Level 2 ($) Level 3 ($) Total ($)Note

2017

Land 9(b) 82,632,800 82.632,800

Buildings 9(b) 217,312.861 217.312,861

Furniture and Equipment 9(b) 1,870,689 1,870,689

Computer Equipment 9(b) 598,759 598,759

Plant & Machinery 9(b) 15.302,627 15.302,627

Roads lO(b) 351,679,674 351.679,674

Footpaths 10(b) 41.062.238 41.062.238

Drainage 10(b) 204.129,170 204.129,170

Landfill Infrastructure lO(b) 21,769,439 21.769.439

Parks Equipment 10(b) 46.204.658 46.204,658

Port Coogee Marina
10(b) 51.662.441 51.662,441

Infrastructure

Total 97,935,427 936,289,929 1,034,225,356
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36 (a). Transfers Policy

The policy of the Cty of Cockburn is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of the fair value hierarchy 
levels as at the end of the reporting period. There was a transfer of Level 3 for recurring fair value 

measurements during the year.

36 (b). Highest and Best Use

All assets have been valued at their highest and best use, that being their current use.

36 (c). Valuation techniques used to derive fair values:

The fair values of financial and non-financial assets that are not traded in an active market are determined using 

valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable data where it is available and 

rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are 

observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable 

market data, the asset is Included in level 3. This is the case for Council speclalised buildings assets, which are of a 

specialist nature and where there is no active market for the assets.

The following table summarises the valuation inputs and techniques used to determine the fair value for each

asset class.

level of Fair Value at
Valuation

Asset Valuation 30 June 2018
Technique(s)

Inputs Used

Input ($)

Land 2
Market

Price per square metre
84,111,627 Approach

+

Market Estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of

Approach consumption and asset condition and relationship

Buildings 3
215,120,020 Cost to the assessed level of remaining service potential

Approach of the depreciable amount.

Estimates of residual value, usefullfe, pattern of

3 2,147,807
Cost consumption and asset condition and

Furniture &
Approach relationship to the assessed level of remaining

Equipment
service potential of the depreciable amount

Computers
Make, size, year of manufacture and condition&

4.153.841
Cost

Equipment
3

Approach

Plant & Machinery 14.873.074
Market Make, size, year of manufacture and condition

2 Approach

Estimates of residual value. useful life, pattern of

Roads
3 366.263.283

Cost consumption and asset condition and relationship

Approach to the assessed level of remaining service

potential of the depreciable amount

Estimates of residual value. useful life, pattern of

3
41.867,605

Cost consumption and asset condition and

Footpaths Approach relationship to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the depreciable arnount

Estimates of residual value, usefullfe. pattern of

3
211.708.027

Cost consumption and asset condition and

Drainage Approach relationship to the assessed level of remaining
service potential of the depreciable amount
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Asset

level of 

Valuation 

Input

Fair Value at 

30 June 2018 

($)

Valuation 

Technique(s)
Inputs Used

3
20,791,575

Cost 

Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of 

consumption and asset condition and 

relationship to the assessed level of remaining 
service potential of the depreciable amount

landfill

3
55,310,434

Cost 

Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of 

consumption and asset condition and 

relationship to the assessed level of remaining 
service potential of the depreciable amount

Parks Equipment

Port Coogee 

Marina 

Infrastructure
3 50,716,627

Cost 

Approach

Estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of 

consumption and asset condition and 

relationship to the assessed level of remaining 
service potential of the depreciable amount

Total
1,067,063,920

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The City’s Infrastructure assets were revalued as at 30 June 2018 by Management Valuation. These were valued on the 

basis that the entity intended to retain these assets for a continuous use for the purposes of the enterprise and for 

the foreseeable future. The management had regard to assessing the value of the assets in their existing use and 

ensuring the highest and best use, noting that the current use of an asset is presumed to be its highest and best use 
unless market or other factors suggest a different use would maximise its value.

The following methods were used to determine the fair value measurements.

land

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, a Market 

Approach by way of Direct Comparison or Income methods can be utilised, and are accepted valuation methodologies 
under AASB13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the valuation is deemed to be a level 2 input.

Direct Comparison method which is considered a Level 2 input on the Fair Value Hierarchy, Involves the analysis of 

sales evidence and comparisons with the subject land taking into account matters such as area, location and other 

general site characteristics. We note the Direct Comparison approach has been utilised in our assessment for all Land 

Assets, however the fair value measurement has been either a Level 2 or 3, depending on assumptions as to: 
- Whether the land is subject to restrictions as to use and/or sale; 
- Whether there is no active market.

If these assumptions apply to the land, we have measured the expected Fair Value as a level 3. However if an active 

market could be established and there were no unreasonable restrictions as to use and/or sale, we have deemed the 

measurement to be a level 2. land carrying a Community or Park Recreation zoning, land that is utilised for 

Community uses (and not zoned ’Community’), access strips, or due to its general characteristics land that has no 
observable active market. have been assessed as a level 3.

The valuation techniques used to measure fair value maximised the use of observable data where it was available and 

relied as little as pOSSible on entity specifics. The disclosure of valuation estimates is deSigned to provide users with an 

insight into the judgements that have been made in the determination of fair values.

For assets valued under Level 3, the unobservable input is the rate per square metre applied to the asset.

Buildings

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, the Market
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Approach by Direct Comparison, Income or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted valuation 

methodology under AASB13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the building valuation is deemed to be a Level 2 input.

Direct Comparison and Summation methods involve the analysis of sales evidence and comparisons with the subject 

taking into account matters such as method of construction, size, condition, age, land area and location. The land 

value is subtracted from the Market Value of the property to measure the asset Fair Value.

The Income approach is applied to income producing properties and Includes the capit.alisation of net income method, 

or for multi-income stream assets, a discounted cash flow approach. The capitalisation method involves capitalising 
the estimated net income of the property at an appropriate capitalisation rate (net yield) that has been determined 

through the analysis of sales evidence.

Due to the predominantly speclalised nature of Local Government Assets, most of the buildings valuations have been 

undertaken on a Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost) valuation, an accepted valuation methodology under 

AASB13. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input. Under this approach, the following process has been adopted:

Where there is no depth of market. as determined for the Council assets, the net current value of an asset is the 

gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the 

asset. Published/available market data for recent projects. and/or published cost guides are utilised to determine 

the estimated replacement cost (gross value) of the asset, including allowances for preliminaries and professional 
fees. This is considered a Level 2 input.

A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall condition as 

noted by the Valuer during inspection. economic and/or functional obsolescence. The condition assessment 

directly translates to the level of depreciation applied. The conditions assessed are comidered a Level 3 input.

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, in some instances residual values have been factored into 

the calculations, which is the value at the time the asset. is considered to be no longer available. The residual 

values applied are considered a Level 3 input.

While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (level 2). the other 

unobservable inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, and asset condition) were also required (level 3).

Landfill Infrastructure

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, the Market 

Approach by Direct Comparison, Income or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted valuation 

methodology under AASB13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the asset valuation is deemed to be a Level 2 input. 
The Fair Value should represent the highest and best use of the asset, i.e. the use of the asset that is physically 

possible, legally permissible, financially feasible, and which results In the highest value. Opportunities that are not 

available to the agency or entity are not considered. In this case we have assumed the current use is the highest and 

best use due to the specialist nature of the assets. 

Due to the predominantly specialised nature of Local Government Assets, the landfill valuations have been undertaken 

on a Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost). an accepted valuation methodology under AASB13. The cost 

approach is deemed a Level 3 Input. Under this approach, the following process has been adopted:

Where there is no depth of market as determined for the Council assets, the net current value of an asset is the 

gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the 

asset. Published/available market data for recent projects, and/or published cost guides are utilised to determine 

the estimated replacement cost (gross value) of the asset, including allowances for preliminaries and professional 
fees. This is considered a Level 2 input. 

A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall condition. 

economic and/or functional obsolescence. The condition assessment directly translates to t.he level of 

depreciation applied. The conditions assessed are considered a Level 3 input. 

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation for major assets, we have disaggregated into significant 

components which exhibit different patterns of consumption (useful lives). Residual value is also factored which is 

the value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available. The condition assessment is applied on a 

component basis.

While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (level 2), the other
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unobservable inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, and asset condition) were also required (level 
3).

The valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values maximise the use of observable data where it is 
available and relies as little as possible on entity specifics.

The landfill infrastructure assets were segregated into Storage, Monitoring, Water Supply, Fixed Plant, Plant & 

Equipment and Site works; Water supply and Site works assets were further componentized. Unit rates and lump sums 
were applied based on similar recent project costs, unit rate databases, indices, Rawlinson’s Construction Handbook 

and quotations, these rates were reviewed by council staff. Raw Costs were increased up to 27% depending on project 
complexity to allow for project overheads including survey, environmental and investigation costs, engineering design, 
planning and project management.

A site inspection was carried out as part of the valuation process. However none of the sub-surface assets were 

Inspected due to their inaccessible nature.

Plant & Machinery, Computer Equipment and Furniture & Equipment

These classes of assets were revalued in June 2016 through a management review in order to comply with the 

mandatory requirements of Reg. 17 A of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations. The additions 

since that time are shown at cost and given their level of currency, it is deemed the written down values approximate 

fair values. 

Plant and Machinery assets are generally valued using the market approach based on comparable sales and 

relevant industry market price reference guides, and have been classified as being valued at Level 2 of the fair value 

hierarchy. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are the make, size, year of manufacture and 

condition. 

Level 3 valuation inputs were used to determine the fair value of the City’s furniture and equipment. The valuation 

methodology was determined having regard to the lack of a market and sales evidence, and the level of specialisation 
of the assets.

Infrastructure Assets (Roads, Footpaths, Drainage, Signs, and Lighting & Fences)

In accordance with AASB13 and legislative requirements, the Cit.y carried out internal management revaluations of its 

Roads, Footpaths, Drainage, Signs, and lighting & Fences infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2018. These valuations 

were completed using the Cost Approach (Oepreciated Replacement Cost), an accepted valuation methodology under 

AASB13. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input.

The valuations were coordinated, developed and prepared in-house and formed by est.ablishing unit rates for 

infrastructure replacement that consider labour, overhead costs and materials.

The unit rates are agreed by reviewing multiple sources as outlined below:

. Current contract rates from the City of Cockburn’s contract management system. 

Internal knowledge from key operational stakeholders. 

Current charge out rates for internal labour activities. 

Rawlinson Construction workbook 2014.

The Condition profile of the City’s infrastructure assets is measured using a 1 to 5 rating. This rating affects the 

remaining life of the asset and has been considered in preparing the valuations.

Road surface and footpath data is considered t.o have an accuracy level of 95% and all roads and footpaths have been 

segmented from intersection to intersection. The data recorded against each section includes surface area, surface 

type, date of construction and condition. The City undertook a full road surface and footpath condition assessment 

audit with Opus during late 2016.

Data is held for all storm water drainage assets including pits, pipes and sumps, and the pit type, pipe material and 

lengt.h and sump size and material. Where the construction year is unknown, this was assumed to be the same year as 

the road construction date. The data held for the storm water infrastructure is considered to have 85% accuracy. To 

improve this accuracy level and to validate the City’s database an audit of the City’s pits and pipes storm water assets
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was commissioned in 2013 and was completed within two years. A condition assessment audit of the entire sump 

fencing was undertaken in 2012 by the Asset Services team, which also clarified any uncertainty of the material types. 

Sump fencing was Included in t.he revaluation of Fences.

Marina Infrastructure & Parks Equipment.

The Marina Infrastructure was revalued by AssetVal in 2016. The Infrastructure asset is due to ’be revalued along with 

Landf llnfrastructure, Land and Building revaluation in 2019/20.

The City will perform a formal Audit on all Parks Hard Equipment in 2018/19.

36 (d) Disclosed Fair Value Measurements

The following assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, but their 

fair values are discloses in the notes:

- Borrowings 

The following table provides the level of fair value hierarchy within which the disclosed fair value 

measurements are categorised in their entirety and a description of the valuation technique(s) and inputs 

used:

Description Note Fair Value 

Hierarchy 
Level I 

Valuation 

Technique(s)

Inputs Used

Uabilities 

Borrowings 12(b)

~2_J 
Income 

approach using 

discounted cash 

flow 

methodology

Current commercial 

borrowing rates for 

similar instruments

There has been no change in the valuation technique(s) used to calculate the fair values disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements.
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NOleS TO AND fORM1NG PART Of lIlE fiNANCiAl REPORT

37. Rel"ted P"rty Trans"ction

Key Management Prrwnnel (KMPl Com~$>tjon Oisclos.ure

The total remuneration for KMP of the Cit.,. during the year are 

as folIO\\’s:-

Actual Actual

1017/18 1016/17

1,314,040 1,790,243

112.078 159,432

327,429 313,136

1,753.547 2.262.811

Short-t lm employtH: benef s 

Post-emplovment benetrlS 

Other long-term benefits

Short. T~m Employ~ Benefits

These amounts include aU salary, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP ex-cept for details in respect of fees and benefits 

paid to ~eaed members may be found at note 30.

Posl-Employmenf 8crw:fil!lo

These amounts are the current-vear’s cost 01 provldine, lor the Oty’s superannuation contributions made during theyel:Jr

Other long-Term ~efits 

These amounts represent lInnu lleave and lone service benefrts accruing during the year.

Rtial~ Partie:s 

The City’s main related parties are as follows: 

I. K~ Ma~nt ~rSOfl~J

Any person(s~ h v nc lIu1.horhy and respon~brhty lor planninr., direCt and controll ne the actiVities 01 the entily, dlrectry or lndwe<tly, 
indudlng any elected member, are considered key man~ement personnel.

Ii. Enriries SiJbj~cr to SlgnjflCom Influence by lh~ Cir;

An entity that has the: pO’M!!:r to partidpate in the: tinandal and ope:rating policy dtionsof an entity, but does not have conual over 

those policies, Is an enllty which holds sienlllcant Inlh,u::nce, Scnlficant lntlueflce may be rained bv $hare ownership, statute or 

agreement.

I/i. JoIm Venwre Ar(anQ~nr.s Accounted for Under rm: eqUIty Mf:.thod 

The ntere5t in the joim venture rrcmgements 15 iKcounted tor in these finanC ! statements using the equity ~thod of acco nting. For 

deta s of InterMt!i held in Joint venture r""’gements, refer to Note 17,

Trans.actiom with Retaled Patties

TranSions ~tween related parties are on normal (ommer al terms and conditions no more favour le than those available to other 

parties unless otherWise s~ated The following transactions occurred With related parties’

Actual 

1017118

Actual 

1016117

Associated Companies/Individuals: 

Sale of iOOdS and servicfi 

PurChase 01 toadS and services

Joint V~lU~ f.ntiti~:

Waste disposal payments made to Southern Metropolitan R~onal Coundl 6,420,874 7,637,855

Amounts Outstandinc, from Relat~ Panies: 

Trade and other re<eivables 

loans to assodated entities 

loans to Ice... management personnel

Amounts Payable to Refatrd Panies: 

Trade and other payables 

loans ’rom associated entities
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38. Opening & Closing Funds used in the Rate Setting Statement 

2017/18 2017/18 

(30 June 2018 (1 July 2017 

Carried Forward) Brouc:ht Forward)

Surplus/(Deficit) - Rate Setting Statement 11,967,494

Comprises: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Financial Assets - Current 

Trade & Other Receivables 

Other Assets 

I nven tories

138,691,393

8,240,088 

282,233 

35,600 

147,249,315

less: 

Trade & Other Payables 

Provisions

(10,516,264) 

(5,730,946) 

(17,247,210)

Net Current Assets 130,002,105

2016/17 

(30 June 2017 

Carried Forward)

$ $ $

6,643,985 5,543,985

115,396,082 115,396,082

3,841,492 3,841,492

6,894,909 6,894,909

911,565 911,565

21.782 21,782

127,065,830 127,065,830

(9,381,006) (9,381,006)

(5,596,413) (6,596,413)

(15,977,419) (15,977,419)

111,088,411 111,088,411

less: 

Restricted Financial Assets - Reserve Funds 

Committed Financial Assets (unspent grants & 

contributions)

( 110,905,097)

(8,151.330) 

(119,056,427)

Add: 

Restricted Financial Assets held in Non Current 

Investments 1,021,816

5,543,985Surplus/(Oefi.it) 11,967,494

Difference:

(97,962,510) (97,952,610)

(7,560,460) 

(105,523,070)

(7,560,460) 

(105,523,070)

1,078,544 1,078,644

6,643,985

There was no difference between the Surplus/(Deficit) 1 July 2017 Brought Forward position used in the 2018 audited 

financial report and the Surplus/(Deficit) Carried Forward position as disclosed in the 2017 audited financial report,
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1. Purpose of the Audit

The purpose of this audit plan is to summarise our external audit approach in relation to the statutory 

audit of the City of Cockburn for the financial year ending 30 June 2018.

Our Audit Plan has been prepared to inform the officers and the Audit Committee of the City of 

Cockburn about our responsibilities as external auditors and how we plan to discharge them.

The plan focuses on:

. Documenting our audit approach, Including: 
- audit process; 

- approach to auditing key financial statement risk issues; and 

- completion; 

. Presenting our audit engagement team; 

. Highlighting relevant independence and governance matters: 

. Providing a preliminary assessment of timing;

Our audit approach is focused on assessing and responding to the risk of misstatement in the 

financial statements.

We are committed to audit Quality and the requirements of independence based on Macri Partners’ 

and the accounting profession’s strict rules and policies. We have made our initial assessment of 

potential threats to independence and have adopted appropriately robust safeguards to address those 

risks and protect independence.

2. Scope of the Audit

We have been contracted by the Office of the Auditor General to conduct an independent audit of the 

financial report in order to enable the Auditor General to express an opinion on the financial report to 

the ratepayers of the City of Cockburn.

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards with the Objective of 

reducing the level of material misstatement In the financial statements to an acceptably low level. 

These standards have been fully updated and reVised to improve their clarity and in some cases thiS 

is accompanied by additional audit requirements. We are required to comply with them for the audit of 

the 2017/18 financial report.

We plan and perform our audit to be able to provide reasonable assurance that the financial report is 

free from material misstatement and give a true and fair view. We use professional judgement to 

assess what IS material. ThiS Includes consideration of the amount and nature of transactions.

Page 1
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3. Financial Reporting Responsibilities

Management External Audit Audit Committee

. Prepare annual fmanclal . Conduct audit In . Create a cullure of

report and notes m accordance with honesty and ethical

accordance with professional standards behaVIOlJf: set the

Australian Accounting and applicable financial proper tone and

Standards, Local reporting framework emphaslse fraud

Government Act 1995 (Le_ Auditing Standards prevention

(as amended) and and Australian

Regulations under the Accounting Standards) . Oversee management,
Act including ensuring that

. Express an opinion on management
. Design, implement and whether the annual establishes and

maintain effective financial report mamtains internal

internal control over presents a true and fair control to provide
financial reporting view in accordance reasonable assurance

processes with Australian regarding integrity and

Accounting Standards, reliability of financial

. Risk management Local Government Act reporting
1995 (as amended)

. Exercise sound and Regulations under . Oversee management

judgement in selecting the Act activities which ensure

and applying critical appropriate risk

accounting poticies . Plan and perform the management and

audit to obtain controls are in place for

. Safeguard assets reasonable assurance monitoring risk and

(not absolute compliance with

. Prevent, detect and assurance) as to policies, procedures

correct errors whether the accounts and laws

are free of material

. Prevent and detect fraud misstatements, . Review the Council’s

whether caused by performance

. ProVide representations error or fraud

to external auditors . Liaise with the external

. Maintain audit auditors to facilitate

. Assess quanlllative and independence external audit

qualitative impact of

misstatements . Review annual financial

discovered during the report and recommend

audit on fair presentation approval to the

of the financial report Council

. Confirm the effective

operations of financial

reporting controls and

disclosures in the annual

financial report

Page 2
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4. Audit Approach

Our objective is to provide an independent auditor’s opinion on the financial report of the City of 

Cockburn for the year ending 30 June 2018. Our audit methodology is split into two stages and is 

applied uniquely to City of Cockburn’s circumstances. It involves the following activities.

Planning 

(tnterim Audit 

Phase)

Control 

evaluation 

(Interim Audit 

Phase)

Substantive 

testing 

(Final Audit 

Phase)

I

. Perform risk assessment procedures & identify risks 

. Determine audit strategy 

. Determine planned audit approach 

. Understand and evaluate the overall control 

environment

. Understand accounting and reporting activities 

. Evaluate and test selected controls over key financial 

systems 

. Review the internal audit function 

. Review progress on critical accounting matters

. Plan and perform substantive procedures 

. Conclude on critical accounting matters 

. Identify audit adjustments. 

. Consider If audit eVidence IS sufficient and appropriate

. Perform completion procedures & overall evaluation 

. Obtain management representations 

. Report matters of governance interest 

. Form our audit opinion

Page 3
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Completion 

(Final Audit 

Phase)

. External 

audit plan

. Financial 

reporting 

controls 

. Interim Audit 

Management 

letter

. Summary of 

audit 

differences

. Audit opinion 

. Management 

letter (if 

applicable)

Our audit procedures will focus on those areas of the City of Cockburn’s activities that are considered 

to represent the key audit risks identified in our planning memorandum and through discussions with 

management and the Audit Committee during the course of our audit.
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Internal Control Environment

In accordance with the Australian Auditing standards, we will perform a review of the design and 

operating effectiveness of the Council’s significant financial recording and reporting processes. Our 

audit will be designed to obtain a degree of audit comfort from independent testing of management’s 
internal controls. This approach of understanding and evaluating controls is risk-based and structured 

on a foundation of the Council having a strong control environment.

Our audit approach will also be based on understanding and evaluating your internal control 

environment and where appropriate validating these controls, if we wished to place reliance on them. 

This work will be supplemented with substantive audit procedures, which include detailed testing of 

transactions and balances and suitable analytical procedures.

A Report on Control Findings for the 2017/2018 financial year will be provided to management after 

the interim audit, outlining our findings, significant deficiencies and our recommendations on where 

improvements can be made. We will be revisiting this report on audit control findings to check if 

management’s responses have been implemented during the year as agreed.

Key Financial Statement Processes

The following areas will be covered for risk assessment during the interim audit: 

Treasury management cycle - Bank reconciliations and investment of surplus funds 

Procurement and Payments cycle - Purchases, Payments and Creditors Management 

Revenue cycle - Rales and ESL, Other revenue (fees and charges, etc.) and Debtors 

Management 

Payroll cycle 

. Fraud risk assessment - Journats 

. IT Controls assessment

Compliance Matters

An examination of some compliance mailers (including registers, minutes and other legislative 

mat.lers) under:

Part 6 of the Local Government Act 1995 (as amended); 

. the Local Government (FinanCial Management) Regulations 1996 (as amended); or 

. applicable financiat controls of any other wrillen law

will be carried out and any non-compliance matters identified will be reported in our Interim Audit 

Management Report for management information. Non-compliance mailers are also required to be 

reported In our Independent Auditor’s Report

Audit Requirements Schedules

To assist the Council in gathering and collating the necessary information for our final audit visit, we 

will forward an Audit Requirements Schedule in June 2018. As the requested information will form the 

basis of our audit working papers, the information will be reqUired to be made available to us at the 

commencement of our audit visIt. This will assist us In delivenng an eff cient audil and minlmlslng 

interruptions to the Council’s staff.

Page 4

I ;~ ’I
163 of 202

Version: 2, Version Date: 09/05/2019
Document Set ID: 7943624



Item 13.2 Attachment 2 ASFC 15/11/2018

5. Significant Risks Identified 
"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non- 
routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size or nature, and that, therefore, 
occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for 
which there is significant measurement uncertainty".

In this section, we outline the significant risks of material misstatement, which we have Identified.

1. Fair Value Assessment and Revaluation of Infrastructure Asset Classes

Regulation 17 A of the LG 

(Financial Management) 

Regulations 1996 requires 
Infrastructure and all other assets 

to be measured at fair value for the 

year ending 30 June 2018, which 

may be based on significant 
estimations and use of 

valuer/management’s judgements 
and assumptions. The Council will 

be having its infrastructure and all 
other asset classes revalued this 

financial year.

The value of infrastructure 

and other assets may be 

materially misstated.

Review the basis of the asset 

revaluations (at fair value) undertaken 

and in doing so consider: 

. the judgements, assumptions 
and data used; 

. the reasonableness of any 

estimation techniques applied; 
and 

the appropriateness of 

valuations undertaken 

including the expertise of City 
of Cockburn’s valuer.

The accuracy of the asset 

revaluation surplus and/or 

impairment expense may 
be materially misstated.

:;.. We will review other significant 
additions and disposals of assets 

during the year.

,. Review appropriateness of 

depreciation against the estimated 

useful life in the Council’s 

accounting policies

;... Perform procedures to obtain 

assurance that valuations have been 

appropriately recorded in the fixed 

asset register and general ledger.
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2. Development Contributions and Gifted Assets

The City receives a significant 
amount of payments, in-kind 

works, services or facilities and 

gifted assets.

Development contributions are 

payments or in kind works 

provided by developers towards 

the supply of infrastructure to 

support new land developments. 

They are collected mainly by using 

Development Contributions Plans 

(DCPs), voluntary agreements and 

planning and building permit 

processes.

Revenue from 

contributions (cash/non 

cash) may be materially 
misstated due to the 

failure to correctly 

recognise and measure 

recognition of assets in 

accordance with the 

applicable accounting 
standards.

);.. Obtain an understanding of and 

assess the controls over the 

recording of development 
contribution revenue in the City’s 
financial statements and collection 

of development contributions

., Ensure that the recognition of 

contributed and gifted assets is 

performed consistently and in 

accordance with Australian 

Accounting Standards AASB 116 

Property, Plant and Equipment and 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

3. Risk of Fraud through Management Override of Controls

Auslralian Auditing Standard ASA 
240 - The auditor’s responsibility 
to consider fraud in an audit of 

financial statements requires us to 

consider the potential for 

management override because 

controls that may be sufficient to 

detect error may not be eHective in 

detecting fraud.

In all entities, management at 

various levels is in a unique 

position to perpetrate fraud 

because of the ability to 

manipulate accounting records 

and prepare fraudulent financial 

statements by overriding controls 

that otherwise appear to be 

operating eHeclively.

Due to the unpredictable way in 

which such override could occur, 

we consider there to be a risk of 

material misstatement due to fraud 

and thus a significant risk on all 

audits.

Assertions, account 

balances and operating 
results may be materially 
misstated.

We will assess the processes in place 
to prevent and detect fraud. Auditing 
Standard ASA 240 imposes specific 
audit procedures, including:

).. Testing a sample of journals 
recorded in the general ledger and 

other adjustments made in 

preparation of the financial 

statements

:;. Reviewing material accounting 
estimates for bias

);.. Reviewing significant unusual 
transactions outside the normal 

course of business
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4. Revenue Recognition

In accordance with Australian 

Auditing Standard ASA 240 - The 

auditor’s responsibility to consider 

fraud in an audit of financial 

statements, we presume there is a 

risk of fraud in respect of the 

recognition of revenue because of 
the potential for Inappropriate 

recording of transactions in the 

wrong period

The standard allows the 

presumption to be rebutted but, 

given a local government’s range 
of revenue sources, we have 

concluded that there are 

insufficient grounds for rebuttal. 

This does not imply that we 

suspect actual or intended 

manipulation, but that we continue 

to deliver our audit work with 

appropriate professional 

scepticism.

Budgetary pressures and 

performance targets may 
influence the revenue 

recognition.

Revenue may be 

materially misstated due 

to the failure to correctly 
recognise and measure it 

in accordance with the 

applicable accounting 
standards.

,.. Substant.late verification of cut-off 

procedures to mitigate the risk of 
income being recognised in the 

wrong periOd.

l- In addition, undertake a range of 

substantive procedures InclUding:

. testing receipts to ensure they 
have been recognised in the 
correct year;

. testing adjustment journals, 
and

. obtaining direct confirmation of 

year-end bank balances and 

testing bank reconciliations to 

the general ledger.

). Assess whether treatment of 

revenue is consistent with 

Accounting Standards AASB 118 
Revenue and AASB 1004 

Contributions

5. Financial Ratios

The Department of Local 

Government, Sport and Cultural 

Industries (DLGSCI) launched a 
website www.mycouncil.wa.gov.au 
where all key financial ratios for 

every Council are reported to allow 

the public to view the financial 

health score of local governments.

There may be a higher 
level of scrutiny of the 

results in the financial 

statements and the key 
financial ratios.

The financial ratios may 

not be calculated in 

accordance with 

legislative requirements.

-,. Check the calculations of the 

financial ratios

,. Assess the reasonableness of 

explanations provided for any 
significant variations.
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6. Provision for Site Rehabilitation

The Henderson landfill accepts 

general rubbish and green waste
High degree 01 complexity 
involved in the calculation

,. Review the estimates and 

assumptions in the model 

developed by the Council for 

estimating total expenditure 

over the landfill discounted to 

net present value 

)> Review of 

depreciation/amortisation 

charge for reasonableness 

,. Ensure that the provisions 
have been correctly calculated 

according to: 

Accounting Standard 
137 Provisions, 

Contingent Assets and 

Contingent Liabilities 

UIG Interpretation 1 

Changes in Existing 

Decommissioning, 
Restoration and 

Similar Liabilities

The obligation for the Council to 

recognise and maintain the 

provision for site rehabilitation 

arises because of the significant 
costs Involved In rehabilitating the 

sites.

7. Changes to Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations that have been signalled 

by DLGSCI

Introduction of a $5,000 
asset capitalisation 
threshold - if mandated, 
local governments would 

need to expense existing 
assets below $ 5.000 
Associated with this, 
DLGSCI proposes that 

those assets below $ 

5,000 that are portable 
and attractive be included 

in a separate register.

Impact on the expense 
and property, plant and 

equipment balances.

;... Monitor the progress of these 

proposed regulatory changes and 

work with your management as and 

when the changes are implemented.

Replacement of valuation 

dates for classes of assets 

with a requirement for 

assets to be at fair value 

and revalued every 3 to 5 

years.

Proposed change to the 

wording of the Statement 

by Chief Executive Officer.

Additional risks may emerge over the course of the audit These factors will be considered in our 

reporting to the City of Cockburn and the design of our audit procedures. 
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6. Impact of Fraud on the Financial Report

In accordance with Auditing Standard ASA 240 "The Auditor’s responsibility to consider fraud 

in an Audit of B Financial Report", we will undertake specific procedures and report findings to 

the Council in respect of financial reporting fraud. The following diagram highlights the 

phases of our work on fraud.

Discuss fraud

. Meetings with management 

. Understand systems and controls 

. Known frauds

Assess fraud risk

Preliminary fraud risk assessment 

Pressure to meet financial targets 

Employee pressures 

Management oversight 

Internal control framework 

Nature of industry 

Structure 

Attitudes I culture

Tailor audit 

response

. I ncreased risk increases the level of 

procedures; 

. Review and test the fraud risk assessment 

process and systems and controls to 

prevent. detect and deter fraudulent activity; 

. Identify and select specific journal entries 

for detailed substantiation and review year- 

end journals for appropriate evidence and 

basis; and 

Review significant accounting estimates for 

management bias.

We will be forwarding a Fraud and Error Assessment Form which is required to be completed by 

management and Audit Committee of the City of Cockburn prior to our final audit visit.

The form allows us to make enquiries of management and the Audit Committee, to obtain their 

understanding on the risk of fraud within their Council and to determine whether management have 

knowledge of fraud that has been perpetrated on or within the Council.
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7. Audit Engagement Team

The audit team consists of the key members listed below:

Audit Partner Anthony Macri

Engagement leader responsible for the audit, 

including: 
liaison with the Chief Executive Officer and 

audit committee members 

. reporting to the Office of the Auditor General 

in accordance with the contract 

recommending audit opinion to the Auditor 

General

Audit Manager
Suren 

Herathmudalige

Responsible for" 

key contact for operational audit matters 

ensuring delivery of interim and final audit 

timetables 

management of targeted work 

overall quality control of the audit 

engagement 

overall review of audIt outputs

The Auditor General’s 

Representative

Jordan Langford - 

Smith

Responsible for: 

. overseeing the audit and for facilitating audit 

opinions
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8. Communications Plan and Timetable

Auditing Standard ASA 260 ’Communication of audit matters with those charged with 

governance’ requires auditors to plan with those charged with governance the form and timing of 

communications with them. We have assumed that ’those charged with governance’ are the Audit 

Committee.

~~~~I~~
. -- - - _,. 

’<~ _~~:~~~~~ 
____~__-.-J_ 

~_.~.:::~r:.~_ L~_~.~__~ ~~L~:~~~~~_

Interim Audit Field Work 28 May 2018 - 30 May 2018

Provide Interim Management LeUer On receipt of management responses to the draft Interim

Management Letter.

Final Audit Field Work 1 October 2018 - 3 October 2018

Present the Audit Findings Report to October 2018 - November 2018

the Audit Committee (Management to confirm)

Provide Audit Opinion on Financial October 2018 - November 2018

Statements (Management to confirm)

9. Independence

Independence and Objectivity Confirmation

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those charged with governance, at least 

annually, all relationships that may bear on the firm’s independence and the objectivity of the Audit 

Engagement Partner and audit staff The standards also place requirements on audit.ors in relation to 

integrity, objectivity and independence.

The standards define ’those charged with governance’ as ’those persons entrusted with the 

supervision, control and direction of an entity’, In your case, this is the Council.

Confirmation Statement

We confirm that in our professional judgement, Macri Partners is independent within the meaning of 

regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of the Audit Engagement Partner and 

audit staff IS not impaired

10. Disclaimer

This audit plan has been prepared for the Audit Committee and management of the City of Cockburn 

only. It should not be quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior written consent. No 

warranty is given to, and no liability will be accepted from, any party other than the City of Cockburn.
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MACRI PARTNERS

2018 FRAUD & ERROR 

ASSESSMENT

CITY OF COCKBURN
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MACRI PARTNERS

Explanatory Information

The purpose of Ihls form is 10 conlribule lowards I.he effective two-way communicalion belween 
audilors and Ihe Council’s Audil Commillee, as ’Ihose charged wilh governance’. The reporl covers 
some imporlanl areas of the audilor risk assessmenl where we are required 10 make enquiries of the 
Audil Commillee under audiling standards.

Background 
Under Ihe Australian Audiling Slandards, auditors have specific responsibilities 10 communicate with 
the Audil Commillee

Australian AUditing Standards ASA 240 Tile Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of 

a Financial Report and ASA 260 Communication Wit/l Those Charged with Governance now make il 

mandatory for auditors to make enquiries of management and those charged with governance (audit 

commillees) regarding matters that are indicated in the template form. The enquiries with those 

charged with governance (audit committees) are made in part to corroborate the responses to the 

enquiries of management

Respective Responsibilities

The primary responsibility to prevenl and detect fraud rests with both the Audit Committee and 

management Management, with the oversight of the Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong 
emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical 

behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit Committee should consider the potential for override of 
controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are reqUired to maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management override of controls.

Communication 

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are reqUired to oblalll an understanding of 

management processes and the Audil Committee’s oversight to address fraud risk.

ThiS form IIlcludes a series of questions on each area with provision for responses from both 

management and the Audit Committee.

We suggest that Management complete the relevant sections before submitting these 

responses to the Audit Committee,

The Audit Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its 

understanding, before completing the relevant sections applicable to them.

e
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Fraud and Error Assessment 

CITY OF COCKBURN

Management

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018

1. Has management assessed the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements 

due to fraud? What are the results of this process?

Response:

This risk is included within the City’s corporate risk registers and after considering 

existing control measures, management has assessed the residual risk as being moderate.

2. What processes does management have in place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

Response:

The City has a Fraud Prevention Policy. Fraud risk factors are addressed in the City’s 

corporate risk registers. Controls Include:

Fraud Control Plan 

Fraud Awareness I Management Program 

City of Cockburn Risk Management Strategy 

City of Cockburn Risk Register 

City of Cockburn Incident Discipline Process 

Code of Conduct for Staff 

Code of Conduct for Elected Members 

Public Interest Disciosure Act 2003 & Guidelines

3. Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk of fraud, been identified and what 

has been done to mitigate these risks?

Response:

Overall, the level of fraud risk present at City of Cockburn is well managed and importantly 
fraud risks are currently rated Moderate and Low (i.e. there are currently no High or 
Extreme identified risks) In areas of Contract Management, Procurement, People and 

Planning. There is potential to further reduce the fraud risk profile of the City, and the City 
continues to initiate controls to ensure that the fraud risk profile is reduced.

4. Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, in place and operating effectively? If 

not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

Response:

Management considers that adequate internal controls (including segregation of duties) 
are in place and are operating effectively. These are reviewed annually in accordance with 

the City’s risk management framework requirements and annual control reviews are 
conducted to validate the effectiveness of mitigation controls.
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5. Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of controls or inappropriate 
influence over the financial reporting process (e.g. because of undue pressure to achieve 

financial targets such as a surplus position or better performance indicators)?

Response:

There is always the potential for inappropriate influence, but Management is confident the 

City’s existing control environment reduces this risk to a low or moderate level.

6. What arrangements are in place to report fraud Issues and risks to the Audit Committee?

Response:

All High and Extreme risks are reported to the Audit Committee three times a year (March, 
July & November), further to that the CIty uses a risk management system to monitor and 
review all operational and strategic risks. Whereby all responsible risk owners are 

assigned control actions for each risk, and a review time frame is set in accordance to the 

City’s risk appetite. The system generated automatic notification when controls are due for 

review, and escalates risk actions in accordance to the City’s risk treatment criteria. In 
addition an annual control review is conducted to validate the effectiveness of mitigation 
controls.

7. How does the Council communicate and encourage ethical behaviour of its staff and 

contractors?

Response:

The City has a Code of Conduct for Staff that provides guidelines on ethical responsiblflty 
and accountability expectations. These are covered during staff inductions and reviewed 

during annual appraisals.

A Statement of Business Ethics has also been developed and implemented that outlines 
the integrity and ethical standards expected by the City from its employees, officers, 
suppliers and service providers when doing business. This is communicated to all new 

suppliers and contractors when being engaged.

8. How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud? Have any significant 
issues been reported?

Response:

The City has designated Pub((c Information Disclosure (PID) Offfcers, and publishes the 

City Internal Procedures to provide a guideline for persons wishing to make a PID on the 

Intranet and Website. One significant issue was reported during the year and has been 

addressed and the City intends to develop a training and awareness program for staff to 

be more aware of their own responsibilities.

9. Are you aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could give rise to 

risks of fraud?

Response:

Management is not aware of any.

--
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10. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or alleged, fraud, within the Council 
since 1 July 2017? If yes, provide details of what occurred and who was involved.

Response:

An incidence of suspected fraud relating to fake supplier quotations used in procurement 
transactions was uncovered during the year. The City’s control environment enabled the 

suspected fraud to be identified and given an ongoing Police investigation, details need to 

remain confidential. 
.

11. Please advise if there have been any matters reported to the CCC (Corruption and Crimes 

Commission) by the City.

Response:

One matter was reported to the eee during 2017-18, being the issue mentioned in the 

response to question 10. The cee determined it would not investigate the matter and 

asked the City to refer it to the Police, which the City did.

Signature:

Name:

Position: CEO I Director Position

Date:

e
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Fraud and Error Assessment - Audit Committee 

CITY OF COCKBURN

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2018

The Australian Auditing Standards require us to consider the risk that fraud could occur within the 
Council. We are preparing to perform our Interim Audit risk assessment of your Council in relation to 
the audit for the year ending 30 June 2018. We would appreciate if you could briefly answer the 

following questions in the spaces provided, and return this signed letter.

1. Has the Council’s management communicated to you its processes for 

identifying/responding to risks of fraud?

Response:

The management of the City has and does go through the processes and policies in 
relation to risks of fraud.

2. How does the Audit Committee exercise oversight over management’s processes for 

identifying and responding to risks of fraud?

Response:

The Audit Committee receives reports from mllnagement on identifying risks of fraud. The 

Committee members hllve the right to IIsk and question the Officers and Auditors at IIny 
time.

3. is the Audit Committee aware of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud? If yes, please 
provide details.

Response:

The Committee is aware of one employee who hils been reported to the Crime IInd 

Corruption Commission and the WA Police Service in relation to a procurement matter. 
The Police have opened an active investigation into the matter.

The employee chose to resign rather than to pllrticipate in the City’s investigation.

Signature:

Name:

Position: CHAIR

Date:

o
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Examples of Circumstances that Indicate the Possibility of Fraud

The following are examples of CIrcumstances that may indicate the possibility that the financial report 
may contain a matenal misstatement resulllng from fraud

Discrepancies in the accounting records, including’ 
. Transactions that are not recorded in a complete or timely manner or are improperly recorded 

as to amount, accounting period, classification, or entity policy. 

Unsupported or unauthorised balances or transactions. 

. Last-minute adjustments that significantly affect financial results. 

. Evidence of employees’ access to systems and records inconsistent with that necessary to 

perform their authorised duties. 

. Tips or complaints to the auditor about alleged fraud.

Conflicting or missing evidence, including: 
. Missing documents. 

Documents that appear to have been allered. 

Unavailability of other than photocopied or electronically transmitted documents when 

documents in orginal form are expected 10 exist. 

Significant unexplained items on reconciliations. 

Unusual balance sheet changes, or changes in trends or important financial statement ratios 

or relationships - for example receivables growing faster than revenues. 
. Inconsistent, vague, or implausible responses from management or employees arising from 

enquiries or analytical procedures. 
. Unusual discrepancies between the entity’s records and confirmation replies. 

Large numbers of credit entries and other adjustments made to accounts receivable records. 

. Unexplained or inadequately explained differences between the accounts receivable sub- 

ledger and the control account, or between the customer statements and the accounts 

receivable sub-ledger. 

Missing or non-existent cancelled cheques In circumstances where cancelled cheques are 

ordinarily returned to the entity with the bank statement. 

Missing inventory or physical assets of significant magnitude. 
Unavailable or missing electronic evidence, inconsistent with the entity’s record retention 

practices or policies. 

Fewer responses to confirmations than anticipated or a greater number of responses than 

anticipated 
. Inability to produce evidence of key systems development and program change testing and 

implementation activities for current-year system changes and deployments.

Problematic or unusual relationships between the auditor and management, including: 
. Denial of access to records, facilities, certain employees, customers, vendors, or others from 

whom audit evidence might be sought. 
Undue time pressures imposed by management to resolve complex or contentious issues. 

Complaints by management about the conduct of the audit or management intimidation of 

engagement team members, particularly in connection with the auditor’s critical assessment 

of audit evidence or in the resolution of potential disagreements with management. 

Unusual delays by the entity in providing requested information. 

Unwillingness to facilitate auditor access to key electronic files for testing through the use of 

computer-assisted audit techniques. 
Denial of access to key IT operations staff and facilities, Including secunty, operations, and 

systems development personnel. 

An unwillingness to add or revise disclosures in the financial report to make them more 

complete and understandable 

. An unwillingness to address identified deficiencies in internal control on a timely basis.

e
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Other

Unwillingness by management to permit the auditor to meet privately with those charged with 

governance. 

. Personal financial pressure 

Vices such as substance abuse and gambling 

Extravagant purchasing or lifestyle 
Real or imagined grievances against the organisation or management 
Increased stress, irritable, defensive and argumentative 
No vacations I sick leave I excessive overtime 

Dominant personality 
Protective of area of administration and missing documents and files from the staff’s area 

Accounting policies that appear to be at variance with industry norms. 

Frequent changes in accounting estimates that do not appear to result from changed 
circumstances. 

Tolerance of violations of the entity’s Code of Conduct.

e
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13.3 (2018/MINUTE NO 0017) 2018 INTERIM AUDIT MANAGEMENT 
REPORT

Author(s) 

Attachments

N Mauricio 

1. Schedule of Matters Identified During Interim 
Audit (Draft) 

2. Interim Audit Coverage

RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee receives the draft Matters Identified During Interim
Audit Report for the year ended 30 June 2018, as shown in the
attachment to the A enda.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED Cr C Reeve-Fowkes SECONDED Mayor L Howlett

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

Background

Council is required to examine the report prepared by the External 
Auditor and is to determine if any matter raised in the report requires 
further action to be taken. The audit examination is designed primarily 
for the purpose of the auditor expressing an opinion on the 2017-18 
financial statements of the City.

Council is required to meet with the Auditor of the Local Governme.nt at 
least once every year.

Submission

N/A

Report

The City’s interim audit was conducted in May 2018 by the audit firm 
Macri Partners, under contract from the Office of the Auditor General 

(OAG). The 2017-18 financial year is the first year that the City’s audit 

requirements fall under the responsibility of the OAG. Macri Partners 
have provided their findings and recommendations in the draft Matters 
Identified During Interim Audit Report (attached), which has been 
reviewed and approved by the OAG. It is expected that a signed final 

copy will be provided to the City, following its presentation and 
discussion at this meeting.
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The City received an Interim Audit Coverage document (attached) that 
outlined the objective of the interim audit to review the accounting and 
internal control procedures in operation, as well as testing of 
transactions in the following key areas:

. Bank Reconciliations; 

Investments; 

. Rates / ESL Levy; 

. Receipting; 

. Sundry Debtors; 
Purchase of Goods and Services and Payments; 

. Creditors; 

. Payroll; 
General Accounting (Journal Entries, etc.); 

. IT Controls; 

Registers (Tender, etc.); 

Property, Plant & Equipment and Infrastructure; 

Development Contribution Plans and Gifted Assets; and 
. Minutes Review.

The auditors also discussed progress on audit findings and 
recommendations reported by audit in the previous year’s interim audit 

management letter and final Audit Completion Report. These were 
found to be adequately addressed.

The interim audit has resulted in 14 issues being raised in the auditor’s 

management letter, with most recommendations made relating to 

improving internal controls, security and management oversight.

Below is a summary of the audit findings and the associated risk ratings 
as determined by the auditor:

INDEX OF FINDINGS RATING

Significant Moderate Minor

1. Approval of Investments -/

2. Variation of Contracts -/

3. Gross Rental Value (GRV) -/
and Unimproved Value

Revaluation Reconciliations

4. Monthly Debtor
-/

Reconciliations.

5. Daily Revenue Reports -/

6. Passwords
-/
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7. Active Directory Audit ./

8. Excessive Leave
./

9. Payroll Master File ./

10. Overtime Payments ./

11. Fortnightly Payroll Reports ./

12. Disaster Recovery Plan
./

Testing

13. Monthly Trust Bank
./

Reconciliations

14. Statement of Financial

Activity
./

These ratings are based on the audit team’s assessment of risks and 

concerns with respect to the probability and/or consequence of adverse 

outcomes if mitigating action is not taken. It should be noted that 

management did not necessarily agree with the "Significant" rating 
given to the approval of investments, as argued in the management 
comments, but nonetheless has committed to strengthening controls 

that specifically address the audit finding and recommendation for this 

area.

Management comments have been provided for all of the 14 audit 

findings and where relevant, the actions the City will take to address 

any recommendations made (as attached).

All management responses where actions are committed to, will be 

recorded as risk control actions against the appropriate risk on the Risk 

Register in the Risk Management and Safety System. This will allow the 

City to track, monitor and review these actions in accordance with the 

City’s Risk Framework and be able to respond to future audit on actions 

completed.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications 

Leading & Listening

Deliver sustainable governance through transparent and robust policy 
and processes

Ensure sound long term financial management and deliver value for 

money
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BudgeUFinancial Implications

The cost of external audit services is sufficiently covered within the 

City’s annual budget. 

Legal Implications

Local Government Act 1995 Sections 5.54, 6.4, 7.9 and 7.12A 

Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 Regulations 9 and 10

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

The external audit function is a mandatory legislative requirement and 
an important component of the City’s risk management framework. The 
interim audit seeks to identify issues that could lead to increased levels 
of financial and fraud risk for the City and makes appropriate 
recommendations to reduce the perceived level of risk. Council needs 
to be satisfied that management responses adequately address the 
identified or potential risks.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submissioners

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

INDEX OF FINDINGS RATING

Significant Moderate Minor

1 Approval of Investments
./

2. Variation of Contracts -/

3. Gross Rental Value (GRV) and Unimproved
./

Value Revaluation Reconciliations

4. Monthly Debtor Reconciliations.
./

.

/

5 Daily Revenue Reports ,

~ ./
,
..

6 Passwords
./

7. Active Directory Audit
./

8. Excessive Leave ,

0" ./
.

,

9. Payroll Master File , .’

~ ,~ . .,
./

.

10 Overtime Payments ’.
.

.

-/
\’- .

11. Fortnightly Payroll Reports
.... ./

~

, .

12. Disaster Recovery Plan Testing
-/

13. Monthly Trust Bank Reconciliations
./

14. Statement of Financial Activity
./

," .

.... 
" 

... ....

~ , 

’. 
. 

’;

KEY TO RATINGS .~/

The Ratings in this management letter are based on the audit team’s assessment of risks and 

concerns with respect to the probability and/or consequence of adverse outcomes if action is 

not taken. We give consideration to these potential adverse outcomes in the context of both 

quantitative impact (for example financial loss) and qualitative impact (for example inefficiency, 

non-compliance, poor service to the public or loss of public confidence).

Significant Those findings where there is potentially a significant risk to the entity 
should the finding not be addressed by the entity promptly.
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

Moderate - Those findings which are of sufficient concern to warrant action being 
taken by the entity as soon as practicable. 

Minor - Those findings that are not of primary concern but still warrant action being 
taken.
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

1. Approval of Investments

Finding 
We noted that there is no documentary evidence to indicate that a delegate (such as the 

Manager Financial Services) has approved an investment prior to the investment being made.

We were advised that the Management Accountant consults the Manager Financial Services 
before requesting its investment advisor, FIIG Securities Ltd, to place investments on behalf of 
the City. The Management Accountant then includes the Manager Financial Services as a ’cc’ 
in an email to the investment manager instructing them to purchase. However, there is no 
evidence of the initial consultation, being copied into an email is not evidence of approval, and 
there is a risk that the email recipient does not see the email and is therefore unaware of the 
investment.

Rating: Significant
’,~ ,/, ’"" 

/ ’. 
~/ 

......... ..... 
~; 

.... 
.......

Implication 
There is a high risk of inappropriate investments being made, when investment decisions are 
not approved by an officer with a delegation to approve investments. This could subject the 
Council to financial loss.

~ .... "’-’. --. .’/
~ 

_ 

i

Recommendation 

The City should ensure that all investment decisions are approved by a delegated officer. 
Evidence of this approval, either electronic or manual, should be retained on file.

Management Comment: ....... ,,\

Management questions the significant risk rating and the implication that Council could be 

subjected to financial loss. To defend this view, a summary of the investment process is 

provided.

All term deposit investments are place on behalf of the City by its investment advisor FIIG 

Securities through a real time gross settlement (RTGS) Austraclear proxy service and using 
third party authority arrangements. No direct investments are able to be placed by the 

Management Accountant.

When surplus funds are available for investment, interest rate quotes are sought from FIIG, 
who also ensure that any instructed investment falls within Council policy limits (rating 

exposures, individual limits). FIIG also indicate which financial institutes the City has an 

account with, being a prerequisite for placement of funds. Investment with new institutions 

firstly requires formal documents to be executed by the delegated officers.

The Management Accountant requests the placement only after considering the City’s cash 

flow requirements, the interest rates being offered and discussing his recommendation with the 

Manager Financial Services (delegated officer). All the communications with FIIG are via email 

with the delegated officer being Cc’d on all emails. The only potential risk to Council from the 

delegated officer not having been aware of a placement is the decision risk from the interest
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MA TTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

rate achieved. This is considered an extremely minor risk, given the natural tendency to 

choose the best interest rate available for the required term.

However, in order to address the audit concern, the placement process has been amended 

with an additional email between the Management Accountant and the delegated officer to 

confirm approval in writing before the instruction email to FIIG. However, the decision risk can 

never be totally eliminated regardless how the placement is determined.

Responsible Person: Nelson Mauricio 

Completion Date: August 2018
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

2. Variation of Contracts

Finding 
We noted that there are no limits on the delegations for entering into contract variations.

Paragraph 21 A of the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996, allows 
local governments to make variations to the original contract price under certain specific 
circumstances. This is supported by the City’s ’LGAES4’ which delegates this authority to enter 
into contract variations to various officers. While this delegation stipulates that the variation 
must be within the budgeted allocation, there is no threshold on the amounts which can be 

approved.

Rating: Moderate

Implication 
In the absence of a stipulated threshold for variations to contract, there is a greater risk that 

procurement rules (such as the requirement to call for tenders for purchases over $ 150,000) 
are not complied with. For example, a contract for less than $ 150,000 may be varied to being 
above $ 150,000, without a tender being performed.

Recommendation 

The City should review its purchasing policy and guidelines with a view to setting a threshold 

for variations to contracts in order to mitigate the above implication. Contract variations above 

the threshold specified in the purchasing policy should be approved by Council.

Management Comment:
’. 

, ’. ’l ’.,. ’.....

Management doesn’t necessarily agree with the audit implications and recommendation. Using 
the audit example above, if a contract is awarded below $150,000 and subsequently sort to be 

varied above $150,000, the appropriate delegated financial authority (DFA) is required to 

approve the purchase order amendment at the full value. This is then assessed for compliance 
and appropriateness by the Procurement team, before it is released or otherwise. Typically, 
these contracts are already in progress and it is not possible to call tenders retrospectively. A 

requirement to bring these types of contract variations before Council is both obstructive to 

efficient service delivery and considered an unnecessary use of the function of Council.

As a mitigating control used by the City, the Procurement team vets all proposed purchases 

approaching $150,000 in value and assesses the likelihood of the tender threshold being 
breached. If deemed any risk, it is referred to a tender process.

In practice, most large building contracts have allowances for provisional sums and 

contingency amounts, enabling minor variations to be dealt with administratively. As it is these 

types of contracts most susceptible to variations, the effective use of these allowances by the 

City reduces the need for contract variations and constant referral to Council.
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

Council has purposely set a contract value threshold of $650,000 within policy SES3 

Procurement Evaluations for contract awards coming before Council. By extension, any 
contract varied above this value is also required to come before Council under the DFA 

provisions within policy SES3. These govern the requirement for committing budgeted 

expenditure and amending purchase orders.

In order to specifically address the audit concern raised, Council’s delegated authority for 

contract variations (LGAES4) will be amended to explicitly limit contract variations to a total 

contract value of $650,000. This will align with policy SES3 Procurement Evaluations, with any 
variations above this value continuing to be brought before Council (as is the current practice). 
Contract variations up to a value up to $650,000 will continue being governed by existing 

policies and DFA requirements.

Responsible Person: Nelson Mauricio 

Completion Date: December 2018
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

3. Gross Rental Value (GRV) and Unimproved Value Revaluation Reconciliations

Finding 
We noted that whilst the major Gross Rental Value (GRV) rates revaluation reconciliation was 

performed, there was no evidence that the reconciliation was signed by the preparer and 
reviewed by an independent senior officer.

A major revaluation was carried out in April/May 2017 by the Valuer General’s Office with the 
new valuation taking effect from July 2017. The rates reconciliation was performed by the 
Rates & Revenue Manager, reconciling the Valuer General’s report to the year-end rating 
assessment value on the rates ledger in the financial system.

Rating: Moderate

~ 

(/,,’"
Implication 
Lack of review by an independent senior officer may lead to erroneous valuations entered in 
the rates system being undetected, resulting in incorrect rates being used.

Recommendation 

We recommend that the City introduce a procedure to ensure that the major GRV revaluation 
reconciliation report is signed off by the pre parer and reviewed by an independent senior 
officer.

\\........, "......

Management Comment: 
The triennial GRV revaluation data was reconciled by the Rates & Revenue Manager to ensure 

correctness and the Manager Financial Services was briefed on the outcomes and involved in 

the rates modelling. The rates modelling included direct comparisons to prior values to identify 

any anomalies. Each fortnightly interim GRV valuation schedule is processed using the City’s 
automated processing system. This provides an additional safeguard that the valuation data 

being uploaded is correct.

Management is satisfied that no erroneous valuations were entered for rating purposes, but will 

ensure that future revaluation schedules uploaded are supported with evidence of independent 
review for audit purposes. For this purpose, a new digital (paperless) review process will be 

implemented.
....... ’" / j

Responsible Person: Chantelle D’Ascenzo, Rates & Revenue Manager 
Completion Date: December 2018
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

4. Monthly Debtor Reconciliations

Finding 
During our testing, we noted three instances (out of 10 samples tested) where monthly rates 
debtor reconciliations were reviewed long after the month end. These instances relate to the 
months of November 2017 to December 2017 and January 2018.

Rating: Minor
...~- ".

Implication 
Errors in rates balances may not be detected and rectified in a timely manner unless the 

monthly rates reconciliations are reviewed promptly.
,/ .......~.

Recommendation 

The City should ensure that rates reconciliations are promptly reviewed by an independent 
officer.

"’" .’,", "’-’\.

Management Comment: 
The debtor reconciliations are prepared and reviewed each and every month. Those found by 
audit to have been reviewed late were during a period where the City was developing and 

implementing a new digital (paperless) review process. The new process implemented ensures 

more efficient, prompt and transparent reviews of debtor reconciliations.

~ 
\. 

\(V 
// ’............~...) 

Responsible Person: N/A 
. \ / 

. 

Completion Date: 
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

5. Daily Revenue Reports

Finding 
We noted that there were no reconciliations between the cash taken and the system generated 
"Daily Revenue Reports" prepared by the responsible officers at Front Counter, Senior Centre 
and Henderson Waste Recovery Park receipting sites.

Further, there was no evidence that an independent officer has reviewed the reports to ensure 
that all cash taken is correctly recorded.

Rating: Moderate

Implication 
In the absence of such controls, misappropriations of cash may not be detected.

Recommendation 

The City should ensure that the "Daily Revenue Reports" are reconciled to the relevant cash 
count sheets, banking slips and bank statements on a daily basis. These reconciliations should 
be independently reviewed and evidence of this review should be retained on file.

Management Comment: 
Cash handling operations have greatly diminished in many of the City’s revenue collecting 

centres, with card and online payments making up over 80% of payments. All of the three 

largest cash points (Administration Building, Henderson Waste Recovery Park and Cockburn 

ARC) have adequate cash verification regimes in place. An absence of material variances in 

the daily cash banking points to the adequacy of current controls.

Cash count summaries are reviewed and signed by front counter supervisors before being 

provided to the Revenue Team, which then form part of the banking documents. Whilst the 

Revenue Team only performs a perfunctory review of cash to ’Daily-Revenue-Reports’, cash 

deposits are then reviewed and verified the next day as part of daily bank reconciliation 

processing. Bank reconciliations are then subject to independent review and sign off on a 

monthly basis.

The daily processes discussed above apply specifically to the Administration Building, where 

more significant amounts of cash are handled. The audit observation may perhaps relate to 

other cash handling centres, which have differing daily processes to those administered at the 

Administration Building. However, these are tailored to the individual business requirement and 

risk level. Management are therefore comfortable with the adequacy of control levels currently 
in place.

Responsible Person: N/A 

Completion Date:
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MA TIERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

Passwords

Finding 
We noted that passwords for network access have not changed for over three years,

This matter was reported by the previous auditor Macri Partners in his management letter 
dated 28 June 2017, The management response then provided was as follows:

" Information Services have as one of their 2017/18 strategic items to recommend a 
suite of policies and procedures designed to enhanced data and information security 
practices across the City, These documents will be a precursor to the City’s longer 
term strategic aim to achieve IS09001 accreditation within Information Services."

Rating: Moderate ~ 

T,\\. ~/ ....... 
~ ’. .

Implication 
A potential consequence of aged passwords is the vulnerability of the information technology 
systems to unauthorised access,

...... ..... -... ’ 
\.

Recommendation 

We recommend that the procedures in relation to passwords be reviewed to include periodic 
change of passwords for all users.

I \~ ’. ..... .......

Management Comment: 
The City has already commenced the process of establishing a password policy and plans to 
have this fully implemented by the end of the calendar year, The proposed policy will enforce 

password changes at least yearly and also contains a minimum password strength protocol.

Responsible Person: Brett Fellows, Manager Information Services 

Completion Date: December 2018
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

6. Active Directory Audits

Finding 
We noted that an audit of Active Directory accounts has not been carried out to ensure only 
authorised and current accounts are active.

This matter was reported by the previous auditor Macri Partners in his management letter 
dated 28 June 2017. The management response then provided was as follows:

"The aforementioned suite of policy and procedure reviews/creations will address the checking 
of actual establishment data versus data held within Active Directory. It is not advisable to hold 

quarterly audits until this work is complete."

"Management will recommend this be raised as a priority project for the next financial year."

The ’City of Cockburn Active Directory Account Security’ document recommends a regular 
audit of the Active Directory Accounts. It further recommends that the Human Resources 

Department supplies an accurate record of current City of Cockburn staff list to IT department 
on a quarterly basis.

Rating: Moderate
~/ 

"- 

........ / 
(’., ’ 

/" 
\ \’-~, ’-.. \..’-’

,,~)

Implication 
In the absence of such an audit, there is a risk of unauthorised access to the system. For 

example, dormant accounts of terminated may be used inappropriately to gain access.

Recommendation 

The City should perform regular audits of the Active Directory Accounts against the current 
staff list from the Human Resources Department in line with the policies and procedures.

Management Comment: 
An audit of the Active Directory will be carried out this calendar year.

Responsible Person: Brett Fellows, Manager Information Services 

Completion Date: December 2018
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

7. Excessive Leave

Finding 
During our review of employee annual leave entitlement balances as at 15 May 2018, we noted 
that there were 37 staff with outstanding annual leave entitlements in excess of 8 weeks, to a 
maximum of 13 weeks.

The City’s "Taking of Annual Leave and Long Service Leave" Policy (PSFCS20) stipulates that 

employees should have no more than eight weeks (304 hours) leave due to them at any given 
time.

Rating: Moderate A
Implication 
Excess annual leave entitlements may have adverse effects on the City including: 
. key staff not being rotated, a preventive control against fraud; 
. health and safety concems with staff members not taking their annual entitlements; 
. increase the City’s costs given salary rises and increments over time.

Recommendation 

We recommend that excessive employee annual leave balance be reviewed and appropriate 
measures taken to comply with the requirements under the City’s Annual Leave policy.

Management Comment: 
This issue has been a focus for the past few months. HR recently implemented a new, 
separate report to the executive that identified employees with 8+ weeks’ annual leave and an 
email is sent to the employee direct. If no action is taken by the employee to decrease the 
balance to less than 8 weeks an email is then sent to the employee’s manager. The manager 
is the required to put in place a plan that compels the employee to take annual leave.

Responsible Person: Cliff McKinley 
"-... ~\) Completion Date: ongoing ~ 
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

8. Payroll Master File

Finding 
We noted that there was no evidence that changes made to the payroll master file by the 

Payroll Team (such as changes to personnel, pay rates, bank account details) are reviewed by 
an independent senior officer.

Rating: Moderate

Implication 
Without an independent review of changes to payroll data, there is an increased risk of 

inappropriate or fraudulent changes being made.

...’ /

Recommendation 

We recommend that a "payroll master file amendment report" be produced and reviewed by an 

independent senior officer on a regular basis in order to reduce the risk of unauthorised 
amendments. The report should only highlight changes to critical fields such as rate of pay, 
new employees, terminated employees and banking details.

"\,. "

Management Comment: 
The number of amendments to the payroll master file is quite significant and to check these all 
would be onerous. However, the HR Manager will seek the production of a monthly report that 
details the amendments categorised into main groupings ie change in levels, change in 

increments, change in salary for non EA employees etc.

Responsible Person: Cliff McKinley 
Completion Date: September 2018 ....-.~...
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

9. Overtime Payments

Finding 
We noted that the parks and roads employees are paid an additional 0.25 hours of overtime 

(with superannuation) for the 15 minutes prior to their start time. However, there was no written 
documentation available to show authority for such payment of overtime with superannuation,

We were advised that this payment has been a long standing practice customarily brought 
forward from many years ago for operational efficiency,

Rating: Moderate
~ 

’" 

., /

Implication 
Without evidence of the validity and appropriateness of these payments, there is a high risk 
that employees may be overpaid,

/ \ ., "

Recommendation 

The City should review this practice, and any decision to make additional payments should be 

appropriately justified and approved and formally documented in policies and procedures,

Management Comment: 
This has been identified in the past and efforts to have the allowance removed have been 

unsuccessful. The payment should not be formalised in a policy as that would make the 
removal of the payment even more difficult. Discussions are ongoing with the E&W Director to 

identify if and when the payment could be removed,

....,

-.~

\\J /" <’", 

\{ 
,-’~ ,\ 

, "" 
J 
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Responsible Person: Cliff McKinley 
Completion Date: ongoing
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

10. Fortnightly Payroll Reports

Finding 
We noted that there was insufficient evidence of the review of fortnightly payroll reports by 
business managers.

While fortnightly payroll reports are sent to the business managers for their review soon after 
the payroll reports are finalised, the business managers are only required to report back to the 

payroll department if there are problems with the information contained in the reports.

Rating: Moderate ^ 
/ /

Implication 
Without evidence that business managers are properly reviewing payroll reports, there is a 

higher risk that errors in the payroll may go undetected.
.... ,

Recommendation 

The City should ensure that business managers review fortnightly payroll reports and report 
back to the payroll department, in a timely manner, to state that the review was performed and 

any findings associated with the review.
"......, / ..... !

Management Comment: 
A process will be implemented’ where the BU SMT members are required to review their 
Payroll Report and get back to the Manager HR with any concerns.

Responsible Person: Cliff McKinley 

\’ / .......... ,......1 
Completion Date: September 2018 \ /~.,;) 
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

11. Disaster Recovery Plan Testing

Finding 
We noted that the Disaster Recovery Plan has not periodically been tested to ensure the 

continuity of data processing operations in the event of a major disaster or business disruption.

Rating: Moderate

Implication 
If the Disaster Recovery Plan is not regularly tested, the City has less assurance that it can 
recover its computing and network facilities following a disaster or disruption in data 

processing capability.
, 

"

Recommendation 

We recommend that the City tests the Disaster Recovery Plan periodically and updates it as 
changes occur.

/ .~ .....

Management Comment 
The City’s increasing demand for services to be available 24/7 has impeded on DR Plan 

Testing. The city has changed much of its ICT infrastructure since the last DR Plan Test, so an 
audit on our DR and backup process needs to occur first (along with associated remediation 

work), before proper testing can occur.
’. " .... "’.

Responsible Person: Brett Fellows, Manager Information Services 

Completion Date: June 2019
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ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 13.3 Attachment 1

ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

12. Monthly Trust Bank Reconciliations

Finding 
Our review of the trust bank reconciliations revealed that there was no evidence of review by 
an independent senior officer.

Rating: Moderate

Implication 
Lack of review by an independent senior officer may lead to erroneous or unusual reconciling 
items not being detected and investigated in a timely manner.

,.

Recommendation 

We recommend that trust bank reconciliations be reviewed by an independent senior officer to 
ensure any errors or unusual reconciling items are detected without any delay.

The bank reconciliation should be initialled and dated by the reviewer as evidence that the 
review has been performed timeously.

Management Comment: "","..." /\ "~ ,,",

The trust bank account has very few transactions (1-2 per month) and the bank reconciliation is 

a relatively straight forward process. It is prepared by the Senior Revenue Officer each month 

and reviewed by the Rates and Revenue Manager, before approving the funds adjustment 

journal between Municipal and Trust Bank Accounts.

Another form of review is completed by the Accounting Services Manager or Manager 
Financial Services before authorising the physical transfer of monies between bank accounts 

via NAB online banking.

The actual reconciliation document itself is now also independently reviewed by the Rates and 

Revenue Manager through a recently implemented dedicated workflow in the City’s document 

management system (ECM). The approval is electronically recorded within the system and this 

continues a digital strategy within Finance to eliminate paper within its processes.

Responsible Person: N/A 

Completion Date:
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ATTACHMENT A

CITY OF COCKBURN 

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

MATTERS IDENTIFIED DURING THE INTERIM AUDIT

13. Statement of Financial Activity

Finding 
We noted the Statement of Financial Activity for the month of November 2017 was not 
presented until the ordinary meeting of Council held on 8 February 2018.

Regulation 34 (4 )(a) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 

requires the monthly Statement of Financial Activity and the accompanying documents to be 

presented at an ordinary meeting of the council within 2 months after the end of the month to 
which the statement relates.

Rating: Minor /?
Implication 

Delays in providing financial information to Council may reduce the effectiveness of their 

monitoring of the financial performance of the City.
" ".

Recommendation 

The City should ensure that the Statement of Financial Activity is tabled within 2 months of 

month end.

Management Comment:
\’ ......... 

~ "........... "((
,-.;

It is noted that the November 2017 statement was presented to Council 8 days after the 

statutory period requirement. This has been the case ever since Council stopped meeting in 

January. Whilst this minor delay is not considered to significantly hinder Council’s oversight of 
the City’s financial performance, a late item will be prepared and presented to the December 

meeting in future.

Responsible Person: Nelson Mauricio 

Completion Date: December 2018 > ~:\’) 
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ASFC 15/11/2018 Item 13.3 Attachment 2

CITY OF COCKBURN ~ACRLATNERS
INTERIM AUDIT AREAS

Ger’lliod Pr 3:l sin ACCOl.,;nl nt!

SUMMARY

Our examination of internal controls during interim audit for the year ending 30 June 2018 is carried 

out for audit purposes designed primarily for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements of the City of Cockburn. During this process, we carry out certain checks and tests to 

ensure that the policies and procedures established by the management and Council are being 

adhered to.

The interim audit is not intended to cover all aspects of the City’s internal controls and accounting 

systems and is limited to those matters that arise from our normal audit procedures. To this end, we 

have designed audit programs to carry out our interim audit and we summa rise below the areas 

which we normally cover:

,/ Bank Reconciliations

,/ Investments

,/ Rates / ESL Levy

,/ Receipting 

,/ Sundry Debtors

,/ Purchase of Goods and Services and Payments

,/ Creditors

,/ Payroll

,/ General Accounting (Journal Entries, etc.) 

,/ IT Controls

,/ Registers (Tender, etc.) 

,/ Property, Plant & Equipment and Infrastructure 

,/ Development Contribution Plans and Gifted Assets

,/ Minutes Review

Other financial matters/issues requested by the management/audit committee

Discuss progress on audit findings and recommendations reported by the Auditor in the 

previous:

o interim audit management letter 

o final Audit Completion Report to the Audit Committee to check what action has been 

taken and audit implications. 

Any significant issues arising during the course of the audit will be discussed and management report 

will be issued.
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ASFC 15/11/2018

14. ENGINEERING & WORKS DIVISION ISSUES

Nil

15. COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION ISSUES

Nil

16. EXECUTIVE DIVISION ISSUES

Nil

17. MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

Nil

18. NOTICES OF MOTION GIVEN AT THE MEETING FOR 

CONSIDERATION AT NEXT MEETING

Nil

19. NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY 

MEMBERS OR OFFICERS

Nil

20. MATTERS TO BE NOTED FOR INVESTIGATION, WITHOUT 
DEBATE

Nil

21. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

Nil

22. CLOSURE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 6.41 pm.
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